
 

 

 
City of Alvin, Texas 

 
Paul Horn, Mayor 

 
Joel Castro, Mayor Pro-tem, At Large Pos. 2 Keith Thompson, District C 
Brad Richards, At Large Pos. 1 Glenn Starkey, District D 
Martin Vela, District A Gabe Adame, District E 
Adam Arendell, District B  

 
 

ALVIN CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  
THURSDAY, AUGUST 6, 2020 

 7:00 P.M.  
 

VIA VIDEO/TELECONFERENCE 

 
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN in accordance with order of the Office of the Governor issued March 
16, 2020, the City Council of the City of Alvin will conduct a Regular Meeting on Thursday, 
AUGUST 6, 2020, at 7:00 p.m. by telephone/video conference in order to advance the public health 
goal of limiting face-to-face meetings (also called “social distancing”) to slow the spread of the 
Coronavirus (COVID-19).   
 
This Notice and Meeting Agenda, and the Agenda Packet, are posted online at www.alvin-tx.gov.  
 
The public dial-in number to participate in the telephonic/video meeting is hosted through ZOOM:      
1.346.248.7799 or 1.669.900.9128 or 1.301.715.8592 or 1.646.558.8656 or 1.253.215.8782 - 
Webinar ID 898 4543 1510  Passcode:  249359 or access the meeting by visiting:  
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/89845431510?pwd=cWZvclkwL1BrZWZ2UDhNbUk1MlB3QT09 - Password:  249359 
 
A recording of the telephone/video meeting will be made and will be available to the public in 
accordance with the Open Meetings Act upon written request. 
 

REGULAR MEETING AGENDA  
 

1. CALL TO ORDER 
 

2. INVOCATION AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 

3. PRESENTATION 
 

A. Proclamation – Johanna McWilliams, Alvin Manvel Chamber of Commerce. 
 

4. PUBLIC COMMENT 
 

5. CONSENT AGENDA: CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION: An item(s) may be 
removed from the Consent Agenda for full discussion by the request of a member of Council.  Item(s) removed will automatically 
become the first item up for discussion under Other Business. 

 

A. Consider approval of the July 16, 2020 City Council Regular meeting minutes. 
 

B. Consider Resolution 20-R-22, establishing voting locations and times for a Special Election 
to be held on November 3, 2020, as authorized by Resolution 20-R-13 and Resolution 20-R-
04, for the purpose of submitting to the qualified voters of the City of Alvin, Texas, a 
proposition to vote “for” or “against” the “Adoption of the fire fighters’ and police officers’ 



AGENDA - 2 -                                            August 6, 2020  

 

 

civil service law, applicable to only the police department;” and providing for other related 
matters thereto. 

 

C. Consider a final plat of Caldwell Ranch Section 2 (located along the east side of FM 521 and 
north of Juliff-Manvel Road), being a subdivision of 18.445 acres of land situated in the 
William Hall League, abstract 31, Fort Bend County, Texas, also being a partial replat of lot 
5 of the T.W. & J. W. B. House Subdivision, as recorded in volume 7, page 301 of the Fort 
Bend County deed records. 

 

D. Consider a final plat of Highway Six Gas Station (located at 4901 W. Highway 6), being a 
subdivision of 1.7485 acres, being a replat of the J.M. O’Donnell Survey, Abstract No. 473, 
Brazoria County, Texas. 

 

E. Consider a final plat of Mustang Crossing Section 8 (located northwest of the intersection of 
FM 1462 and Mustang Crossing Boulevard), being a Planned Unit Development  subdivision 
containing 10.43 acres of land, being a partial replat of lots 25, 26, 27, and 28 of section 18, 
Hooper & Wade Survey, Abstract 488, in the City of Alvin, Brazoria County, Texas. 

 

6. OTHER BUSINESS 
 

A. Consider Ordinance 20-S, authorizing the issuance of City of Alvin, Texas, Tax and Revenue 
Certificates of Obligation Bond, Series 2020, for the construction of improvements to and the 
equipment of city streets, sidewalks, and related drainage facilities; the construction of 
improvements to and the equipment of city parks and recreations facilities; and the cost of 
professional services related thereto; levying a tax and providing for the security and payment 
thereof; and enacting other provisions relating thereto. 
 

B. Discuss and take a record vote to propose a tax rate of $0.7680 per $100 of assessed valuation, 
which is a tax increase of 6.85% above the No New Revenue Rate, to be adopted at a future 
meeting. 
 

C. Consider setting one (1) public hearing concerning the proposed tax rate on Thursday, August 
20, 2020, at 7:00 p.m., in the City Council Chambers, City Hall, 216 West Sealy, Alvin, Texas, 
or possible virtual meeting due to the COVID-19 pandemic. 
 

D. Consider Ordinance 20-T, granting a permit to Baymark Pipeline, LLC. to construct certain 
pipeline facilities in certain property or rights-of-way of the City; regulating such 
construction, the date of completion, and the locations of street crossings; providing for a 
notice to proceed, fees, deposits, insurance, and a guaranty of performance; providing for non-
waiver by the City; regulating conflicting terms of laws; providing a penalty in an amount not 
to exceed $1,000.00 per day for each day of violation of any provision hereof; providing for 
severability; and other matters related thereto. 
 

E. Consider Ordinance 20-U, granting a permit to South Texas NGL Pipelines, LLC. to construct 
certain pipeline facilities in certain property or rights-of-way of the City; regulating such 
construction, the date of completion, and the locations of street crossings; providing for a 
notice to proceed, fees, deposits, insurance, and a guaranty of performance; providing for non-
waiver by the City; regulating conflicting terms of laws; providing a penalty in an amount not 
to exceed $1,000.00 per day for each day of violation of any provision hereof; providing for 
severability; and other matters related thereto. 
 



AGENDA - 3 -                                            August 6, 2020  

 

 

F. Consider Resolution 20-R-21, approving the Advanced Funding Agreement (AFA) with the 
Texas Department of Transportation (TXDOT) for the replacement of the County Road 172 
(Parker School Road) bridge at the C-1 Drainage Ditch, and authorize the Mayor to sign the 
Agreement upon legal review. 
 

G. Consider Ordinance 20-V, granting consent to the addition of approximately 202.673 acres of 
land to Brazoria County Municipal Utility District No. 3; making findings of fact; providing 
a severability clause; and providing an effective date. 
 

H. Discuss, consider, and take any needed action regarding the Karpeles Museum project at the 
historic Methodist Church building located at 800 West Sidnor. 

 

7. REPORTS FROM CITY MANAGER  
 

A. Items of Community Interest and review preliminary list of items for next Council meeting. 
 

8. ITEMS OF COMMUNITY INTEREST 
Pursuant to 551.0415 of the Texas Government Code reports or an announcement about items of community interest during a 
meeting of the governing body. No action will be taken or discussed. 

 

A. Hear announcements concerning items of community interest from the Mayor, Council 
members, and City staff, for which no action will be discussed or taken. 

 

9. ADJOURNMENT 
 

I hereby certify that a copy of this notice was posted on the City Hall bulletin board, a place convenient and readily 
accessible to the general public at all times, and to the City’s website: www.alvin-tx.gov, in compliance with Chapter 
551, Texas Government Code, on MONDAY, AUGUST 3, 2020 at 4:00 P.M.  
     

 (SEAL)       ___________________________________ 
       Dixie Roberts, City Secretary 
 
 

 

Removal Date: ______________________ 
 
 
 

** All meetings of the City Council are open to the public, except when there is a necessity to meet in Executive Session (closed to the public) under the provisions of 
Chapter 551, Texas Government Code. The Council reserves the right to convene into executive session on any of the above posted agenda items that qualify for an 
executive session by publicly announcing the applicable section of the Open Meetings Act, including but not limited to sections 551.071 (litigation and certain 
consultation with the attorney), 551.072 (acquisition of interest in real property), 551.073 (contract for gift to city), 551.074 (certain personnel deliberations), or 551.087 
(qualifying economic development negotiations). 



Office of the Mayor, City of Alvin, Texas  

Proclamation  
_______________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

WHEREAS,  Johanna McWilliams has been the President of the Alvin-Manvel 

Area Chamber of Commerce since August of 2011; and 

WHEREAS, prior to joining the Alvin-Manvel Area Chamber of Commerce, 

Johanna was on staff at the Pearland Chamber of Commerce for 

seven years bringing her tenure to sixteen years in the Chamber 

industry; and 

WHEREAS, Johanna has been active in the Alvin-Manvel area as a member 

of the Alvin Noon Lions Club, serving as President in 2017-2018 

and many other local and regional organizations. She is the 

founding member of the Alvin Toastmasters. 

NOW, THEREFORE, I, Paul A. Horn, as Mayor of the City of Alvin Texas and on 

behalf of the City Council do hereby recognize  

Johanna McWilliams 
for her many accomplishments in the Alvin-Manvel area and to wish her the best on 

her future endeavors in law enforcement. 

 

WITNESS my hand and seal this 

6th day of August 2020. 

 

 

 
                       Paul A. Horn, Mayor     



 

 

MNUTES 

CITY OF ALVIN, TEXAS 

  216 W. SEALY STREET 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING AND  

EXECUTIVE SESSION 

THURSDAY JULY 16, 2020 

7:00 P.M. 

 
 

CALL TO ORDER 

BE IT REMEMBERED that, on the above date, the City Council of the City of Alvin, Texas, met in 

Regular Session at 7:00 P.M. in the Council Chambers at City Hall, with the following members 

present: Mayor Paul A. Horn; Mayor Pro-Tem Joel Castro; Councilmembers: Gabe Adame, Adam 

Arendell, Brad Richards, Glenn Starkey and Martin Vela.   
 

Staff members present: Junru Roland, City Manager; Suzanne Hanneman, City Attorney; Dixie 

Roberts, City Secretary; Michael Higgins, Chief Financial Officer; Dan Kelinske, Director of Parks 

and Recreation; and Robert E. Lee, Police Chief.  

 

INVOCATION AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

Council member Adame gave the invocation.   

 

Council member Richards led the Pledge of Allegiance to the American Flag and Council member 

Arendell led the Pledge to the Texas Flag. 
 

PRESENTATIONS 

Presentation of the City of Alvin Municipal Court Fines and Delinquent Tax Collections Report by 

Mike Darlow of Perdue Brandon Fielder Collins & Mott, LLP. 

Mike Darlow of Perdue Brandon Fielder Collins & Mott, LLP, presented a report on the City of Alvin 

Municipal Court Fines and Delinquent Tax Collections.  
 

Hazard Mitigation Plan Update – City Engineer. 

Michelle Segovia, City Engineer, provided an update on the City’s Hazard Mitigation plan.  
 

PUBLIC COMMENT 

There were no comments from the public.  
 

CONSENT AGENDA 

Consider approval of the June 18, 2020 City Council Workshop meeting minutes. 
 

Consider approval of the June 18, 2020 City Council Regular meeting minutes. 
 

Consider approval of the June 29, 2020 City Council Special meeting minutes. 
 

Consider a final plat of Caldwell Ranch Section 1 (located along the east side of FM 521 and north of 

Juliff-Manvel Road), being a subdivision of 20.573 acres of land situated in the William Hall League, 

abstract 31, Fort Bend County, Texas, also being a partial replat of lot 5 of the T.W. & J. W. B. House 

Subdivision, as recorded in volume 7, page 301 of the Fort Bend County deed records. 
On June 1, 2020, the Engineering Department received the Final Plat of Caldwell Ranch Section 1 for review. This 

subdivision is in the City of Alvin’s Extraterritorial Jurisdiction (ETJ) within Fort Bend County, located along the east 

side of FM 521 and north of Juliff-Manvel Road. This final plat consists of 96 lots, 3 reserves, and 2 blocks. This plat 

complies with all requirements of the City of Alvin’s Planned Unit Development section of the Subdivision Ordinance. 

 

This section is contained in the Master Preliminary Plat of Caldwell Ranch, that was approved by Council May 7, 2020. 

The City Planning Commission unanimously approved the plat at their meeting on June 16, 2020.  Staff recommends 

approval. 



MINUTES - 2 -                                              July 16, 2020  

 
 

Consider a final plat of Georges Corner (located at 215 N. Jackson St.), being a subdivision of  0.1928 

acres in the A. Morgan Survey, Section 16, A-452, also being a partial replat of lots 9 and 10, in Block 

6, of Alvin No. 1, as recorded in volume 1, page 1 of the deed records of Brazoria County, Texas, and 

being recorded in volume 32, page 4 of the Brazoria County plat records, City of Alvin, Brazoria 

County, Texas. 
On June 1, 2020, the Engineering Department received the final plat of Georges Corner for review. The property is 

located at 215 N. Jackson Street and is being platted for conveyance. The plat consists of 1 lot and 1 block and complies 

with all requirements of the City’s Subdivision Ordinance.  The City Planning Commission unanimously approved the 

plat at their meeting on June 16, 2020.  Staff recommends approval. 
 

Consider a final plat of Shadow Pond (located on the northwest corner of the intersection of County 

Road 326 and County Road 160), being 175.48 acres located in the B.B.B. & C.R.R. Company Survey, 

A-161 R.L. Weir Survey, A-391 H.T. & B.R.R. Company Survey Section 11, A-224 Brazoria County, 

Texas. 
On June 1, 2020, the Engineering Department received the Final Plat of Shadow Pond for review. This subdivision is in 

the City of Alvin’s Extraterritorial Jurisdiction (ETJ) and is located on the northwest corner of the intersection of County 

Road 326 and County Road 160. This final plat consists of 34 lots, 2 reserves, and 1 block. This plat complies with all 

requirements of the City’s Subdivision Ordinance.  The City Planning Commission unanimously approved the plat at 

their meeting on June 16, 2020.  Staff recommends approval. 
 

Acknowledge receipt of the quarterly Fiscal Year 2020 Capital Improvement Projects Report. 
Staff continues to carry out actions on budgeted projects as defined in the 2020 Capital Improvements Plan (CIP).  This 

report is an update as to the progress of each project year to date. 
 

Acknowledge receipt of the Quarterly Financial and Investment Reports ending June 30, 2020. 
The City Charter requires the Chief Financial Officer to report on the financial condition of the City each quarter.    

 

In 2013, the City of Alvin adopted the Public Funds Investment Act pursuant to Chapter 2256 of the Texas Government 

Code.  The Code contains certain requirements for investing public funds and how those funds are to be administered. 

These requirements include annual reviews of the policy, training, internal controls, prudence, ethics, and reporting.  

 

The City’s investment policy states that the investment officer shall generate quarterly (investment) reports to the City 

Manager, Mayor, and City Council.  Attached is the quarterly report for the period ending June 30, 2020. 

 

In summary, the City of Alvin has an investment portfolio at June 30, 2020, of $81 million, which consists of $63.1 million 

invested in the Local Government Investment Pools, $749,000 in Certificates of Deposits, and $17.2 million in the City’s 

bank depository accounts (i.e. checking accounts). Interest earned during the quarter was $55,896. The City’s yield for 

the quarter was .48% and the 90-day T-Bill was .13%. 
 

Acknowledge receipt of the 2019 Delinquent Tax Roll. 
Section 30, Article VII of the City’s Charter requires that a copy of the delinquent tax roll be provided to each member of 

the City Council at a meeting in July of each year.  The document is a copy of the outstanding taxes for the tax year 2019 

as of July 1, 2020. 

 

Consider appointment of Belt Harris Pechacek, LLP as the City’s auditors for the Fiscal Year ending 

September 30, 2020; and authorize the City Manager to sign the Auditor’s Engagement Letter. 
Chapter 103 of the Texas Local Government Code requires cities to have its records and accounts audited, and an annual 

financial statement prepared based on the audit.  Belt Harris Pechacek, LLP (BHP) has served as the City’s independent 

auditors since FY09.    BHP is proposing a base estimated fee of $43,650 for the City’s FY20 financial statement audit; 

with an additional single audit* one program base fee (if required) of $8,725.    

 

Staff is requesting that City Council approve the engagement of BHP to provide auditing services for FY20.  By engaging 

BHP for FY20, the City retains an audit firm that is extremely knowledgeable of the City’s accounting and internal 

controls. 

 

BHP’s Prior Fiscal Year Engagement Fees 

Base audit fee: $42,480 + $8,725 for single audit one program.  



MINUTES - 3 -                                              July 16, 2020  

 
 

FY20 Audit Budgets for Comparative Cities 

Lake Jackson: $56,000 (FY20-21) 

Webster: $46,300 

Friendswood: $34,380 

La Porte: $67,300 

Deer Park: $40,000 

 

* A “single audit” is additional auditing procedures that are required if the City expends over $750,000 of federal (grant) 

funds in a fiscal year. 
 

Council member Vela moved to approve the consent agenda as presented. Seconded by Council 

member Arendell; motion to approve carried on a vote of 6 Ayes. 

 

OTHER BUSINESS 

Consider an award of bid (B-20-07) to D.L. Elliott Enterprises, Inc. for the Water Line Improvements 

Phase 2 Project in an amount not to exceed $1,367,342.50; and authorize the City Manager to sign 

the contract upon legal review. 
On June 30, 2020, bids were opened for the Water Line Improvements Phase 2 Project, and D. L. Elliott Enterprises, Inc. 

was the qualified bidder. LJA Engineering, the City’s consultant that designed the project, and City Staff reviewed all 

bids that were received and have recommended D. L. Elliott Enterprises, Inc. for this project (recommendation letter 

attached). 

 

Original Project Estimate:  $2,109,900  

 

Contract Amount:               $1,302,230.95 (Base Bid, Supplemental Items, and Alternates A and C) 

5% Contingency:                      65,111.55 

Total Amount:                  $1,367,342.50 

 

This project consists of the installation of 10-inch, 8-inch, and 6-inch water lines to connect and replace existing small 

diameter water lines in the area generally bounded by State Highway 6, State Highway 35 Bypass, Sealy Street, and 

Second Street. Once complete these improvements will increase fire flow capacity, improve water quality, and provide 

better connectivity within the water system. 

 

These improvements were based on recommendations in the 2015 Utility Master Plan by Freese and Nichols, Inc. that 

was approved by City Council on March 3, 2016.   Funding for this project will come from the 2019 Water & Sewer 

System Revenue Bonds that were issued on May 16, 2019. 

 

The project is scheduled to start in August 2020 and has a construction time of 210 calendar days.  Staff recommends bid 

award and contract to D. L. Elliott Enterprises, Inc. 

 

Council member Arendell moved to award a bid (B-20-07) to D. L. Elliott Enterprises, Inc., for the 

Water Line Improvements Phase 2 Project in an amount not to exceed $1,367,342.50; and authorize 

the City Manager to sign the contract upon legal review.  Seconded by Council member Starkey; 

motion carried on a vote of 6 Ayes.  
 

Consider Resolution 20-R-20, approving the Advanced Funding Agreement (AFA) with the Texas 

Department of Transportation (TxDOT) for review of the design engineering for the FM 528 

Extension project; and authorize the Mayor to sign upon legal review. 
The City of Alvin engaged HDR Engineering for the design work of the FM 528 Extension project that will provide a safe 

and efficient hurricane route through Alvin. The project consists of the City providing the design for the construction of 

a new road on FM 528 from SH 35 business to SH 6.  HDR completed the design work and has submitted it to TxDOT 

for their review. TxDOT is requiring an Advanced Funding Agreement (AFA) to document the scope that includes the 

design review. There are no costs to the City per attachment C in the Agreement.  Staff recommends approval of 

Resolution 20-R-20. 
 

Council member Castro moved to approve Resolution 20-R-20, approving the Advanced Funding 

Agreement (AFA) with the Texas Department of Transportation (TxDOT) for review of the design 



MINUTES - 4 -                                              July 16, 2020  

 
engineering for the FM 528 Extension project; and authorize the Mayor to sign upon legal review.  

Seconded by Council member Arendell; motion carried on a vote of  6 Ayes.  
 

Consider the First Amended Agreement with Cline Crossing Partners. Ltd. for the construction of a 

Class “A” apartment development to be located in Cline Crossing at State Highway 6 and Bypass 35; 

and authorize the Mayor to sign said Agreement upon legal review. 
On November 7, 2019, Council approved a Chapter 380 Agreement with Cline Crossing Partners, Ltd., to permit the 

construction of certain improvements necessary for the operation of a Class “A” apartment development. The property 

is owned by OC Alvin, LTD, which is the same developer that is doing this project. A copy of the recorded deed was due 

to the City by December 22, 2019, and the construction of the development was to be completed by December 31, 2021.  

Since that time, the developer has requested new commitment dates due to the extended schedule of closing their financing 

through the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD). Once closing takes place, a copy of the 

recorded deed is due to the City within 45 days and the completed construction is due within 24 months of the deed being 

recorded. All development requirements of the original 380 Agreement will be met.  Staff recommends approval of the 

First Amended Agreement. 

 

Council member Arendell moved to approve the First Amended Agreement with Cline Crossing 

Partners. Ltd. for the construction of a Class “A” apartment development to be located in Cline 

Crossing at State Highway 6 and Bypass 35; and authorize the Mayor to sign said Agreement upon 

legal review.  Seconded by Council member Richards; motion carried on a vote of 6 Ayes.  
 

Consider Ordinance 20-R, amending the City of Alvin 2019-20 Fiscal Year (FY20) Budget by 

increasing (decreasing) certain expenditures and increasing (decreasing) certain revenues to the 

individual budget accounts in all funds set forth in the attached “Exhibit A.” 

At the end of fiscal year 2019 (FY19), the City exceeded fund balance requirements/expectations in the General Operating 

Fund.  The savings resulted from personnel vacancies, utility savings, and lower than expected costs of materials and 

supplies.  Staff has identified capital items that could be funded in the current fiscal year (FY20) utilizing prior year 

budget savings.   

 

Staff requests that City Council amend the FY20 budget to transfer ($252,710) FY19 budget savings from the General 

Operating Fund to the General Capital Projects Fund to fund an upgrade to security systems.     

 

Also, staff recommends that City Council amend the FY20 budget to transfer use $348,404 FY19 budget savings from the 

General Operating Fund to the General Revenue Fund.  Staff recommends approval of Ordinance 20-R. 

 

Council member Starkey moved to Move to approve Ordinance 20-R, amending the City of Alvin 

2019-20 Fiscal Year (FY20)  Budget by increasing (decreasing) certain expenditures and increasing 

(decreasing) certain revenues to the individual budget accounts in all funds set forth in the attached 

“Exhibit A.”  Seconded by Council member Arendell; motion carried on a vote of  6 Ayes.  

 
Accept resignation from John Burkey of the Charter Review Commission, and consider the 

appointment of a replacement member to fill the vacancy on the Commission. 
On June 18, 2020, City Council appointed the following members to serve on the 2020 Charter Review Commission: 

John Burkey, Richard Garivey, Nicole Kelinske, Beth Nelson, Cary Perrin, Donna Starkey, and Lindsey Vaughn. 

 

Mr. Burkey contacted the City Secretary’s Office via email stating that he would like to be removed from the Commission 

citing health conditions.  He asked that a replacement member be selected to serve on the Commission. 

 

All applicants were contacted.  Those who were not selected were told that their application would remain on file in case 

a vacancy should occur. 

 

The following individuals have a current application on file to serve on the Charter Review Commission:  Linda Brown, 

Susan Carlisle, David Hudson, Stacey Hughes, Milton Morgan, Randy Race, JR Dick Tyson, Heather Van Dine, Jamie 

Vaughn, and Rachel Welty.   
 

Council member Castro moved to accept the resignation from John Burkey of the 2020 Charter 

Review Commission, and appoint Heather Van Dine to fill the vacant position on the Commission.  



MINUTES - 5 -                                              July 16, 2020  

 
Seconded by Council member Vela; motion carried on a vote of  5 Ayes and 1 No by Council member 

Adame.  

 

Discuss, consider, and take any needed action regarding the Karpeles Museum project at the historic 

Methodist Church building located at 800 West Sidnor. 
February 5, 2015, City Council approved the appropriation of $20,000 to the Karpeles Museum from the Hotel Motel Tax Fund for 

the purpose of promoting tourism in the City of Alvin according to Chapter 351 of the Texas Tax Code.  The motion also 

stated that the funds would be appropriated and released to Karpeles Museum only after the Karpeles Museum has met 

the City’s code requirements resulting in a certificate of occupancy.    

 

Since 2015, the Karpeles Museum Project has encountered numerous delays.  However, per Tom Stansel, some of the 

major items that are needed to obtain the certificate of occupancy include installing the commercial fire alarm and 

overlaying the parking lot.  

 

To support the completion of the Karpeles Museum, it has been requested that City Council consider the following: 

1.)  Increasing the appropriation from $20,000 to $30,000 to cover unexpected costs.  

2.) Authorizing the disbursement of the $30,000 when the certificate of occupancy has been issued. 
 

Mr. Tom Stansel, Acting Director of the Karpeles Museum, gave an update on the renovation of the 

historic Methodist Church building that will house the future Karpeles Museum. Lengthy discussion 

continued about the museum and the cost associated with the restoration of the building. 

 

Council member Adame moved to table this item until the City Attorney can review the applicable 

Hotel Occupancy Tax Laws and draft up an agreement for City Council to review before any further 

action is taken on this item.   Seconded by Council member Vela; motion carried on a vote of 6 Ayes. 
 

Receive and acknowledge receipt of the proposed City of Alvin Annual Budget for the Fiscal Year 

2020-2021 (FY21), receive presentation of a summary of the budget, and set a public hearing to 

receive comments on the proposed FY21 Annual Budget for the regular City Council meeting 

scheduled for Thursday, August 20, 2020 at 7:00 p.m. 
Per the City Charter, the City Manager, between sixty (60) and ninety (90) days prior to the beginning of each fiscal year, 

shall submit to the City Council a proposed budget, which shall provide a complete financial plan for the fiscal year.  The 

Charter also states that at the meeting of the City Council at which the budget is submitted, the City Council shall fix the 

time and place of a public hearing on the budget. 
 

All members present were given a FY 20-21 proposed annual budget.  Mr. Roland reviewed the 

proposed budget highlights. 

 

Council member Castro moved to acknowledge receipt of the proposed City of Alvin FY21 Annual 

Budget, and set a public hearing to receive comments on the proposed FY21 Annual Budget for the 

regular City Council Meeting scheduled for Thursday, August 20, 2020, at 7:00 p.m.  Seconded by 

Council member Arendell; motion carried on a vote of 6 Ayes.  
 

REPORTS FROM CITY MANAGER  

Items of Community Interest and review preliminary list of items for next Council meeting. 

Mr. Junru Roland announced items of community interest; and he reviewed the preliminary list for 

the August 6, 2020 City Council meeting. 
 

ITEMS OF COMMUNITY INTEREST 

Hear announcements concerning items of community interest from the Mayor, Council members, and 

City staff, for which no action will be discussed or taken. 
 

Council member Vela expressed his dissatisfaction with the decision of halting the pickup of 

recycling.  He commended the City Manager, Fire Marshal and the Rail Road Commission for 

assisting in the removal of the above ground storage tanks on Johnson St. between FM 1462 and 



MINUTES - 6 -                                              July 16, 2020  

 
South St. He was appreciative to the Rail Road Commission for taking this task on to clean up the 

site.   

 

Council member Castro thanked Council member Vela for saving the City money regarding the 

removal of the above ground tanks and cleaning the property on Johnson Street. 

 

Council member Adame also thanked Council member Vela for saving the City money.  

 

Council member Starkey commented that the citizens are having a general fear of the government 

shutting businesses due to the COVID-19. He reported that the City Council would not be ordering 

store closures; however, the Governor has remarked that shutting businesses would be the last resort.   

 

Mayor Horn explained that COVID-19 has adversely affected our trash pick-up. He reiterated that all 

should be mindful of the CDC guidelines in staying safe. 
 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 

Mayor Horn called for an executive session at 10:05 p.m. in accordance to the following: 
 

Section 551.076 of the Local Government Code: Deliberation regarding the use of security devices. 
 

RECONVENE TO OPEN SESSION 

Consider an agreement with Lighthouse Security Cameras through the Houston-Galveston Area 

Council purchasing network, to update and install security cameras in an amount not to exceed 

$252,710; and authorize the City Manager to sign the agreement upon legal review. 
The proposed system upgrades and centralizes the current security system for city facilities.  The details and particulars 

of the security system will be provided in an executive session (as allowed by Texas Government Code 551.076) prior to 

City Council approving the Agreement.   

 

Council member Arendell moved to approve an agreement with Lighthouse Security Cameras 

through the Houston-Galveston Area Council purchasing network, to purchase, update, and install 

security cameras in an amount not to exceed $252,710; and authorize the City Manager to sign the 

agreement upon legal review.   Seconded by Council member Richards motion carried on a vote of 6 

Ayes.  

 

ADJOURNMENT 

Mayor Horn adjourned the meeting at 10:06 p.m. 

 

 

 

PASSED and APPROVED the 6th day of  August 2020. 

 

 

 

______________________________ 

Paul A. Horn, Mayor 

           

 

ATTEST: ________________________ 

                      Dixie Roberts, City Secretary 



 

 

Agenda Commentary 

 

Meeting Date:   8/6/2020 

Department:  City Secretary Contact: Dixie Roberts, City Secretary 

 
Agenda Item:   Consider Resolution 20-R-22, establishing voting locations and times for a Special Election 

to be held on November 3, 2020 as authorized by Resolution 20-R-13 and Resolution 20-R-

04, for the purpose of submitting to the qualified voters of the City of Alvin, Texas, a 

proposition to vote “for” or “against” the “Adoption of the fire fighters’ and police officers’ 

civil service law, applicable to only the police department;” and providing for other related 

matters thereto. 

 

Type of Item: ☐Ordinance  ☒Resolution  ☐Contract/Agreement  ☐Public Hearing  ☐Plat  ☐Discussion & Direction  ☐Other 

Summary:   The City Secretary received a petition from Matthew Jrab on behalf of the Alvin Police Officer’s 

Association to include on the ballot of the next uniform election date (May 2, 2020) a proposition to vote for or 

against the “Adoption of the police officers’ civil service law.” The City’s Charter requires that the petition 

submitted have at least 200 signatures from qualified voters of the City of Alvin.  On January 22, 2020, Mr. Jrab 

(a qualified voter of the City of Alvin, and an Alvin police officer) submitted one initiative packet that included 

15 circulated petitions, with a total of 252 signatures  The City Secretary reviewed and certified the petition as 

sufficient on January 23, 2020, with 202 signatures having been verified as valid registered voters.    This election 

was moved from May 2020 to November because of COVID-19, authorized by Resolution 20-R-13. 

 

Chapter 143 of the Texas Local Government Code states that a governing body who receives a petition requesting 

such election that is signed by the required number of qualified voters, shall order an election submitting to the 

voters the question of whether this chapter should be adopted.  This Resolution calls for such Special Election 

on Tuesday, November 3, 2020. 
 

The City of Alvin will contract with the Brazoria County Elections Office to conduct this election. Brazoria 

County has the voting equipment required to conduct elections.  The City Secretary’s Office will handle the 

filings and all required paperwork and postings as required by state election law.   
 

Early Voting will begin on Tuesday, October 13, 2020, and will go through Friday, October 30, 2020, and will 

be held at the Alvin Library.  Voters can cast their ballot at any Early Voting location throughout Brazoria 

County. 

 

Early Voting Locations: 

Angleton (Main):  East Annex, 1524 E. Mulberry 

Alvin:  Alvin Library, 105 S. Gordon 

Brazoria:  Brazoria Library, 620 S. Brooks 

Freeport:  Freeport Library, 410 Brazosport Blvd. 

Lake Jackson:  Lake Jackson Civic Center, 332 Hwy. 332 East 

Manvel:  North Annex, 7313 Corporate Dr. 

Pearland East:  Tom Reid Library, 3522 Liberty Dr. 



 

Pearland West:  Westside Event Center, 2150 Country Place Pkwy. 

Shadow Creek:  Pearland Westside Library, 2803 Business Center Dr. #101 

West Columbia:  Precinct 4 Building, 121 N. 10th Street 

 

Early voting dates and hours: 

October 13-24; 7am-7pm 

October 25; 1 pm-6pm 

October 26-30; 7am-7pm 

 

Election Day voting will be held at the Alvin Library.  Voters may also cast their ballot at any Voting Center in 

Brazoria County.   

 

Staff recommends approval of Resolution 20-R-22. 

 

Funding Expected: Revenue ☐ Expenditure ☒ N/A ☐ Budgeted Item: Yes ☒ No ☐ N/A ☐ 

Funding Account:  Amount:  1295 Form Required? Yes ☐ No ☒ 

Legal Review Required: N/A ☐ Required ☐    Date Completed: 7/28/2020 SLH 

 
 

Supporting documents attached: 

• Resolution 20-R-22 and Attachment “A” 

 
Recommendation:   Move to approve Resolution 20-R-22, establishing voting locations and times for a 

Special Election to be held on November 3, 2020 as authorized by Resolution 20-R-

13 and Resolution 20-R-04, for the purpose of submitting to the qualified voters of 

the City of Alvin, Texas, a proposition to vote “for” or “against” the “Adoption of the 

fire fighters’ and police officers’ civil service law, applicable to only the police 

department;” and providing for other related matters thereto. 

 

Reviewed by Department Head, if applicable ☐  Reviewed by Chief Financial Officer, if applicable ☐ 

Reviewed by City Attorney, if applicable ☒  Reviewed by City Manager ☒ 

 



RESOLUTION 20-R-22 

 

A RESOLUTION BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ALVIN, 

TEXAS, ESTABLISHING VOTING LOCATIONS AND TIMES FOR A 

SPECIAL ELECTION TO BE HELD ON NOVEMBER 3, 2020 AS 

AUTHORIZED BY RESOLUTION 20-R-13 AND RESOLUTION 20-R-04; 

FOR THE  PURPOSE OF SUBMITTING TO THE QUALIFIED VOTERS 

OF THE CITY OF ALVIN, TEXAS, A PROPOSITION TO VOTE FOR OR 

AGAINST THE “ADOPTION OF THE FIRE FIGHTERS’ AND POLICE 

OFFICERS’ CIVIL SERVICE LAW, APPLICABLE TO ONLY THE 

POLICE DEPARTMENT;” AND PROVIDING FOR OTHER RELATED 

MATTERS THERETO. 

 

 WHEREAS, the City Secretary has received a petition calling for a Special Election for the 

adoption of the police officer’s civil service law; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City Secretary has verified and certified this petition and presented 

findings to the Alvin City Council on February 6, 2020; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the Alvin City Council ordered a Special Election that was to be held on May 

2, 2020, to vote “for” or “against” the “Adoption of the fire fighters’ and police officer’s civil 

service law, applicable to only the police department by the adoption of Resolution 20-R-04; which 

election was canceled by City, due to the COVID-19 pandemic; and  

 

 WHEREAS, the laws of the State of Texas provided that the Special Election scheduled for 

May 2, 2020 could be moved to the 3rd day of November 2020 due to the COVID-19 pandemic; 

and 

 

 WHEREAS, the Alvin City Council herewith proceeds with this Special Election and the 

City Council has determined that holding such Special Election is in the public interest and 

therefore authorizes the voting locations and times found in Attachments A;  

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED AND ORDERED BY THE CITY 

COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ALVIN, TEXAS: 

 

Section 1.  Special Election Ordered.  The Special Election of the City of Alvin was ordered by 

Resolution 20-R-13 to be held shall be held on Tuesday, November 3, 2020, between the hours of 

7:00 a.m. and 7:00 p.m., for the purpose of submitting to the qualified voters of the City of Alvin, 

Texas, a proposition to vote “for” or “against” the “Adoption of the police officers’ civil service 

law.”   

 

The proposition shall take effect upon its adoption and the entering of an order by the City Council 

declaring the proposition adopted.  

 

Section 2.  Ballots.  The ballots for the election shall comply with the Texas Election Code and be 

in the form provided by the City to the Brazoria County Election Officer for use on the voting 

devices and ballots used by Brazoria County.  The official ballot shall be prepared in such a 

manner as will permit the voters to vote “For” or “Against” the proposition submitted, with the 

proposition to be expressed on the official ballot in a form substantially as follows: 

 



Res 20-R-22                  Page 2 of 3 

Proposition 1 

Adoption of the fire fighters’ and police officer’s civil service law,  

applicable to only the police department. 

 

FOR_____     AGAINST_____ 

 

Section 3.  Early Voting.  Early voting, both by personal appearance and by mail, will be 

conducted by the Brazoria County Election Officer, who is designated and appointed as the Early 

Voting Clerk, in accordance with the Texas Election Code.  Early voting by personal appearance 

shall be conducted at places and locations authorized by state law and the Brazoria County Election 

Officer as described in “Attachment B.”  Early voting shall commence on Tuesday, October 13, 

2020, and continue through Friday, October 30, 2020, and early voting polls shall remain open for 

the time specified by the Texas Election Code.  Early voting shall also be held at any time and 

location authorized by the Brazoria County Election Officer.  Early voting by City residents may be 

conducted at any Brazoria County early voting location and any location exclusively designated by 

the Brazoria County Election Officer.  

   

Section 4.  Election Precincts and Polling Places.  The election precincts for the election shall be 

the election precincts established by Brazoria County, provided that each shall contain and include 

geographic area that is within the City.  The polling place for each such election precinct shall be the 

polling place established by Brazoria County for such election precincts in Brazoria County and 

voting by residents of the City.  Voting by City residents may be conducted at any Brazoria County 

voting location and any location exclusively designated by the Brazoria County Election Officer for 

City residents.  The polls, found in “Attachment A,” shall remain open on the day of the election 

from 7:00 a.m. to 7:00 p.m. The returns for precincts in Brazoria County will be provided by 

precinct and the Brazoria County Election Officer shall tabulate and provide the election returns for 

the election.  

 

Section 5. Joint Election.  The City agrees to conduct a joint election with other political 

subdivisions within Brazoria County, provided that such political subdivision holds an election on 

November 3, 2020. in all or part of the same territory as the City (the “Political Subdivisions”).  The 

joint election shall be conducted in accordance with state law, this Resolution, and the 2020 Joint 

Election Agreement and Contract for Election Services with Brazoria County for approval by the 

City Council. 

 

Section 6. Duties of City Secretary and Election Officer. The City Secretary, or designee, is 

instructed to aide the Brazoria County Election Officer in the acquisition and furnishing of all 

election supplies and materials necessary to conduct the election as provided by the Election 

Agreement.  The City Secretary is further authorized to give or cause to be given notices required 

for the election, and to take such other and further action as is required to conduct the election in 

compliance with the Texas Election Code; provided that, pursuant to the Election Agreement 

between Brazoria County and the City, the Brazoria County Election Officer shall have the duty and 

be responsible for organizing and conducting the election in compliance with the Texas Election 

Code; and for providing all services specified to be provided in the Election Agreement.  The 

Brazoria County Election Officer shall give the notices required by the Texas Election Code to be 

given for the election not required to be given by the City under the Election Agreement. 

 

Section 7.  General.  The election shall be held and conducted by the Brazoria County Election 

Officer in compliance with the Texas Election Code and the Election Agreement.   

 



Res 20-R-22                  Page 3 of 3 

Section 8.  Effective Date.  This Resolution shall be in force and effect from and after its passage 

on the date shown below. 

 

Section 9.  Open Meetings Act.  It is hereby officially found and determined that this meeting was 

open to the public, and public notice of the time, place and purpose of said meeting was given, all as 

required by the Open Meetings Act, Chapter 551 of the Texas Government Code. 

 

 

AND, IT IS SO RESOLVED. 

 

 

PASSED AND APPROVED on this the 6th day of August 2020. 

 

 

 

 

CITY OF ALVIN, TEXAS    ATTEST: 

 

            

By: _____________________________  By: __________________________ 

        Paul A. Horn, Mayor           Dixie Roberts, City Secretary  



 

 

Agenda Commentary 

 

Meeting Date:   8/6/2020 

Department:  Engineering Contact:  Michelle H. Segovia, City Engineer  
 

Agenda Item:   Consider a final plat of Caldwell Ranch Section 2 (located along the east side of FM 521 

and north of Juliff-Manvel Road), being a subdivision of 18.445 acres of land situated in 

the William Hall League, abstract 31, Fort Bend County, Texas, also being a partial replat 

of lot 5 of the T.W. & J. W. B. House Subdivision, as recorded in volume 7, page 301 of 

the Fort Bend County deed records. 
 

Type of Item: ☐Ordinance  ☐Resolution  ☐Contract/Agreement  ☐Public Hearing  ☒Plat  ☐Discussion & Direction  ☐Other 

Summary:   On July 1, 2020, the Engineering Department received the Final Plat of Caldwell Ranch Section 2 for 

review. This subdivision is in the City of Alvin’s Extraterritorial Jurisdiction (ETJ) within Fort Bend County, located 

along the east side of FM 521 and north of Juliff-Manvel Road. This final plat consists of 68 lots, 4 reserves, and 3 

blocks. This plat complies with all requirements of the City of Alvin’s Planned Unit Development section of the 

Subdivision Ordinance. 
 

This section is contained in the Master Preliminary Plat of Caldwell Ranch, that was approved by Council May 7, 

2020. 
 

The City Planning Commission unanimously approved the plat at their meeting on July 21, 2020.  Staff recommends 

approval. 

 

Funding Expected: Revenue ☐ Expenditure ☐ N/A ☒ Budgeted Item: Yes ☐ No ☐ N/A ☒ 

Funding Account:  Amount:  1295 Form Required? Yes ☐ No ☒ 

Legal Review Required: N/A ☒ Required ☐    Date Completed: 7/29/2020 SLH 

 
Supporting documents attached: 

• Click Here to view Final Plat of Caldwell Ranch Section 2  
 

 

Recommendation:   Move to approve the final plat of Caldwell Ranch Section 2 (located along the east 

side of FM 521 and north of Juliff-Manvel Road), being a subdivision of 18.445 acres 

of land situated in the William Hall League, abstract 31, Fort Bend County, Texas, 

also being a partial replat of lot 5 of the T.W. & J. W. B. House Subdivision, as 

recorded in volume 7, page 301 of the Fort Bend County deed records. 

 

Reviewed by Department Head, if applicable ☒  Reviewed by Chief Financial Officer, if applicable ☐ 

Reviewed by City Attorney, if applicable ☒  Reviewed by City Manager ☒ 

 

http://www.alvin-tx.gov/upload/page/0158/docs/Plats/Caldwell%20Ranch%20Sec.%202%20Final%20Plat.pdf


 

 

Agenda Commentary 

 

Meeting Date:   8/6/2020 

Department:  Engineering Contact:  Michelle Segovia, City Engineer  

 
Agenda Item:   Consider a final plat of Highway Six Gas Station (located at 4901 W. Highway 6), being a 

subdivision of 1.7485 acres, being a replat of the J.M. O’Donnell Survey, Abstract No. 473, 

Brazoria County, Texas. 
 

Type of Item: ☐Ordinance  ☐Resolution  ☐Contract/Agreement  ☐Public Hearing  ☒Plat  ☐Discussion & Direction  ☐Other 

Summary:   On July 1, 2020, the Engineering Department received the final plat of Highway Six Gas Station 

for review. The property is located at 4901 W. Highway 6 and is being platted for the development of a 

convenience store and gas station. This plat complies with all requirements of the City’s Subdivision Ordinance. 
 

The City Planning Commission unanimously approved the plat at their meeting on July 21, 2020.  Staff 

recommends approval. 

 

Funding Expected: Revenue ☐ Expenditure ☐ N/A ☒ Budgeted Item: Yes ☐ No ☐ N/A ☒ 

Funding Account:  Amount:  1295 Form Required? Yes ☐ No ☐ 

Legal Review Required: N/A ☒ Required ☐    Date Completed: 7/29/2020 SLH 

 
 
Supporting documents attached: 

• Click Here to view Final Plat of Highway 6 Gas Station 

 

 
Recommendation:   Move to approve the final plat of Highway Six Gas Station (located at 4901 W. 

Highway 6), being a subdivision of 1.7485 acres, being a replat of the J.M. O’Donnell 

Survey, Abstract No. 473, Brazoria County, Texas. 

 
 

Reviewed by Department Head, if applicable ☒  Reviewed by Chief Financial Officer, if applicable ☐ 

Reviewed by City Attorney, if applicable ☒  Reviewed by City Manager ☒ 

 

http://www.alvin-tx.gov/upload/page/0158/docs/Plats/Final%20Plat%20of%20Highway%20Six%20Gas%20Station.pdf


 

 

Agenda Commentary 

 

Meeting Date:   8/6/2020 

Department:  Engineering Contact:   Michelle Segovia, City Engineer  

 
Agenda Item:   Consider a final plat of Mustang Crossing Section 8 (located northwest of the intersection 

of FM 1462 and Mustang Crossing Boulevard), being a Planned Unit Development  

subdivision containing 10.43 acres of land, being a partial replat of lots 25, 26, 27, and 28 

of section 18, Hooper & Wade Survey, Abstract 488, in the City of Alvin, Brazoria 

County, Texas. 
 

Type of Item: ☐Ordinance  ☐Resolution  ☐Contract/Agreement  ☐Public Hearing  ☒Plat  ☐Discussion & Direction  ☐Other 

Summary:   On July 1, 2020, the Engineering Department received the final plat of Mustang Crossing Section 

8 for review. The property is located at the northwest corner of the intersection of FM 1462 and Mustang 

Crossing Boulevard. This section consists of twenty-six (26) single-family lots, four (4) reserves, and one (1) 

block. This plat complies with all requirements of the City’s Subdivision Ordinance. 

 

The Planning Commission unanimously approved the plat at their meeting on July 21, 2020.  Staff 

recommends approval.   

 

Funding Expected: Revenue ☐ Expenditure ☐ N/A ☒ Budgeted Item: Yes ☐ No ☐ N/A ☒ 

Funding Account:  Amount:  1295 Form Required? Yes ☐ No ☒ 

Legal Review Required: N/A ☒ Required ☐    Date Completed: 7/29/2020 SLH 

 
 
Supporting documents attached: 

• Click Here to view Final Plat of Mustang Crossing Section 8 
 

 
Recommendation:   Move to approve the final plat of Mustang Crossing Section 8 (located northwest of 

the intersection of FM 1462 and Mustang Crossing Boulevard), being a Planned 

Unit Development  subdivision containing 10.43 acres of land, being a partial replat 

of lots 25, 26, 27, and 28 of section 18, Hooper & Wade Survey, Abstract 488, in the 

City of Alvin, Brazoria County, Texas. 
 

Reviewed by Department Head, if applicable ☒  Reviewed by Chief Financial Officer, if applicable ☐ 

Reviewed by City Attorney, if applicable ☒  Reviewed by City Manager ☒ 

 

http://www.alvin-tx.gov/upload/page/0158/docs/Plats/Mustang%20Crossing%20Sec.%208%20Final%20Plat.pdf


 

 

Agenda Commentary 

 

Meeting Date:   8/6/2020 

Department:  Administration Contact:  Michael Higgins, CFO  

 
Agenda Item:   Consider Ordinance 20-S, authorizing the issuance of City of Alvin, Texas, Tax and 

Revenue Certificates of Obligation Bond, Series 2020, for the construction of 

improvements to and the equipment of city streets, sidewalks, and related drainage 

facilities; the construction of improvements to and the equipment of city parks and 

recreations facilities; and the cost of professional services related thereto; levying a tax and 

providing for the security and payment thereof; and enacting other provisions relating 

thereto. 

 

Type of Item: ☒Ordinance  ☐Resolution  ☐Contract/Agreement  ☐Public Hearing  ☐Plat  ☐Discussion & Direction  ☐Other 

Summary:   On June 4, 2020, City Council authorized the publishing of a notice of the City’s intent to issue 

$5,500,000 in Certificates of Obligations for the purpose of funding the construction of the following drainage 

improvements and park improvements:   

 

Project Name Estimated Project Costs 

Moller Road Phase 1 $3,700,000 

Park Improvements (Lighting & Concession Stand) $1,749,000 

Total: $5,500,000 

 

City staff participated in ratings call with Standard & Poor’s on June 29, 2020.  Standard & Poor’s affirmed the 

City’s Revenue Bond rating of AA on the Series 2020 Certificates of Obligations on July 20, 2020. 

 

The Series 2020 Certificate of Obligation Bonds are scheduled to be competitively bid at 10:00 a.m. on August 

6, 2020.  Thereafter, staff will know the exact dollar amount of bonds that will need to be issued to cover the 

project costs as well as other bond issuance costs.   The City’s Financial Advisors will be at the City Council 

meeting to present the results of the sale and request City Council to approve Ordinance 20-S, authorizing the 

bond sale.  Should City Council authorize the issuance of the Series 2020 Certificate of Obligation Bonds, the 

bonds are expected to close, with funds deposited into the City’s accounts on August 27, 2020. 
 

Funding Expected: Revenue ☐ Expenditure ☐ N/A ☐ Budgeted Item: Yes ☐ No ☐ N/A ☒ 

Funding Account:  Amount: Approx. $5.5M 1295 Form Required? Yes ☐ No ☒ 

Legal Review Required: N/A ☐ Required ☒    Date Completed: 7/28/2020 SLH 
 

 
Supporting documents attached: 

• Ordinance 20-S 



 

 

• Standard and Poor’s Rating Summary 

 
Recommendation:   

 

Move to approve Ordinance 20-S, authorizing the issuance of  City of Alvin, Texas, 

Tax and Revenue Certificates of Obligation, Series 2020; for the construction of 

improvements to and the equipment of city streets, sidewalks, and related drainage 

facilities; the construction of improvements to and the equipment of city parks and 

recreations facilities; and the cost of professional services related thereto; levying a 

tax and providing for the security and payment thereof; and enacting other provisions 

relating thereto. 
 

Reviewed by Department Head, if applicable ☒  Reviewed by Chief Financial Officer, if applicable ☒ 

Reviewed by City Attorney, if applicable ☒  Reviewed by City Manager ☒ 

 



 
#6195040.6 

 

 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 20-S 

 

 

 

AUTHORIZING THE 
ISSUANCE OF 

 

 

 
CITY OF ALVIN, TEXAS 

TAX AND REVENUE CERTIFICATES OF OBLIGATION 
SERIES 2020 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Adopted: August 6, 2020 

  



 
#6195040.6 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

Page 

ARTICLE I 
 

DEFINITIONS AND OTHER PRELIMINARY MATTERS 

Section 1.1. Definitions................................................................................................................2 
Section 1.2. Findings....................................................................................................................4 
Section 1.3. Table of Contents, Titles, and Headings ..................................................................4 
Section 1.4. Interpretation ............................................................................................................4 

ARTICLE II 
 

TAX LEVY; DEBT SERVICE FUND; PLEDGE OF REVENUES 

Section 2.1. Tax Levy ..................................................................................................................5 
Section 2.2. Debt Service Fund....................................................................................................5 
Section 2.3. Pledge of Revenues ..................................................................................................5 

ARTICLE III 
 

AUTHORIZATION; GENERAL TERMS AND PROVISIONS REGARDING THE 
CERTIFICATES 

Section 3.1. Authorization ...........................................................................................................6 
Section 3.2. Date, Denomination, Maturities, and Interest ..........................................................6 
Section 3.3. Medium, Method, and Place of Payment .................................................................7 
Section 3.4. Execution and Registration of Certificates ..............................................................8 
Section 3.5. Ownership ................................................................................................................9 
Section 3.6. Registration, Transfer, and Exchange ......................................................................9 
Section 3.7. Cancellation ...........................................................................................................10 
Section 3.8. Replacement Certificates .......................................................................................10 
Section 3.9. Book-Entry-Only System.......................................................................................11 
Section 3.10. Successor Securities Depository; Transfer Outside Book-Entry-

Only System ...........................................................................................................12 
Section 3.11. Payments to Cede & Co .........................................................................................12 

ARTICLE IV 
 

REDEMPTION OF CERTIFICATES BEFORE MATURITY 

Section 4.1. Limitation on Redemption .....................................................................................12 
Section 4.2. Optional Redemption .............................................................................................13 
Section 4.3. Partial Redemption.................................................................................................13 
Section 4.4. Notice of Redemption to Owners ..........................................................................13 
Section 4.5. Payment Upon Redemption ...................................................................................14 



 (ii) 
#6195040.6 

Section 4.6. Effect of Redemption .............................................................................................14 
Section 4.7. Lapse of Payment ...................................................................................................15 

ARTICLE V 
 

PAYING AGENT/REGISTRAR 

Section 5.1. Appointment of Initial Paying Agent/Registrar .....................................................15 
Section 5.2. Qualifications .........................................................................................................15 
Section 5.3. Maintaining Paying Agent/Registrar .....................................................................15 
Section 5.4. Termination ............................................................................................................16 
Section 5.5. Notice of Change to Owners ..................................................................................16 
Section 5.6. Agreement to Perform Duties and Functions.........................................................16 
Section 5.7. Delivery of Records to Successor ..........................................................................16 

ARTICLE VI 
 

FORM OF THE CERTIFICATES 

Section 6.1. Form Generally ......................................................................................................16 
Section 6.2. Form of the Certificates .........................................................................................17 
Section 6.3. CUSIP Registration ................................................................................................22 
Section 6.4. Legal Opinion ........................................................................................................23 

ARTICLE VII 
 

SALE AND DELIVERY OF CERTIFICATES; DEPOSIT OF PROCEEDS; OFFICIAL 
STATEMENT 

Section 7.1. Sale of Certificates .................................................................................................23 
Section 7.2. Deposit of Proceeds ...............................................................................................23 
Section 7.3. Control and Delivery of Certificates ......................................................................24 
Section 7.4. Official Statement ..................................................................................................24 

ARTICLE VIII 
 

PARTICULAR REPRESENTATIONS AND COVENANTS 

Section 8.1. Payment of the Certificates ....................................................................................24 
Section 8.2. Other Representations and Covenants ...................................................................24 
Section 8.3. Provisions Concerning Federal Income Tax Matters.............................................25 

ARTICLE IX 
 

DISCHARGE 

Section 9.1. Discharge ...............................................................................................................26 



 (iii) 
#6195040.6 

ARTICLE X 
 

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE UNDERTAKING 

Section 10.1. Annual Reports ......................................................................................................26 
Section 10.2. Event Notices .........................................................................................................27 
Section 10.3. Limitations, Disclaimers and Amendments ...........................................................29 

ARTICLE XI 
 

MISCELLANEOUS 

Section 11.1. Changes to Ordinance ............................................................................................30 
Section 11.2. Partial Invalidity.....................................................................................................30 
Section 11.3. Repealer .................................................................................................................30 
Section 11.4. Individuals Not Liable ...........................................................................................30 
Section 11.5. Related Matters ......................................................................................................30 
Section 11.6. Force and Effect .....................................................................................................31 



 
#6195040.6 

ORDINANCE NO. 20-S 

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE AND SALE OF THE 
CITY OF ALVIN, TEXAS, TAX AND REVENUE CERTIFICATES OF 
OBLIGATION, SERIES 2020; LEVYING A TAX AND PROVIDING FOR THE 
SECURITY AND PAYMENT THEREOF; AND ENACTING OTHER 
PROVISIONS RELATING THERETO 

THE STATE OF TEXAS  § 
COUNTY OF BRAZORIA  § 
CITY OF ALVIN   § 
 

WHEREAS, under the provisions of Subchapter C, Chapter 271, Texas Local Government 
Code, as amended (the “Act”), the City of Alvin, Texas (the “City”), is authorized to issue 
certificates of obligation for the purposes specified in this Ordinance and for the payment of all or 
a portion of the contractual obligations for professional services, including that of engineers, 
attorneys, and financial advisors in connection therewith, and to sell the same for cash as herein 
provided; and 

WHEREAS, the City is authorized to provide that such obligations will be payable from 
and secured by a direct and continuing annual ad valorem tax levied, within the limits prescribed 
by law, against all taxable property within the City, in combination with a limited pledge of a 
subordinate lien on the Net Revenues (as defined herein) of the City’s water and sewer system (the 
“System”) in an amount not to exceed $1,000 as authorized by the Act and Chapter 1502, Texas 
Government Code; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council has found and determined that it is necessary and in the best 
interests of the City and its citizens that it issue such certificates of obligation authorized by this 
Ordinance; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to a resolution heretofore passed by this governing body, notice of 
intention to issue certificates of obligation of the City payable as provided in this Ordinance was 
published in a newspaper of general circulation in the City and posted to the City’s website in 
accordance with the laws of the State of Texas, which notice provided that the principal amount 
of such certificates of obligation would not exceed $5,550,000 and the proceeds would be used for 
the purpose of paying contractual obligations to be incurred for the purposes set forth in Section 
3.1 hereof; and 

WHEREAS, such notice provided that the City tentatively planned to consider the passage 
of an ordinance authorizing the issuance of the Certificates on August 6, 2020; and 

WHEREAS, no petition of any kind has been filed with the City Secretary, any member of 
the City Council or any other official of the City, protesting the issuance of such certificates of 
obligation; and 

WHEREAS, this City Council is now authorized and empowered to proceed with the 
issuance of said certificates of obligation and to sell the same for cash; and 



-2- 
#6195040.6 

WHEREAS, the meeting at which this Ordinance is considered is open to the public as 
required by law, and public notice of the time, place, and purpose of said meeting was given as 
required by Chapter 551, Texas Government Code, as amended and the March 16, 2020 action by 
the Governor of the State of Texas under Section 418.016, Texas Government Code, suspending 
certain provisions of the Texas Open Meetings Act; therefore, 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ALVIN, TEXAS: 

ARTICLE I 
 

DEFINITIONS AND OTHER PRELIMINARY MATTERS 

Section 1.1. Definitions. 

Unless otherwise expressly provided or unless the context clearly requires otherwise in this 
Ordinance, the following terms shall have the meanings specified below: 

“Bond Counsel” means Bracewell LLP. 

“Business Day” means a day that is not a Saturday, Sunday, legal holiday or other day on 
which banking institutions in the city where the Designated Payment/Transfer Office is located are 
required or authorized by law or executive order to close. 

“Certificate” or “Certificates” means the City’s certificates of obligation entitled, “City of 
Alvin, Texas, Tax and Revenue Certificates of Obligation, Series 2020” authorized to be issued 
by Section 3.1 of this Ordinance. 

“City” means the City of Alvin, Texas. 

“Closing Date” means the date of the initial delivery of and payment for the Certificates. 

“Code” means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, and with respect to a 
specific section thereof, such reference shall be deemed to include (a) the Regulation promulgated 
under such section, (b) any successor provision of similar import hereafter enacted, (c) any 
corresponding provision of any subsequent Internal Revenue Code and (d) the regulations 
promulgated under the provisions described in (b) and (c). 

“Dated Date” means August, 1, 2020. 

“Debt Service Fund” means the debt service fund established by Section 2.2 of this 
Ordinance. 

“Designated Payment/Transfer Office” means (i) with respect to the initial Paying 
Agent/Registrar named in this Ordinance, the Designated Payment/Transfer Office as designated 
in the Paying Agent/Registrar Agreement, or at such other location designated by the Paying 
Agent/Registrar and (ii) with respect to any successor Paying Agent/Registrar, the office of such 
successor designated and located as may be agreed upon by the City and such successor. 



-3- 
#6195040.6 

“DTC” means The Depository Trust Company of New York, New York, or any successor 
securities depository. 

“DTC Participant” means brokers and dealers, banks, trust companies, clearing 
corporations and certain other organizations on whose behalf DTC was created to hold securities 
to facilitate the clearance and settlement of securities transactions among DTC Participants. 

“Financial Obligation” means a (i) debt obligation, (ii) derivative instrument entered into 
in connection with, or pledged as security or a source of payment for, an existing or planned debt 
obligation, or (iii) guarantee of a debt obligation or any such derivative instrument; provided that 
“financial obligation” shall not include municipal securities as to which a final official statement 
(as defined in the Rule) has been provided to the MSRB consistent with the Rule.  

“Fiscal Year” means such fiscal year as shall from time to time be set by the City Council. 

“Initial Certificate” means the initial certificate authorized by Section 3.4 of this 
Ordinance. 

“Initial Purchaser” means the initial purchaser of the Certificates identified in Section 7.1 
of this Ordinance. 

“Interest Payment Date” means the date or dates upon which interest on the principal of 
the Certificates is scheduled to be paid until their respective dates of maturity or prior redemption, 
such dates being May 1 and November 1 of each year, commencing on November 1, 2020. 

“Maturity” means the date on which the principal of the Certificates becomes due and 
payable according to the terms thereof, or by proceedings for prior redemption. 

“MSRB” means the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board. 

“Net Revenues” has the meaning ascribed thereto in the City’s Ordinance No. 18-K, 
authorizing the issuance of the City’s Water and Sewer System Revenue Bonds, Series 2018, 
adopted by the City Council on July 19, 2018, as amended. 

 “Ordinance” as used herein and in the Certificates means this ordinance authorizing the 
Certificates. 

“Owner” means the person who is the registered owner of a Certificate or Certificates, as 
shown in the Register. 

“Paying Agent/Registrar” means initially Zions Bancorporation, National Association, 
Amegy Bank Division, Houston, Texas, or any successor thereto as provided in this Ordinance. 

“Paying Agent/Registrar Agreement” means the Paying Agent/Registrar Agreement 
between the Paying Agent/Registrar and the City relating to the Certificates. 

“Record Date” means the fifteenth day of the month next preceding an Interest Payment 
Date. 



-4- 
#6195040.6 

“Register” means the bond register specified in Section 3.6(a) of this Ordinance. 

“Regulations” means the applicable, proposed, temporary or final Treasury Regulations 
promulgated under the Code, or, to the extent applicable to the Code, under the Internal Revenue 
Code of 1954, as such regulations may be amended or supplemented from time to time. 

“Representation Letter” means the Blanket Letter of Representations between the City and 
DTC.  

“Rule” means SEC Rule 15c2-12, as amended from time to time. 

“SEC” means the United States Securities and Exchange Commission. 

“State” means the State of Texas. 

“System” as used in this Ordinance means the City’s water and sewer system. 

“Unclaimed Payments” means money deposited with the Paying Agent/Registrar for the 
payment of principal, redemption premium, if any, or interest on the Certificates as the same 
becomes due and payable or money set aside for the payment of Certificates duly called for 
redemption prior to maturity and remaining unclaimed by the Owners of such Certificates for 90 
days after the applicable payment or redemption date. 

Section 1.2. Findings. 

The declarations, determinations, and findings declared, made, and found in the preamble 
to this Ordinance are hereby adopted, restated, and made a part of the operative provisions hereof.  

Section 1.3. Table of Contents, Titles, and Headings. 

The table of contents, titles, and headings of the Articles and Sections of this Ordinance 
have been inserted for convenience of reference only and are not to be considered a part hereof 
and shall not in any way modify or restrict any of the terms or provisions hereof and shall never 
be considered or given any effect in construing this Ordinance or any provision hereof or in 
ascertaining intent, if any question of intent should arise. 

Section 1.4. Interpretation. 

(a) Unless the context requires otherwise, words of the masculine gender shall be 
construed to include correlative words of the feminine and neuter genders and vice versa, and 
words of the singular number shall be construed to include correlative words of the plural number 
and vice versa. 

(b) Any action required to be taken on a date which is not a Business Day shall be taken 
on the next succeeding Business Day and have the same effect as if taken on the date so required. 

(c) This Ordinance and all the terms and provisions hereof shall be liberally construed 
to effectuate the purposes set forth herein to sustain the validity of this Ordinance. 



-5- 
#6195040.6 

(d) Article and section references shall mean references to articles and sections of this 
Ordinance unless otherwise designated. 

ARTICLE II 
 

TAX LEVY; DEBT SERVICE FUND; PLEDGE OF REVENUES 

Section 2.1. Tax Levy. 

(a) Pursuant to the authority granted by the Texas Constitution and the laws of the 
State, there shall be levied and there is hereby levied for the current year and for each succeeding 
year thereafter while any of the Certificates or any interest thereon is outstanding and unpaid, an 
ad valorem tax on each one hundred dollars valuation of taxable property within the City, at a rate 
sufficient, within the limit prescribed by law, to pay the debt service requirements of the 
Certificates, being (i) the interest on the Certificates, and (ii) a sinking fund for their redemption at 
maturity or a sinking fund of 2% per annum (whichever amount is greater), when due and payable, 
full allowance being made for delinquencies and costs of collection. 

(b) The ad valorem tax thus levied shall be assessed and collected each year against all 
property appearing on the tax rolls of the City most recently approved in accordance with law and 
the money thus collected shall be deposited as collected to the Debt Service Fund. 

(c) Said ad valorem tax, the collections therefrom, and all amounts on deposit in or 
required hereby to be deposited to the Debt Service Fund are hereby pledged and committed 
irrevocably to the payment of the principal of and interest on the Certificates when and as due and 
payable in accordance with their terms and this Ordinance and associated expenses. 

Section 2.2. Debt Service Fund. 

(a) The City hereby establishes a special fund or account to be designated the “City of 
Alvin, Texas, Tax and Revenue Certificates of Obligation, Series 2020, Debt Service Fund” (the 
“Debt Service Fund”) with said fund to be maintained at an official depository bank of the City 
separate and apart from all other funds and accounts of the City. 

(b) Money on deposit in, or required by this Ordinance to be deposited to, the Debt 
Service Fund shall be used solely for the purpose of paying the interest on and principal of the 
Certificates when and as due and payable and associated costs in accordance with their terms and 
this Ordinance. 

(c) To pay debt service coming due on the Certificates prior to receipt of the taxes 
levied to pay such debt service, there is hereby appropriated from current funds on hand, which are 
hereby certified to be on hand and available for such purpose, an amount sufficient to pay such 
debt service, and such amount shall be used for no other purpose. 

Section 2.3. Pledge of Revenues. 

The Net Revenues to be derived from the operation of the System in an amount not to 
exceed $1,000 are hereby pledged to the payment of the principal of and interest on the Certificates 



-6- 
#6195040.6 

as the same come due; provided, however, that such pledge is and shall be junior and subordinate 
in all respects to the pledge of the Net Revenues to the payment of all outstanding obligations of 
the City and any obligation of the City, whether authorized heretofore or hereafter, that the City 
designates as having a pledge senior to the pledge of the Net Revenues to the payment of the 
Certificates.  The City also reserves the right to issue, for any lawful purpose at any time, in one 
or more installments, bonds, certificates of obligation and other obligations of any kind payable in 
whole or in part from the Net Revenues, secured by a pledge of the Net Revenues that may be 
prior and superior in right to, on a parity with, or junior and subordinate to the pledge of Net 
Revenues securing the Certificates.  The revenues of the System available after the payment of all 
operation and maintenance expenses of the System, any debt service payable from gross revenues 
or Net Revenues of the System, if any, as well as other payments, costs or expenses designated in 
an ordinance authorizing the issuance of System revenue obligations may be used for any lawful 
purpose of the City. 

ARTICLE III 
 

AUTHORIZATION; GENERAL TERMS AND PROVISIONS 
REGARDING THE CERTIFICATES 

Section 3.1. Authorization. 

The City’s “City of Alvin, Texas, Tax and Revenue Certificates of Obligation, Series 2020” 
are hereby authorized to be issued and delivered in accordance with the Constitution and laws of 
the State of Texas, specifically Subchapter C, Chapter 271, Texas Local Government Code, as 
amended. The Certificates shall be issued in the aggregate principal amount of $5,230,000 for the 
costs associated with (i) the construction of improvements to and the equipment of city streets, 
sidewalks, and related drainage facilities; (ii) the construction of improvements to and equipment 
of city parks and recreational facilities; and (iii) the costs of professional services related thereto. 
 

Section 3.2. Date, Denomination, Maturities, and Interest. 

(a) The Certificates shall be dated the Dated Date. The Certificates shall be in fully 
registered form, without coupons, in the denomination of $5,000 or any integral multiple thereof 
and shall be numbered separately from R-1 upward, except the Initial Certificate, which shall be 
numbered I-1. 

(b) The Certificates shall mature on November 1 in the years and in the principal 
amounts set forth in the following schedule: 
  



-7- 
#6195040.6 

Year 
Principal  
Amount 

Interest 
Rate 

 
Year 

Principal  
Amount 

Interest 
Rate 

2021     $265,000 4.000%  2031     $260,000 1.000% 
2022 265,000 4.000  2032 260,000 1.125 
2023 265,000 4.000  2033 260,000 1.375 
2024 265,000 4.000  2034 260,000 1.500 
2025 265,000 4.000  2035 260,000 1.625 
2026 260,000 4.000  2036 260,000 1.625 
2027 265,000 2.000  2037 260,000 1.750 
2028 260,000 4.000  2038 260,000 1.750 
2029 260,000 4.000  2039 260,000 1.750 
2030 260,000 4.000  2040 260,000 1.875 

       
(c) Interest shall accrue and be paid on each Certificate, respectively, until the principal 

amount thereof has been paid or provision for such payment has been made, from the later of the 
Closing Date or the most recent Interest Payment Date to which interest has been paid or provided 
for at the rate per annum for each respective maturity specified in the schedule contained in 
subsection (b) above. Such interest shall be payable semiannually on each Interest Payment Date, 
and shall be computed on the basis of a 360-day year composed of twelve 30-day months. 

Section 3.3. Medium, Method, and Place of Payment. 

(a) The principal of and interest on the Certificates shall be paid in lawful money of 
the United States of America. 

(b) Interest on the Certificates shall be paid by check dated as of the Interest Payment 
Date, and sent by first class United States mail, postage prepaid, by the Paying Agent/Registrar to 
each Owner, as shown in the Register at the close of business on the Record Date, at the address 
of each such Owner as such appears in the Register or by such other customary banking 
arrangements acceptable to the Paying Agent/Registrar and the person to whom interest is to be 
paid; provided, however, that such person shall bear all risk and expense of such other customary 
banking arrangements. 

(c) The principal of each Certificate shall be paid to the Owner thereof at Maturity or 
upon prior redemption upon presentation and surrender of such Certificate at the Designated 
Payment/Transfer Office of the Paying Agent/Registrar. 

(d) If the date for the payment of the principal of or interest on the Certificates is not a 
Business Day, the date for such payment shall be the next succeeding Business Day, and payment 
on such date shall for all purposes be deemed to have been made on the due date thereof as specified 
in this Section. 

(e) In the event of a nonpayment of interest on a scheduled payment date, and for 30 
days thereafter, a new record date for such interest payment (a “Special Record Date”) will be 
established by the Paying Agent/Registrar, if and when funds for the payment of such interest have 
been received from the City.  Notice of the Special Record Date and of the special payment date 
of past due interest (the “Special Payment Date”), which Special Payment Date should be 15 days 



-8- 
#6195040.6 

after the Special Record Date, shall be sent at least five Business Days prior to the Special Record 
Date by United States mail, first class, postage prepaid, to the address of each Owner of a 
Certificate appearing on the books of the Paying Agent/Registrar at the close of business on the 
fifteenth day next preceding the date of mailing of such notice. 

(f) Unclaimed Payments shall be segregated in a special account and held in trust, 
uninvested by the Paying Agent/Registrar, for the account of the Owner of the Certificates to which 
the Unclaimed Payments pertain.  Subject to Title 6, Texas Property Code, Unclaimed Payments 
remaining unclaimed by the Owners entitled thereto for three (3) years after the applicable payment 
or redemption date shall be applied to the next payment or payments on the Certificates thereafter 
coming due and, to the extent any such money remains after the retirement of all outstanding 
Certificates, shall be paid to the City to be used for any lawful purpose.  Thereafter, neither the 
City, the Paying Agent/Registrar nor any other person shall be liable or responsible to any holders 
of such Certificates for any further payment of such unclaimed moneys or on account of any such 
Certificates, subject to Title 6, Texas Property Code. 

Section 3.4. Execution and Registration of Certificates. 

(a) The Certificates shall be executed on behalf of the City by the Mayor or Mayor Pro 
Tem and the City Secretary, by their manual or facsimile signatures, and the official seal of the 
City shall be impressed or placed in facsimile thereon.  Such facsimile signatures on the Certificates 
shall have the same effect as if each of the Certificates had been signed manually and in person by 
each of said officers, and such facsimile seal on the Certificates shall have the same effect as if the 
official seal of the City had been manually impressed upon each of the Certificates. 

(b) In the event that any officer of the City whose manual or facsimile signature appears 
on the Certificates ceases to be such officer before the authentication of such Certificates or before 
the delivery thereof, such signature nevertheless shall be valid and sufficient for all purposes as if 
such officer had remained in such office. 

(c) Except as provided below, no Certificate shall be valid or obligatory for any 
purpose or be entitled to any security or benefit of this Ordinance unless and until there appears 
thereon the Certificate of Paying Agent/Registrar substantially in the form provided herein, duly 
authenticated by manual execution by an officer or duly authorized signatory of the Paying 
Agent/Registrar.  It shall not be required that the same officer or authorized signatory of the Paying 
Agent/Registrar sign the Certificate of Paying Agent/Registrar on all of the Certificates.  In lieu of 
the executed Certificate of Paying Agent/Registrar described above, the Initial Certificate delivered 
at the Closing Date shall have attached thereto the Comptroller’s Registration Certificate 
substantially in the form provided herein, manually executed by the Comptroller of Public 
Accounts of the State, or by his duly authorized agent, which certificate shall be evidence that the 
Initial Certificate has been duly approved by the Attorney General of the State and that it is a valid 
and binding obligation of the City, and that it has been registered by the Comptroller of Public 
Accounts of the State. 

(d) On the Closing Date, one initial Certificate (the “Initial Certificate”), representing 
the entire principal amount of the Certificates, payable in stated installments to the Initial Purchaser 
or its designee, executed by manual or facsimile signatures of the Mayor or Mayor Pro Tem and 



-9- 
#6195040.6 

the City Secretary of the City, approved by the Attorney General of the State, and registered and 
manually signed by the Comptroller of Public Accounts of the State, will be delivered to the Initial 
Purchaser or its designee.  Upon payment for the Initial Certificate, the Paying Agent/Registrar 
shall cancel the  Initial Certificate and deliver registered definitive Certificates to DTC in 
accordance with Section 3.9 hereof. To the extent the Paying Agent/Registrar is eligible to 
participate in DTC’s FAST System, as evidenced by an agreement between the Paying 
Agent/Registrar and DTC, the Paying Agent/Registrar shall hold the definitive Certificates in 
safekeeping for DTC. 

Section 3.5. Ownership. 

(a) The City, the Paying Agent/Registrar and any other person may treat the Owner as 
the absolute owner of such Certificate for the purpose of making and receiving payment of the 
principal thereof, for the purpose of making and receiving payment of the interest thereon (subject 
to the provisions herein that the interest is to be paid to the person in whose name the Certificate is 
registered on the Record Date or Special Record Date, as applicable), and for all other purposes, 
whether or not such Certificate is overdue, and neither the City nor the Paying Agent/Registrar 
shall be bound by any notice or knowledge to the contrary. 

(b) All payments made to the Owner of a Certificate shall be valid and effectual and 
shall discharge the liability of the City and the Paying Agent/Registrar upon such Certificate to the 
extent of the sums paid. 

Section 3.6. Registration, Transfer, and Exchange. 

(a) So long as any Certificates remain outstanding, the City shall cause the Paying 
Agent/Registrar to keep at its Designated Payment/Transfer Office a register (the “Register”) in 
which, subject to such reasonable regulations as it may prescribe, the Paying Agent/Registrar shall 
provide for the registration and transfer of Certificates in accordance with this Ordinance. 

(b) The ownership of a Certificate may be transferred only upon the presentation and 
surrender of the Certificate to the Paying Agent/Registrar at the Designated Payment/Transfer 
Office with such endorsement or other instrument of transfer and assignment as is acceptable to 
the Paying Agent/Registrar.  No transfer of any Certificate shall be effective until entered in the 
Register. 

(c) The Certificates shall be exchangeable upon the presentation and surrender thereof 
at the Designated Payment/Transfer Office for a Certificate or Certificates of the same maturity 
and interest rate and in any denomination or denominations of any integral multiple of $5,000, and 
in an aggregate principal amount equal to the unpaid principal amount of the Certificates presented 
for exchange.  

(d) The Paying Agent/Registrar is hereby authorized to authenticate and deliver 
Certificates transferred or exchanged in accordance with this Section.  A new Certificate or 
Certificates will be delivered by the Paying Agent/Registrar, in lieu of the Certificate being 
transferred or exchanged, at the Designated Payment/Transfer Office, or sent by United States mail, 
first class, postage prepaid, to the Owner or his designee.  Each Certificate delivered by the Paying 
Agent/Registrar in accordance with this Section shall constitute an original contractual obligation 



-10- 
#6195040.6 

of the City and shall be entitled to the benefits and security of this Ordinance to the same extent as 
the Certificate or Certificates in lieu of which such Certificate is delivered. 

(e) No service charge shall be made to the Owner for the initial registration, subsequent 
transfer, or exchange for a different denomination of any of the Certificates.  The Paying 
Agent/Registrar, however, may require the Owner to pay a sum sufficient to cover any tax or other 
governmental charge that is authorized to be imposed in connection with the registration, transfer, 
or exchange of a Certificate. 

(f) Neither the City nor the Paying Agent/Registrar shall be required to transfer or 
exchange any Certificate called for redemption, in whole or in part, within 45 days prior to the date 
fixed for redemption; provided, however, such limitation shall not be applicable to an exchange by 
the Owner of the uncalled balance of a Certificate. 

Section 3.7. Cancellation. 

All Certificates paid or redeemed before scheduled maturity in accordance with this 
Ordinance, and all Certificates in lieu of which exchange Certificates or replacement Certificates 
are authenticated and delivered in accordance with this Ordinance, shall be cancelled and proper 
records made regarding such payment, redemption, exchange, or replacement.  The Paying 
Agent/Registrar shall dispose of such cancelled Certificates in the manner required by the 
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. 

Section 3.8. Replacement Certificates. 

(a) Upon the presentation and surrender to the Paying Agent/Registrar of a mutilated 
Certificate, the Paying Agent/Registrar shall authenticate and deliver in exchange therefor a 
replacement Certificate of like tenor and principal amount, bearing a number not 
contemporaneously outstanding.  The City or the Paying Agent/Registrar may require the Owner 
of such Certificate to pay a sum sufficient to cover any tax or other governmental charge that is 
authorized to be imposed in connection therewith and any other expenses connected therewith. 

(b) In the event that any Certificate is lost, apparently destroyed or wrongfully taken, 
the Paying Agent/Registrar, pursuant to the applicable laws of the State and in the absence of notice 
or knowledge that such Certificate has been acquired by a bona fide purchaser, shall authenticate 
and deliver a replacement Certificate of like tenor and principal amount, bearing a number not 
contemporaneously outstanding, provided that the Owner first complies with the following 
requirements: 

(i) furnishes to the Paying Agent/Registrar satisfactory evidence of his or her 
ownership of and the circumstances of the loss, destruction, or theft of such Certificate; 

(ii) furnishes such security or indemnity as may be required by the Paying 
Agent/Registrar to save it and the City harmless; 

(iii) pays all expenses and charges in connection therewith, including, but not 
limited to, printing costs, legal fees, fees of the Paying Agent/Registrar, and any tax or 
other governmental charge that is authorized to be imposed; and 



-11- 
#6195040.6 

(iv) satisfies any other reasonable requirements imposed by the City and the 
Paying Agent/Registrar. 

(c) If, after the delivery of such replacement Certificate, a bona fide purchaser of the 
original Certificate in lieu of which such replacement Certificate was issued presents for payment 
such original Certificate, the City and the Paying Agent/Registrar shall be entitled to recover such 
replacement Certificate from the person to whom it was delivered or any person taking therefrom, 
except a bona fide purchaser, and shall be entitled to recover upon the security or indemnity 
provided therefor to the extent of any loss, damage, cost, or expense incurred by the City or the 
Paying Agent/Registrar in connection therewith. 

(d) In the event that any such mutilated, lost, apparently destroyed, or wrongfully taken 
Certificate has become or is about to become due and payable, the Paying Agent/Registrar, in its 
discretion, instead of issuing a replacement Certificate, may pay such Certificate when it becomes 
due and payable. 

(e) Each replacement Certificate delivered in accordance with this Section shall 
constitute an original additional contractual obligation of the City and shall be entitled to the 
benefits and security of this Ordinance to the same extent as the Certificate or Certificates in lieu 
of which such replacement Certificate is delivered. 

Section 3.9. Book-Entry-Only System. 

(a) The definitive Certificates shall be initially issued in the form of a separate single 
fully registered Certificate for each maturity.  Upon initial issuance, the ownership of each such 
Certificate shall be registered in the name of Cede & Co., as nominee of DTC, and except as 
provided in Section 3.10 hereof, all of the outstanding Certificates shall be registered in the name 
of Cede & Co., as nominee of DTC. 

(b) With respect to Certificates registered in the name of Cede & Co., as nominee of 
DTC, the City and the Paying Agent/Registrar shall have no responsibility or obligation to any 
DTC Participant or to any person on behalf of whom such a DTC Participant holds an interest in 
the Certificates, except as provided in this Ordinance.  Without limiting the immediately preceding 
sentence, the City and the Paying Agent/Registrar shall have no responsibility or obligation with 
respect to (i) the accuracy of the records of DTC, Cede & Co. or any DTC Participant with respect 
to any ownership interest in the Certificates, (ii) the delivery to any DTC Participant or any other 
person, other than an Owner, as shown on the Register, of any notice with respect to the 
Certificates, including any notice of redemption, or (iii) the payment to any DTC Participant or any 
other person, other than an Owner, as shown in the Register of any amount with respect to principal 
of, premium, if any, or interest on the Certificates.  Notwithstanding any other provision of this 
Ordinance to the contrary, the City and the Paying Agent/Registrar shall be entitled to treat and 
consider the person in whose name each Certificate is registered in the Register as the absolute 
Owner of such Certificate for the purpose of payment of principal of, premium, if any, and interest 
on the Certificates, for the purpose of giving notices of redemption and other matters with respect 
to such Certificate, for the purpose of registering transfer with respect to such Certificate, and for 
all other purposes whatsoever.  The Paying Agent/Registrar shall pay all principal of, premium, if 
any, and interest on the Certificates only to or upon the order of the respective Owners, as shown 



-12- 
#6195040.6 

in the Register as provided in this Ordinance, or their respective attorneys duly authorized in 
writing, and all such payments shall be valid and effective to fully satisfy and discharge the City’s 
obligations with respect to payment of principal of, premium, if any, and interest on the Certificates 
to the extent of the sum or sums so paid.  No person other than an Owner, as shown in the Register, 
shall receive a certificate evidencing the obligation of the City to make payments of amounts due 
pursuant to this Ordinance.  Upon delivery by DTC to the Paying Agent/Registrar of written notice 
to the effect that DTC has determined to substitute a new nominee in place of Cede & Co., and 
subject to the provisions in this Ordinance with respect to interest checks or drafts being mailed to 
the registered Owner at the close of business on the Record Date, the word “Cede & Co.” in this 
Ordinance shall refer to such new nominee of DTC. 

(c) The Representation Letter previously executed and delivered by the City, and 
applicable to the City’s obligations delivered in book entry only form to DTC as securities 
depository, is hereby ratified and approved for the Certificates. 

Section 3.10. Successor Securities Depository; Transfer Outside Book-Entry-Only 
System. 

In the event that the City determines that it is in the best interest of the City and the 
beneficial owners of the Certificates that they be able to obtain certificated Certificates, or in the 
event DTC discontinues the services described herein, the City shall (i) appoint a successor 
securities depository, qualified to act as such under Section 17(a) of the Securities Exchange Act 
of 1934, as amended, notify DTC and DTC Participants of the appointment of such successor 
securities depository and transfer one or more separate Certificates to such successor securities 
depository; or (ii) notify DTC and DTC Participants of the availability through DTC of certificated 
Certificates and cause the Paying Agent/Registrar to transfer one or more separate registered 
Certificates to DTC Participants having Certificates credited to their DTC accounts.  In such event, 
the Certificates shall no longer be restricted to being registered in the Register in the name of Cede 
& Co., as nominee of DTC, but may be registered in the name of the successor securities 
depository, or its nominee, or in whatever name or names Owners transferring or exchanging 
Certificates shall designate, in accordance with the provisions of this Ordinance. 

Section 3.11. Payments to Cede & Co. 

Notwithstanding any other provision of this Ordinance to the contrary, so long as the 
Certificates are registered in the name of Cede & Co., as nominee of DTC, all payments with 
respect to principal of, premium, if any, and interest on such Certificates, and all notices with 
respect to such Certificates shall be made and given, respectively, in the manner provided in the 
Representation Letter of the City to DTC. 

ARTICLE IV 
 

REDEMPTION OF CERTIFICATES BEFORE MATURITY 

Section 4.1. Limitation on Redemption. 

The Certificates shall be subject to redemption before scheduled maturity only as provided 
in this Article IV. 



-13- 
#6195040.6 

Section 4.2. Optional Redemption. 

(a) The City has reserved the right to redeem at its option the Certificates maturing on 
and after November 1, 2030, in whole or from time to time in part, before their respective scheduled 
maturity dates, on November 1, 2029, or on any date thereafter, at a redemption price equal to the 
principal amount thereof plus accrued interest to the date of redemption. 

(b) The City, at least 45 days before the redemption date, unless a shorter period shall 
be satisfactory to the Paying Agent/Registrar, shall notify the Paying Agent/Registrar of such 
redemption and of the principal amount of Certificates to be redeemed. 

Section 4.3. Partial Redemption. 

(a) If less than all of the Certificates are to be redeemed pursuant to Section 4.2 hereof, 
the City shall determine the maturity or maturities and the amounts thereof to be redeemed and 
shall direct the Paying Agent/Registrar to call by lot, or other customary method that results in 
random selection, the Certificates, or portions thereof, within such maturity or maturities and in 
such principal amounts for redemption. 

(b) A portion of a single Certificate of a denomination greater than $5,000 may be 
redeemed, but only in a principal amount equal to $5,000 or any integral multiple thereof.  If such 
a Certificate is to be partially redeemed, the Paying Agent/Registrar shall treat each $5,000 portion 
of the Certificate as though it were a single Certificate for purposes of selection for redemption. 

(c) Upon surrender of any Certificate for redemption in part, the Paying 
Agent/Registrar, in accordance with Section 3.6 of this Ordinance, shall authenticate and deliver 
an exchange Certificate or Certificates in an aggregate principal amount equal to the unredeemed 
portion of the Certificate so surrendered, such exchange being without charge. 

(d) The Paying Agent/Registrar shall promptly notify the City in writing of the 
principal amount to be redeemed of any Certificate as to which only a portion thereof is to be 
redeemed. 

Section 4.4. Notice of Redemption to Owners. 

(a) The Paying Agent/Registrar shall give notice of any redemption of Certificates by 
sending notice by United States mail, first class postage prepaid, not less than 30 days before the 
date fixed for redemption, to the Owner of each Certificate (or part thereof) to be redeemed, at the 
address shown on the Register at the close of business on the Business Day next preceding the date 
of mailing such notice. 

(b) The notice shall state the redemption date, the redemption price, the place at which 
the Certificates are to be surrendered for payment, and if less than all Certificates outstanding are 
to be redeemed and subject to Section 4.3 hereof, an identification of the Certificates or portions 
thereof to be redeemed. 

(c) The City reserves the right to give notice of its election or direction to redeem 
Certificates under Section 4.2 conditioned upon the occurrence of subsequent events.  Such notice 



-14- 
#6195040.6 

may state (i) that the redemption is conditioned upon the deposit of moneys and/or authorized 
securities, in an amount equal to the amount necessary to effect the redemption, with the Paying 
Agent/Registrar, or such other entity as may be authorized by law, no later than the redemption 
date or (ii) that the City retains the right to rescind such notice at any time prior to the scheduled 
redemption date if the City delivers a certificate of the City to the Paying Agent/Registrar 
instructing the Paying Agent/Registrar to rescind the redemption notice, and such notice and 
redemption shall be of no effect if such moneys and/or authorized securities are not so deposited 
or if the notice is rescinded.  The Paying Agent/Registrar shall give prompt notice of any such 
rescission of a conditional notice of redemption to the affected Owners.  Any Certificates subject 
to conditional redemption where redemption has been rescinded shall remain outstanding and the 
rescission of such redemption shall not constitute an event of default. Further, in case of a 
conditional redemption, the failure of the City to make moneys and/or authorized securities 
available in whole or in part on or before the redemption date shall not constitute an event of 
default. 

(d) Any notice given as provided in this Section shall be conclusively presumed to have 
been duly given, whether or not the Owner receives such notice. 

Section 4.5. Payment Upon Redemption. 

(a) Before or on each redemption date, the City shall deposit with the Paying 
Agent/Registrar money sufficient to pay all amounts due on the redemption date and the Paying 
Agent/Registrar shall make provision for the payment of the Certificates to be redeemed on such 
date by setting aside and holding in trust such amounts as are received by the Paying 
Agent/Registrar from the City and shall use such funds solely for the purpose of paying the 
principal of, redemption premium, if any, and accrued interest on the Certificates being redeemed. 

(b) Upon presentation and surrender of any Certificate called for redemption at the 
Designated Payment/Transfer Office of the Paying Agent/Registrar on or after the date fixed for 
redemption, the Paying Agent/Registrar shall pay the principal of, redemption premium, if any, 
and accrued interest on such Certificate to the date of redemption from the money set aside for 
such purpose. 

Section 4.6. Effect of Redemption. 

(a) When Certificates have been called for redemption in whole or in part and due 
provision has been made to redeem same as herein provided, the Certificates or portions thereof so 
redeemed shall no longer be regarded as outstanding except for the purpose of receiving payment 
solely from the funds so provided for redemption, and the rights of the Owners to collect interest 
which would otherwise accrue after the redemption date on any Certificate or portion thereof called 
for redemption shall terminate on the date fixed for redemption.  If the City shall fail to make 
provision for payment of all sums due on a redemption date, then any Certificate or portion thereof 
called for redemption shall continue to bear interest at the rate stated on the Certificate until due 
provision is made for the payment of same. 



-15- 
#6195040.6 

(b) If the City shall fail to make provision for payment of all sums due on a redemption 
date, then any Certificate or portion thereof called for redemption shall continue to bear interest at 
the rate stated on the Certificate until due provision is made for the payment of same by the City. 

Section 4.7. Lapse of Payment.  Money set aside for the redemption of the Certificates 
and remaining unclaimed by the Owners thereof shall be subject to the provisions of Section 3.3(f) 
hereof. 

ARTICLE V 
 

PAYING AGENT/REGISTRAR 

Section 5.1. Appointment of Initial Paying Agent/Registrar. 

(a) The City hereby appoints Zions Bancorporation, National Association, Amegy 
Bank Division, Houston, Texas, as its initial registrar and transfer agent (the “Paying 
Agent/Registrar”) to keep such books or records and make such transfers and registrations under 
such reasonable regulations as the City and the Paying Agent/Registrar may prescribe; and the 
Paying Agent/Registrar shall make such transfer and registrations as herein provided.  It shall be 
the duty of the Paying Agent/Registrar to obtain from the Owners and record in the Register the 
address of such Owner of each Certificate to which payments with respect to the Certificates shall 
be mailed, as provided herein.  The City or its designee shall have the right to inspect the Register 
during regular business hours of the Paying Agent/Registrar, but otherwise the Paying 
Agent/Registrar shall keep the Register confidential and, unless otherwise required by law, shall 
not permit its inspection by any other entity. 

(b) The City hereby further appoints the Paying Agent/Registrar to act as the paying 
agent for paying the principal of and interest on the Certificates.  The Paying Agent/Registrar shall 
keep proper records of all payments made by the City and the Paying Agent/Registrar with respect 
to the Certificates, and of all conversions, exchanges and replacements of such Certificates, as 
provided in the Ordinance. 

(c) The form of Paying Agent/Registrar Agreement is hereby approved. The City 
hereby approves and the Mayor or Mayor Pro Tem and the City Secretary are hereby authorized to 
execute and deliver a Paying Agent/Registrar Agreement, specifying the duties and responsibilities 
of the City and the Paying Agent/Registrar. 

Section 5.2. Qualifications.   

Each Paying Agent/Registrar shall be a commercial bank or trust company organized under 
the laws of the State, or any other entity duly qualified and legally authorized to serve as and 
perform the duties and services of paying agent and registrar for the Certificates. 

Section 5.3. Maintaining Paying Agent/Registrar.   

(a) At all times while any Certificates are outstanding, the City will maintain a Paying 
Agent/Registrar that is qualified under Section 5.2 of this Ordinance. 



-16- 
#6195040.6 

(b) If the Paying Agent/Registrar resigns or otherwise ceases to serve as such, the City 
will promptly appoint a replacement, provided no such resignation shall be effective until a 
successor Paying Agent/Registrar has accepted the duties of Paying Agent/Registrar for the 
Certificates. 

Section 5.4. Termination.   

The City reserves the right to terminate the appointment of any Paying Agent/Registrar by 
delivering to the entity whose appointment is to be terminated (i) 45 days written notice of the 
termination of the appointment and of the Paying Agent/Registrar Agreement, stating the effective 
date of such termination, and (ii) appointing a successor Paying Agent/Registrar; provided, that, 
no such termination shall be effective until a successor Paying Agent/Registrar has assumed the 
duties of Paying Agent/Registrar for the Certificates. 

Section 5.5. Notice of Change to Owners.   

Promptly upon each change in the entity serving as Paying Agent/Registrar, the City will 
cause notice of the change to be sent to each Owner by United States mail, first class, postage 
prepaid, at the address in the Register, stating the effective date of the change and the name and 
mailing address of the replacement Paying Agent/Registrar. 

Section 5.6. Agreement to Perform Duties and Functions.   

By accepting the appointment as Paying Agent/Registrar, the Paying Agent/Registrar is 
deemed to have agreed to the provisions of this Ordinance and that it will perform the duties and 
functions of Paying Agent/Registrar prescribed hereby and under the Paying Agent/Registrar 
Agreement. 

Section 5.7. Delivery of Records to Successor.   

If a Paying Agent/Registrar is replaced, such Paying Agent/Registrar, promptly upon the 
appointment of the successor, will deliver the Register (or a copy thereof) and all other pertinent 
books and records relating to the Certificates to the successor Paying Agent/Registrar. 

ARTICLE VI 
 

FORM OF THE CERTIFICATES 

Section 6.1. Form Generally. 

(a) The Certificates, including the Registration Certificate of the Comptroller of Public 
Accounts of the State, the Certificate of the Paying Agent/Registrar, the Assignment form and the 
Statement of Insurance, if any, to appear on each of the Certificates, (i) shall be substantially in the 
form set forth in this Article, with such appropriate insertions, omissions, substitutions, and other 
variations as are permitted or required by this Ordinance, and (ii) may have such letters, numbers, 
or other marks of identification (including identifying numbers and letters of the Committee on 
Uniform Securities Identification Procedures of the American Bankers Association) and such 
legends and endorsements (including any reproduction of an opinion of counsel) thereon as, 



-17- 
#6195040.6 

consistently herewith, may be determined by the City or by the officers executing such Certificates, 
as evidenced by their execution thereof. 

(b) Any portion of the text of any Certificates may be set forth on the reverse side 
thereof, with an appropriate reference thereto on the face of the Certificates.  

(c) The definitive Certificates, if any, shall be typewritten, photocopied, printed, 
lithographed, or engraved, and may be produced by any combination of these methods or produced 
in any other similar manner, all as determined by the officers executing such Certificates, as 
evidenced by their execution thereof. 

(d) The Initial Certificate submitted to the Attorney General of the State may be 
typewritten and photocopied or otherwise reproduced.  

Section 6.2. Form of the Certificates. 

The form of the Certificates, including the form of the Registration Certificate of the 
Comptroller of Public Accounts of the State, the form of Certificate of the Paying Agent/Registrar 
and the form of Assignment appearing on the Certificates, shall be substantially as follows: 

(a) Form of Certificate. 

REGISTERED 
NO. _____ 

REGISTERED 
$_________ 

 
UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 

STATE OF TEXAS 
COUNTY OF BRAZORIA 

 
CITY OF ALVIN, TEXAS 

TAX AND REVENUE CERTIFICATE OF OBLIGATION 
SERIES 2020 

 
INTEREST RATE: MATURITY DATE: CLOSING DATE: CUSIP NUMBER: 

______% November 1, 20__ August 27, 2020 ___________ 
 
The City of Alvin (the “City”), in the County of Brazoria, State of Texas, for value 

received, hereby promises to pay to 
 

________________________________ 
 
or registered assigns, on the Maturity Date specified above, the sum of 
 

________________________ DOLLARS 
 

and to pay interest on such principal amount from the later of the Closing Date specified above or 
the most recent interest payment date to which interest has been paid or provided for until payment 



-18- 
#6195040.6 

of such principal amount has been paid or provided for, at the per annum rate of interest specified 
above, computed on the basis of a 360-day year of twelve 30-day months, such interest to be paid 
semiannually on May 1 and November 1 of each year, commencing on November 1, 2020. 
 

The principal of this Certificate shall be payable without exchange or collection charges in 
lawful money of the United States of America upon presentation and surrender of this Certificate 
at the corporate trust office Zions Bancorporation, National Association, Amegy Bank Division, 
Houston, Texas, or such other location designated by the Paying Agent/Registrar (the “Designated 
Payment/Transfer Office”), of the Paying Agent/Registrar or, with respect to a successor Paying 
Agent/Registrar, at the Designated Payment/Transfer Office of such successor.  Interest on this 
Certificate is payable by check dated as of the interest payment date, and will be mailed by the 
Paying Agent/Registrar to the registered owner at the address shown on the registration books kept 
by the Paying Agent/Registrar or by such other customary banking arrangement acceptable to the 
Paying Agent/Registrar and the registered owner; provided, however, such registered owner shall 
bear all risk and expenses of such customary banking arrangement.  For the purpose of the payment 
of interest on this Certificate, the registered owner shall be the person in whose name this 
Certificate is registered at the close of business on the “Record Date,” which shall be the fifteenth 
day of the month next preceding such interest payment date.  In the event of a nonpayment of 
interest on a scheduled payment date, and for 30 days thereafter, a new record date for such interest 
payment (a “Special Record Date”) will be established by the Paying Agent/Registrar, if and when 
funds for the payment of such interest have been received from the City.  Notice of the Special 
Record Date and of the special payment date of the past due interest (the “Special Payment Date,” 
which date shall be 15 days after the Special Record Date) shall be sent at least five business days 
prior to the Special Record Date by United States mail, first class, postage prepaid, to the address 
of each owner of a Certificate appearing on the books of the Paying Agent/Registrar at the close 
of business on the last day next preceding the date of mailing of such notice. 

If the date for the payment of the principal of or interest on this Certificate is not a Business 
Day, the date for such payment shall be the next succeeding day which is not a Saturday, Sunday 
or legal holiday, or day on which banking institutions in the State of Texas or the city in which the 
Designated Payment/Transfer Office of the Paying Agent/Registrar is located are generally 
authorized or obligated by law or executive order to close (a “Business Day”), and payment on 
such date shall for all purposes be deemed to have been made on the original date payment was 
due. 

This Certificate is dated August 1, 2020 and is one of a series of fully registered certificates 
specified in the title hereof issued in the aggregate principal amount of $5,230,000 (herein referred 
to as the “Certificates”), issued pursuant to a certain ordinance of the City (the “Ordinance”) for 
the costs associated with the construction of improvements to and the equipment of city streets, 
sidewalks, and related drainage facilities; the construction of improvements to and equipment of 
city parks and recreational facilities; and the costs of professional services thereto. 
 

The City has reserved the right to redeem the Certificates maturing on and after November 
1, 2030, in whole or from time to time in part, before their respective scheduled maturity dates, on 
November 1, 2029, or on any date thereafter, at a redemption price equal to the principal amount 
thereof plus accrued interest to the date of redemption.  If less than all of the Certificates are to be 
redeemed, the City shall determine the maturity or maturities and the amounts thereof to be 



-19- 
#6195040.6 

redeemed and shall direct the Paying Agent/Registrar to call by lot the Certificates, or portions 
thereof, within such maturity and in such principal amounts, for redemption. 

Not less than 30 days prior to a redemption date for the Certificates, the City shall cause a 
notice of redemption to be sent by United States mail, first class, postage prepaid, to the Owners 
of the Certificates to be redeemed at the address of the Owner appearing on the registration books 
of the Paying Agent/Registrar at the close of business on the business day next preceding the date 
of mailing such notice. 

The City reserves the right to give notice of its election or direction to redeem Certificates 
pursuant to an optional redemption conditioned upon the occurrence of subsequent events.  Such 
notice may state (i) that the redemption is conditioned upon the deposit of moneys and/or 
authorized securities, in an amount equal to the amount necessary to effect the redemption, with 
the Paying Agent/Registrar, or such other entity as may be authorized by law, no later than the 
redemption date, or (ii) that the City retains the right to rescind such notice at any time on or prior 
to the scheduled redemption date if the City delivers a certificate of the City to the Paying 
Agent/Registrar instructing the Paying Agent/Registrar to rescind the redemption notice and such 
notice and redemption shall be of no effect if such moneys and/or authorized securities are not so 
deposited or if the notice is rescinded.  The Paying Agent/Registrar shall give prompt notice of 
any such rescission of a conditional notice of redemption to the affected Owners.  Any Certificates 
subject to conditional redemption and such redemption has been rescinded shall remain 
Outstanding and the rescission of such redemption shall not constitute an event of default.  Further, 
in the case of a conditional redemption, the failure of the City to make moneys and or authorized 
securities available in part or in whole on or before the redemption date shall not constitute an 
event of default. 

Any notice so mailed shall be conclusively presumed to have been duly given, whether or 
not the registered owner receives such notice.  Notice having been so given and subject, in the case 
of an optional redemption, to any rights or conditions reserved by the City in the notice, the 
Certificates called for redemption shall become due and payable on the specified redemption date, 
and notwithstanding that any Certificate or portion thereof has not been surrendered for payment, 
interest on such Certificates or portions thereof shall cease to accrue. 

As provided in the Ordinance, and subject to certain limitations therein set forth, this 
Certificate is transferable upon surrender of this Certificate for transfer at the designated office of 
the Paying Agent/Registrar with such endorsement or other evidence of transfer as is acceptable 
to the Paying Agent/Registrar; thereupon, one or more new fully registered Certificates of the same 
stated maturity, of authorized denominations, bearing the same rate of interest, and for the same 
aggregate principal amount will be issued to the designated transferee or transferees. 

The City, the Paying Agent/Registrar, and any other person may treat the person in whose 
name this Certificate is registered as the owner hereof for the purpose of receiving payment as 
herein provided (except interest shall be paid to the person in whose name this Certificate is 
registered on the Record Date) and for all other purposes, whether or not this Certificate be 
overdue, and neither the City nor the Paying Agent/Registrar shall be affected by notice to the 
contrary.  



-20- 
#6195040.6 

IT IS HEREBY certified, recited and covenanted that this Certificate has been duly and 
validly issued and delivered; that all acts, conditions and things required or proper to be performed, 
to exist and to be done precedent to or in the issuance and delivery of this Certificate have been 
performed, exist and have been done in accordance with law; and that annual ad valorem taxes, 
within the limits prescribed by law, sufficient to provide for the payment of the interest on and 
principal of this Certificate, as such interest comes due and such principal matures, have been 
levied and ordered to be levied against all taxable property in the City. 

IT IS FURTHER certified, recited and represented that the Net Revenues (as defined in the 
Ordinance) of the City’s water and sewer system are pledged to the payment of the principal of 
and interest on the Certificates in an amount not to exceed $1,000; provided, however, that such 
pledge is junior and subordinate in all respects to the pledge of the Net Revenues to the payment 
of all outstanding obligations of the City and any obligation of the City, whether authorized 
heretofore or hereafter, which the City designates as having a pledge senior to the pledge of the 
Net Revenues to the payment of the Certificates.  The City also reserves the right to issue, for any 
lawful purpose at any time, in one or more installments, bonds, certificates of obligation and other 
obligations of any kind payable in whole or in part from the Net Revenues, secured by a pledge of 
the Net Revenues that may be prior and superior in right to, on a parity with, or junior and 
subordinate to the pledge of the Net Revenues securing the Certificates. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the City has caused this Certificate to be executed by the 
manual or facsimile signature of the Mayor or Mayor Pro Tem of the City and countersigned by 
the manual or facsimile signature of the City Secretary, and the official seal of the City has been 
duly impressed or placed in facsimile on this Certificate.  

 
  
City Secretary 
City of Alvin, Texas 

  
  
Mayor [Pro Tem] 1 
City of Alvin, Texas 

 
[SEAL] 

  

 
1 Delete if the Mayor executes the Initial Certificate 



-21- 
#6195040.6 

(b) Form of Comptroller’s Registration Certificate.   

REGISTRATION CERTIFICATE OF 
COMPTROLLER OF PUBLIC ACCOUNTS 

OFFICE OF THE COMPTROLLER  § 
OF PUBLIC ACCOUNTS   § REGISTER NO. ___________________ 
THE STATE OF TEXAS   § 
 

I HEREBY CERTIFY THAT this Certificate has been examined, certified as to validity, 
and approved by the Attorney General of the State of Texas and that this Certificate has been 
registered by the Comptroller of Public Accounts of the State of Texas. 

WITNESS MY SIGNATURE AND SEAL OF OFFICE this ______________________. 

 
       ____________________________________ 
[SEAL]              Comptroller of Public Accounts 
                        of the State of Texas 
 

(c) Form of Certificate of Paying Agent/Registrar. 

The following Certificate of Paying Agent/Registrar may be deleted from the Initial 
Certificate if the Comptroller’s Registration Certificate appears thereon. 

CERTIFICATE OF PAYING AGENT/REGISTRAR 

The records of the Paying Agent/Registrar show that the Initial Certificate of this series of 
certificates of obligation was approved by the Attorney General of the State of Texas and registered 
by the Comptroller of Public Accounts of the State of Texas, and that this is one of the Certificates 
referred to in the within-mentioned Ordinance. 

ZIONS BANCORPORATION, NATIONAL  
ASSOCIATION, AMEGY BANK DIVISION, 

 as Paying Agent/Registrar 
 
 
Dated: _______________________ By:  __________________________________ 
  Authorized Signatory 
 

  



-22- 
#6195040.6 

(d) Form of Assignment. 

ASSIGNMENT 

FOR VALUE RECEIVED, the undersigned hereby sells, assigns, and transfers unto (print or 
typewrite name, address and zip code of transferee):  ___________________________________ 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

(Social Security or other identifying number: ____________________) the within Certificate and 
all rights hereunder and hereby irrevocably constitutes and appoints ____________________ 
attorney to transfer the within Certificate on the books kept for registration hereof, with full power 
of substitution in the premises. 

  

Dated: ____________________________ 

Signature Guaranteed By: 

___________________________________ 

___________________________________ 
Authorized Signatory 

NOTICE: The signature on this Assignment 
must correspond with the name of the 
registered owner as it appears on the face of 
the within Certificate in every particular and 
must be guaranteed in a manner acceptable to 
the Paying Agent/Registrar. 

 

(e) The Initial Certificate shall be in the form set forth in paragraphs (a), (b) and (d) of 
this Section, except for the following alterations: 

(i) immediately under the name of the Certificate the headings “INTEREST 
RATE” and “MATURITY DATE” shall both be completed with the expression “As Shown 
Below” and “CUSIP NUMBER ________” deleted; and 

(ii) in the first paragraph of the Certificate, the words “on the Maturity Date 
specified above, the sum of _________DOLLARS” shall be deleted and the following will 
be inserted: “on November 1 in each of the years, in the principal installments and bearing 
interest at the per annum rates set forth in the following schedule:” 

(Information to be inserted from schedule in Section 3.2 of the Ordinance) 

(iii) the Initial Certificate shall be numbered I-1. 

Section 6.3. CUSIP Registration.   

The City may secure identification numbers through the CUSIP Global Services, which is 
managed on behalf of the American Bankers Association by S&P Global Market Intelligence, or 



-23- 
#6195040.6 

another entity that provides securities identification numbers for municipal securities, and may 
print such numbers on the face of the Certificates. It is expressly provided, however, that the 
presence or absence of CUSIP numbers on the Certificates or any errors or omissions in the 
printing of such number shall be of no significance or effect in regard to the legality thereof and 
neither the City nor Bond Counsel to the City are to be held responsible for CUSIP numbers 
incorrectly printed on the Certificates. 

Section 6.4. Legal Opinion. 

The approving legal opinion of Bond Counsel may be attached to or printed on the reverse 
side of each Certificate over the certification of the City Secretary of the City, which may be 
executed in facsimile. 

ARTICLE VII 
 

SALE AND DELIVERY OF CERTIFICATES; DEPOSIT OF PROCEEDS; OFFICIAL 
STATEMENT 

Section 7.1. Sale of Certificates. 

(a) The sale and delivery of the Certificates, having been duly advertised and offered 
for sale at competitive bid, are hereby sold and awarded to Robert W. Baird & Co., Inc. (the “Initial 
Purchaser”) for a purchase price equal to the principal amount thereof plus a cash premium of 
$395,451.77, being the bid which produced the lowest true interest cost, subject to the approving 
opinion as to the legality of the Certificates of the Attorney General of the Texas and the opinion 
of Bond Counsel.  The Initial Certificate shall be registered in the name of the Initial Purchaser or 
its designee.  The Mayor or Mayor Pro Tem and all other officers, agents and representatives of 
the City are hereby authorized to do any and all things necessary or desirable to satisfy the 
conditions to and to provide for the issuance and delivery of the Certificates. 

Section 7.2. Deposit of Proceeds. 

Proceeds from the sale of the Certificates shall, promptly upon receipt by the City, be 
applied as follows:  

(a) The amount of $5,500,000.00, consisting of $5,230,000.00 principal amount of 
Certificate proceeds plus premium received from the sale of the Certificates in the amount of 
$270,000.00, shall be used for the purposes set forth in Section 3.1. 

(b) Premium received from the sale of the Certificates in the amount of $122,530.00 
shall be used to pay the costs of issuance. Any proceeds remaining after the payment of the costs 
of issuance shall be deposited in the Debt Service Fund for the Certificates. 

(c) Premium received from the sale of the Certificates in the amount of $2,921.77 shall 
be deposited in the Debt Service Fund for the Certificates. 

(d) Any amounts remaining after accomplishing such purposes and paying costs of 
issuance shall be deposited to the Debt Service Fund. 



-24- 
#6195040.6 

Section 7.3. Control and Delivery of Certificates. 

(a) The Mayor or Mayor Pro Tem of the City is hereby authorized to have control of 
the Initial Certificate and all necessary records and proceedings pertaining thereto pending 
investigation, examination, and approval of the Attorney General of the State, registration by the 
Comptroller of Public Accounts of the State and registration with, and initial exchange or transfer 
by, the Paying Agent/Registrar. 

(b) After registration by the Comptroller of Public Accounts, delivery of the 
Certificates shall be made to the Initial Purchaser under and subject to the general supervision and 
direction of the Mayor or Mayor Pro Tem, against receipt by the City of all amounts due to the 
City under the terms of sale. 

(c) All officers of the City are authorized to execute such documents, certificates and 
receipts and to make such elections with respect to the tax-exempt status of the Certificates, as they 
may deem necessary to consummate the delivery of the Certificates. 

Section 7.4. Official Statement. 

The form and substance of the Preliminary Official Statement and any addenda, 
supplement or amendment thereto, is hereby ratified and approved, and has been deemed final as 
of its date within the meaning and for the purposes of paragraph (b)(1) of the Rule.  The City 
hereby authorizes and approves the preparation of a final Official Statement to add the terms of 
the Initial Purchaser’s bid and other relevant information.  The use of such final Official Statement 
in the reoffering of the Certificates by the Initial Purchaser is hereby approved and authorized.  
The proper officials of the City are hereby authorized to execute and deliver a certificate pertaining 
to such Official Statement as prescribed therein, dated as of the date of payment for and delivery 
of the Certificates. 

ARTICLE VIII 
 

PARTICULAR REPRESENTATIONS AND COVENANTS 

Section 8.1. Payment of the Certificates. 

On or before each Interest Payment Date while any of the Certificates are outstanding and 
unpaid, there shall be made available to the Paying Agent/Registrar, out of the Debt Service Fund, 
money sufficient to pay such interest on and principal of, redemption premium, if any, and interest 
on the Certificates as will accrue or mature on the applicable Interest Payment Date or date of prior 
redemption. 

Section 8.2. Other Representations and Covenants. 

(a) The City will faithfully perform, at all times, any and all covenants, undertakings, 
stipulations, and provisions contained in this Ordinance and in each Certificate; the City will 
promptly pay or cause to be paid the principal of, redemption premium, if any, and interest on each 
Certificate on the dates and at the places and manner prescribed in such Certificate; and the City 



-25- 
#6195040.6 

will, at the times and in the manner prescribed by this Ordinance, deposit or cause to be deposited 
the amounts of money specified by this Ordinance. 

(b) The City is duly authorized under the laws of the State to issue the Certificates; all 
action on its part for the creation and issuance of the Certificates has been duly and effectively 
taken; and the Certificates in the hands of the Owners thereof are and will be valid and enforceable 
obligations of the City in accordance with their terms. 

Section 8.3. Provisions Concerning Federal Income Tax Matters. 

(a) General.  The City covenants not to take any action or omit to take any action that, 
if taken or omitted, would cause the interest on the Certificates to be includable in gross income 
for federal income tax purposes. In furtherance thereof, the City covenants to comply with sections 
103 and 141 through 150 of the Code and the provisions set forth in the Federal Tax Certificate 
executed by the City in connection with the Certificates. 

(b) No Private Activity Bonds.  The City covenants that it will use the proceeds of the 
Certificates (including investment income) and the property financed, directly or indirectly, with 
such proceeds so that the Certificates will not be “private activity bonds” within the meaning of 
section 141 of the Code.  Furthermore, the City will not take a deliberate action (as defined in 
section 1.141-2(d)(3) of the Regulations) that causes the Certificates to be a “private activity bond” 
unless it takes a remedial action permitted by section 1.141-12 of the Regulations. 

(c) No Federal Guarantee.  The City covenants not to take any action or omit to take 
any action that, if taken or omitted, would cause the Certificates to be “federally guaranteed” 
within the meaning of section 149(b) of the Code, except as permitted by section 149(b)(3) of the 
Code. 

(d) No Hedge Bonds. The City covenants not to take any action or omit to take action 
that, if taken or omitted, would cause the Certificates to be “hedge bonds” within the meaning of 
section 149(g) of the Code.   

(e) No Arbitrage Bonds.  The City covenants that it will make such use of the proceeds 
of the Certificates (including investment income) and regulate the investment of such proceeds of 
the Certificates so that the Certificates will not be “arbitrage bonds” within the meaning of section 
148(a) of the Code.   

(f) Required Rebate.  The City covenants that, if the City does not qualify for an 
exception to the requirements of section 148(f) of the Code, the City will comply with the 
requirement that certain amounts earned by the City on the investment of the gross proceeds of the 
Certificates, be rebated to the United States.   

(g) Information Reporting.  The City covenants to file or cause to be filed with the 
Secretary of the Treasury an information statement concerning the Certificates in accordance with 
section 149(e) of the Code. 

(h) Record Retention.  The City covenants to retain all material records relating to the 
expenditure of the proceeds (including investment income) of the Certificates and the use of the 



-26- 
#6195040.6 

property financed, directly or indirectly, thereby until three years after the last Certificate is 
redeemed or paid at maturity (or such other period as provided by subsequent guidance issued by 
the Department of the Treasury) in a manner that ensures their complete access throughout such 
retention period.   

(i) Registration.  If the Certificates are “registration-required bonds” under section 
149(a)(2) of the Code, the Certificates will be issued in registered form. 

 (j)  Favorable Opinion of Bond Counsel.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, the City will 
not be required to comply with any of the federal tax covenants set forth above if the City has 
received an opinion of nationally recognized bond counsel that such noncompliance will not 
adversely affect the excludability of interest on the Certificates from gross income for federal 
income tax purposes. 

 (k) Continuing Compliance.  Notwithstanding any other provision of this Ordinance, 
the City’s obligations under the federal tax covenants set forth above will survive the defeasance 
and discharge of the Certificates for as long as such matters are relevant to the excludability of 
interest on the Certificates from gross income for federal income tax purposes. 

(l) Official Intent.    For purposes of section 1.150-2(d) of the Regulations, to the extent 
that an official intent to reimburse has not previously been adopted by the City, this Ordinance 
serves as the City’s official declaration of intent to use proceeds of the Certificates to reimburse 
itself from proceeds of the Certificates issued in the maximum amount for certain expenditures 
paid in connection with the projects set forth herein.  Any such reimbursement will only be made 
(i) for an original expenditure paid no earlier than 60 days prior to the date hereof and (ii) not later 
than 18 months after the later of (A) the date the original expenditure is paid or (B) the date of 
with the project to which such expenditure relates is placed in service or abandoned, but in to event 
more than three years after the original expenditure is paid. 

ARTICLE IX 
 

DISCHARGE 

Section 9.1. Discharge. 

The Certificates may be defeased, discharged or refunded in any manner now or hereafter 
permitted by applicable law. 

ARTICLE X 
 

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE UNDERTAKING 

Section 10.1. Annual Reports. 

(a) The City shall provide annually to the MSRB, (i) within six (6) months after the 
end of each Fiscal Year of the City ending in or after 2020, financial information and operating 
data with respect to the City of the general type included in the Official Statement under the 
Schedules 1-4, 6-9, and 11-14 in Appendix A and including financial statements of the City if 



-27- 
#6195040.6 

audited financial statements of the City are then available, and (ii) if not provided as part of such 
financial information and operating data, audited financial statements when they become available.  
Any financial statements so to be provided shall be (i) prepared in accordance with the accounting 
principles described in the rules to the financial statements for the most recently concluded Fiscal 
Year, or such other accounting principles as the City may be required to employ, from time to time, 
by State law or regulation, and (ii) audited, if the City commissions an audit of such statements 
and the audit is completed within the period during which they must be provided.  If the audit of 
such financial statements is not complete within 12 months after any such fiscal year end, then the 
City shall file unaudited financial statements within such 12-month period and audited financial 
statements for the applicable fiscal year, when and if the audit report on such financial statements 
becomes available.  The financial information or operating data shall be provided in an electronic 
format as prescribed by the MSRB. 

(b) If the City changes its fiscal year, it will notify the MSRB of the change (and of the 
date of the new fiscal year end) prior to the next date by which the City otherwise would be required 
to provide financial information and operating data pursuant to this Section. 

(c) The financial information and operating data to be provided pursuant to this Section 
may be set forth in full in one or more documents or may be included by specific reference to any 
document (including an official statement or other offering document, if it is available from the 
MSRB) that theretofore has been provided to the MSRB or filed with the SEC. 

Section 10.2. Event Notices. 

(a) The City shall provide the following to the MSRB, in an electronic format as 
prescribed by the MSRB, in a timely manner not in excess of ten (10) business days after the 
occurrence of the event, notice of any of the following events with respect to the Certificates: 

(1) Principal and interest payment delinquencies; 

(2) Non-payment related defaults, if material; 

(3) Unscheduled draws on debt service reserves reflecting financial difficulties; 

(4) Unscheduled draws on credit enhancements reflecting financial difficulties; 

(5) Substitution of credit or liquidity providers, or their failure to perform; 

(6) Adverse tax opinions, the issuance by the Internal Revenue Service of 
proposed or final determinations of taxability, Notices of Proposed Issue 
(IRS Form 5701-TEB) or other material notices or determinations with 
respect to the tax status of Certificates, or other material events affecting the 
tax status of the Certificates; 

(7) Modifications to rights of the holders of the Certificates, if material; 

(8) Certificate calls, if material, and tender offers; 



-28- 
#6195040.6 

(9) Defeasances; 

(10) Release, substitution, or sale of property securing repayment of the 
Certificates, if material; 

(11) Rating changes; 

(12) Bankruptcy, insolvency, receivership or similar event of the City; 

Note to paragraph 12: For the purposes of the event identified in paragraph 
12 of this section, the event is considered to occur when any of the following 
occur:  the appointment of a receiver, fiscal agent or similar officer for the 
City in a proceeding under the U.S. Bankruptcy Code or in any other 
proceeding under state or federal law in which a court or governmental 
authority has assumed jurisdiction over substantially all of the assets or 
business of the City, or if such jurisdiction has been assumed by leaving the 
existing governing body and officials or officers in possession but subject 
to the supervision and orders of a court or governmental authority, or the 
entry of an order confirming a plan of reorganization, arrangement or 
liquidation by a court or governmental authority having supervision or 
jurisdiction over substantially all of the assets or business of the City. 

(13) The consummation of a merger, consolidation, or acquisition involving the 
City or the sale of all or substantially all of the assets of the City, other than 
in the ordinary course of business, the entry into a definitive agreement to 
undertake such an action or the termination of a definitive agreement 
relating to any such actions, other than pursuant to its terms, if material;  

(14) Appointment of successor or additional paying agent/registrar or the change 
of name of a paying agent/registrar, if material; 

(15) Incurrence of a Financial Obligation of the City, if material, or agreement 
to covenants, events of default, remedies, priority rights, or other similar 
terms of a Financial Obligation of the City, any of which affect security 
holders, if material; and 

(16) Default, event of acceleration, termination event, modification of terms, or 
other similar events under the terms of a Financial Obligation of the City, 
any of which reflect financial difficulties. 

Note to paragraphs (15) and (16):  For purposes of the events identified in 
paragraphs (15) and (16) of this section and in the definition of Financial 
Obligation in Section 1.1, the City intends the words used in such 
paragraphs to have the meanings ascribed to them in SEC Release No. 34-
83885 dated August 20, 2018 (the “2018 Release”) and any further written 
guidance provided by the SEC or its staff with respect with respect to the 
amendments to the Rule effected by the 2018 Release. 
 



-29- 
#6195040.6 

(b) The City shall notify the MSRB, in a timely manner, of any failure by the City to 
provide financial information or operating data in accordance with Section 10.1 of this Ordinance 
by the time required by such Section. 

Section 10.3. Limitations, Disclaimers and Amendments. 

(a) The City shall be obligated to observe and perform the covenants specified in this 
Article for so long as, but only for so long as, the City remains an “obligated person” with respect 
to the Certificates within the meaning of the Rule, except that the City in any event will give notice 
of any redemption calls and any defeasances that cause the City to be no longer an “obligated 
person.” 

(b) The provisions of this Article are for the sole benefit of the Owners and beneficial 
owners of the Certificates, and nothing in this Article, express or implied, shall give any benefit or 
any legal or equitable right, remedy, or claim hereunder to any other person.  The City undertakes 
to provide only the financial information, operating data, financial statements, and notices which 
it has expressly agreed to provide pursuant to this Article and does not hereby undertake to provide 
any other information that may be relevant or material to a complete presentation of the City’s 
financial results, condition, or prospects or hereby undertake to update any information provided 
in accordance with this Article or otherwise, except as expressly provided herein.  The City does 
not make any representation or warranty concerning such information or its usefulness to a decision 
to invest in or sell Certificates at any future date. 

UNDER NO CIRCUMSTANCES SHALL THE CITY BE LIABLE TO THE OWNER 
OR BENEFICIAL OWNER OF ANY CERTIFICATE OR ANY OTHER PERSON, IN 
CONTRACT OR TORT, FOR DAMAGES RESULTING IN WHOLE OR IN PART FROM 
ANY BREACH BY THE CITY, WHETHER NEGLIGENT OR WITH OR WITHOUT FAULT 
ON ITS PART, OF ANY COVENANT SPECIFIED IN THIS ARTICLE, BUT EVERY RIGHT 
AND REMEDY OF ANY SUCH PERSON, IN CONTRACT OR TORT, FOR OR ON 
ACCOUNT OF ANY SUCH BREACH SHALL BE LIMITED TO AN ACTION FOR 
MANDAMUS OR SPECIFIC PERFORMANCE. 

(c) No default by the City in observing or performing its obligations under this Article 
shall constitute a breach of or default under the Ordinance for purposes of any other provisions of 
this Ordinance. 

(d) Nothing in this Article is intended or shall act to disclaim, waive, or otherwise limit 
the duties of the City under federal and state securities laws. 

(e) The provisions of this Article may be amended by the City from time to time to 
adapt to changed circumstances that arise from a change in legal requirements, a change in law, or 
a change in the identity, nature, status, or type of operations of the City, but only if (i) the provisions 
of this Article, as so amended, would have permitted an underwriter to purchase or sell Certificates 
in the primary offering of the Certificates in compliance with the Rule, taking into account any 
amendments or interpretations of the Rule to the date of such amendment, as well as such changed 
circumstances, and (ii) either (A) the Owners of a majority in aggregate principal amount (or any 
greater amount required by any other provisions of this Ordinance that authorizes such an 



-30- 
#6195040.6 

amendment) of the outstanding Certificates consent to such amendment or (B) a person that is 
unaffiliated with the City (such as nationally recognized bond counsel) determines that such 
amendment will not materially impair the interests of the Owners and beneficial owners of the 
Certificates.  The provisions of this Article may also be amended from time to time or repealed by 
the City if the SEC amends or repeals the applicable provisions of the Rule or a court of final 
jurisdiction determines that such provisions are invalid, but only if and to the extent that reservation 
of the City’s right to do so would not prevent the underwriter of the initial public offering of the 
Certificates from lawfully purchasing or selling Certificates in such offering.  If the City so amends 
the provisions of this Article, it shall include with any amended financial information or operating 
data next provided in accordance with Section 10.1 an explanation, in narrative form, of the reasons 
for the amendment and of the impact of any change in the type of financial information or operating 
data so provided.  

ARTICLE XI 
 

MISCELLANEOUS 

Section 11.1. Changes to Ordinance.   

Bond Counsel is hereby authorized to make any changes to the terms of this Ordinance if 
necessary or desirable to carry out the purposes hereof or in connection with the approval of the 
issuance of the Certificates by the Attorney General of the State.  

Section 11.2. Partial Invalidity.   

If any section, paragraph, clause or provision of this Ordinance shall for any reason be held 
to be invalid or unenforceable, the invalidity or unenforceability of such section, paragraph, clause 
or provision shall not affect any of the remaining provisions of this Ordinance. 

Section 11.3. Repealer. 

All ordinances or resolutions, or parts thereof, heretofore adopted by the City and 
inconsistent with the provisions of this Ordinance are hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict. 

Section 11.4. Individuals Not Liable.   

No covenant, stipulation, obligation or agreement herein contained shall be deemed to be 
a covenant, stipulation, obligation or agreement of any member of City Council or agent or 
employee of City Council or of the City in his or her individual capacity and neither the members 
of City Council nor any officer thereof, nor any agent or employee of City Council or of the City, 
shall be liable personally on the Certificates, or be subject to any personal liability or accountability 
by reason of the issuance thereof. 

Section 11.5. Related Matters.   

To satisfy in a timely manner all of the City’s obligations under this Ordinance, the Mayor 
or Mayor Pro Tem, the City Secretary and all other appropriate officers and agents of the City are 
hereby authorized and directed to do any and all things necessary and/or convenient in order to 



-31- 
#6195040.6 

consummate the delivery of the Certificates, pay the costs of issuance on the Certificates, and 
effectuate the terms and purposes of this Ordinance. 

Section 11.6. Force and Effect.   

This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its final passage, and it is so 
ordained. 

 

[Signature Page Follows] 



Signature Page to  
City of Alvin Ordinance No. 20-S 

#6195040.6 

PASSED, APPROVED AND EFFECTIVE this 6th day of August, 2020.  

 

 
 
 

   
City Secretary 
City of Alvin, Texas 

 Mayor 
City of Alvin, Texas 

 
 
 
 
 
[SEAL] 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
 
 
_________________________________ 
City Attorney 
 
 

 



 

#6195040.6 

CERTIFICATE FOR ORDINANCE 
 
 
THE STATE OF TEXAS  § 
COUNTY OF BRAZORIA  § 
 

I, the undersigned officer of the City Council of the City of Alvin, Texas, hereby certify as 
follows: 

1. The City Council of the City of Alvin, Texas, convened in a regular meeting on the 
6th day of August, 2020, by video conference pursuant to the March 16, 2020 action by the 
Governor of the State of Texas under Section 418.016 of the Texas Government Code suspending 
certain provisions of the Texas Open Meetings Act, and the roll was called of the duly constituted 
officers and members of said City Council, to wit: 

Paul A. Horn  Mayor 
Keith Thompson  Councilmember, District C 
Brad Richards  Councilmember, At Large 1 
Joel Castro  Mayor Pro Tem and Councilmember, At Large 2 
Martin Vela  Councilmember, District A 
Adam Arendell  Councilmember, District B 
Glenn Starkey  Mayor Pro Tem and Councilmember, District D 
Gabe Adame  Councilmember, District E 

 
and all of said persons were present, except the following absentee(s):  _____________________, 
thus constituting a quorum.  Whereupon, among other business, the following was transacted at 
said meeting:  a written 

ORDINANCE NO. 20-S 

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE AND SALE OF THE 
CITY OF ALVIN, TEXAS, TAX AND REVENUE CERTIFICATES OF 
OBLIGATION, SERIES 2020; LEVYING A TAX AND PROVIDING FOR THE 
SECURITY AND PAYMENT THEREOF; AND ENACTING OTHER 
PROVISIONS RELATING THERETO 

was duly introduced for the consideration of said City Council.  It was then duly moved and 
seconded that said ordinance be adopted; and, after due discussion, said motion, carrying with it 
the adoption of said ordinance, prevailed and carried by the following vote:  
 

 Member(s) shown present voted “Aye.” 
  
 Member(s) shown present voted “No.” 
  
 Member(s) shown present abstained from voting. 

  



-2- 
#6195040.6 

2. A true, full and correct copy of the aforesaid ordinance adopted at the meeting 
described in the above and foregoing paragraph is attached to and follows this certificate; that said 
ordinance has been duly recorded in said City Council's minutes of said meeting; that the above 
and foregoing paragraph is a true, full and correct excerpt from said City Council's minutes of said 
meeting pertaining to the adoption of said ordinance; that the persons named in the above and 
foregoing paragraph are the duly chosen, qualified and acting officers and members of said City 
Council as indicated therein; that each of the officers and members of said City Council was duly 
and sufficiently notified officially and personally, in advance, of the date, hour, place and purpose 
of the aforesaid meeting, and that said ordinance would be introduced and considered for adoption 
at said meeting, and each of said officers and members consented, in advance, to the holding of 
said meeting for such purpose; that said meeting was open to the public as required by law; and 
that public notice of the date, hour, place and subject of said meeting was given as required by 
Chapter 551, Texas Government Code and the March 16, 2020 action by the Governor of the State 
of Texas under Section 418.016, Texas Government Code, suspending certain provisions of the 
Texas Open Meetings Act. 

SIGNED AND SEALED this 6th day of August, 2020. 

 

 

   
  City Secretary 

City of Alvin, Texas 
[SEAL] 

 

 

 

 

 
 



Summary:

Alvin, Texas; General Obligation

Primary Credit Analyst:

Rob M Marker, Centennial + 1 (303) 721 4264; Rob.Marker@spglobal.com

Secondary Contact:

Alex Louie, Centennial 303-721-4559; alex.louie@spglobal.com

Table Of Contents

Rating Action

Stable Outlook

Credit Opinion

WWW.STANDARDANDPOORS.COM/RATINGSDIRECT JULY 17, 2020   1

AAA:   Extremely strong capacity to repay debt

AA:      Very strong capacity to repay debt

A:         Strong capacity to repay debt

BBB:    Adequate capacity to repay debt

BB:        Faces major future uncertainties

B:         Faces major uncertainties



Summary:

Alvin, Texas; General Obligation

Credit Profile

US$5.5 mil tax and rev certs of oblig ser 2020 dtd 08/01/2020 due 11/01/2040

Long Term Rating AA/Stable New

Alvin tax and rev certs of oblig

Long Term Rating AA/Stable Affirmed

Alvin GO

Long Term Rating AA/Stable Affirmed

Rating Action

S&P Global Ratings assigned its 'AA' long-term rating to the City of Alvin, Texas' $5.5 million series 2020 tax and

revenue certificates of obligation. At the same time, S&P Global Ratings affirmed its 'AA' long-term rating on the city's

previously issued general obligation (GO) bonds and certificates of obligation. The outlook is stable.

The certificates and outstanding GO debt constitute direct obligations of the city, payable from the proceeds of a

continuing, direct annual ad valorem tax, within the limits prescribed by law, on all taxable property within its borders.

The certificates are further secured by surplus revenue of the city's water and sewer system not to exceed $1,000.

Given the limited revenue pledge, we rate the certificates based on Alvin's ad valorem tax pledge. The maximum

allowable ad valorem tax rate in Texas is $2.50 per $100 of assessed value (AV) for all purposes, with the portion

dedicated to debt service limited to $1.50. The city's total fiscal 2019 tax rate is well below the maximum, at 78.8

cents, 6.37 cents of which is dedicated to debt service. Based on the application of our criteria "Issue Credit Ratings

Linked To U.S. Public Finance Obligors' Creditworthiness," published Jan. 22, 2018 on RatingsDirect, we view the

limited-tax GO debt pledge on par with the issuer credit rating, which is based on the city's general creditworthiness.

The ad valorem taxes are not levied on a narrower or distinctly different tax base, and there are no limitations on the

fungibility of resources available for the payment of debt service.

Inclusive of the series 2020 issuance, the city will have approximately $24.5 million of net direct debt. We understand

the proceeds will fund road and park improvement projects.

Credit overview

Residential and commercial construction in Alvin remains robust despite the severity of the Covid-19 driven recession.

(see "The U.S. Faces A Longer And Slower Climb From The Bottom," published June 25, 2020, on RatingsDirect).

Continued development has led to consistent tax base and revenue growth. Combined with very strong management

policies and prudent spending, the city has added to its reserve position five consecutive years, providing a high level

of budgetary flexibility, which we believe puts the city in an advantageous position as the recession continues. Officials

report minimal disruption to the operations of its primary taxpayers as a result of the recession so far. Sales tax

collections remain strong, with projections to end the year slightly above 2019 levels.

WWW.STANDARDANDPOORS.COM/RATINGSDIRECT JULY 17, 2020   2

JROLAND
Highlight

JROLAND
Highlight



Moreover, the majority of its revenues come from property taxes, which should remain stable in the short-term.

Therefore, we view the credit as stable despite the risks and uncertainty associated with Covid-19. We anticipate that

its strong reserves, stable tax base, and strong management policies will aid the city through the recession with

minimal disruption to its key credit metrics over our outlook horizon. Therefore, we do not expect to change our rating

during the next two years. Although our outlook is generally for two years, we recognize the potential for downside

risk because of COVID-19 and the related recession during the next six months to 12 months.

The rating reflects our view of the city's:

• Adequate economy, with projected per capita effective buying income at 87.7% and market value per capita of

$50,544 and access to a broad and diverse MSA;

• Very strong management, with strong financial policies and practices under our financial management assessment

methodology;

• Strong budgetary performance, with operating surpluses in the general fund and at the total governmental fund level

in fiscal 2018;

• Very strong budgetary flexibility, with an available fund balance in fiscal 2019 of 70.1% of operating expenditures;

• Very strong liquidity, with total government available cash at 225.2% of total governmental fund expenditures and

59.2x governmental debt service, and access to external liquidity we consider strong;

• Adequate debt and contingent liability position, with debt service carrying charges at 3.8% of expenditures and net

direct debt that is 102.7% of total governmental fund revenue; and

• Strong institutional framework score

Environmental, social and governance (ESG) factors

Our rating and analysis incorporate our view of the health and safety risks posed by the COVID-19 pandemic, which

we believe could pressure city budgets in the short term to medium term. Also, the city's location near the Gulf Coast

makes it susceptible to severe weather events, including tropical storms and hurricanes; however, healthy reserves are

available to provide support during such emergencies. Overall, we consider the city's social and governance risks in

line with that of the sector.

Stable Outlook

Downside scenario

We could lower the rating if the city's budgetary performance were to weaken, leading to sustained operating deficits

and a resulting decline in reserves to a level below its formal reserve policy. We could also consider a lower rating if

debt issuances outpace tax base growth leading to significant deterioration to the city's debt and contingent liability

profile.

Upside scenario

We could raise the rating if the city's economic growth continues, leading to improved wealth and income levels that

are more in line with those of higher-rated peers.

WWW.STANDARDANDPOORS.COM/RATINGSDIRECT JULY 17, 2020   3

Summary: Alvin, Texas; General Obligation

JROLAND
Highlight

JROLAND
Highlight

JROLAND
Highlight

JROLAND
Highlight

JROLAND
Highlight

JROLAND
Highlight

JROLAND
Highlight

JROLAND
Highlight



Credit Opinion

Adequate economy

Officials note that the economy has been resilient since the onset of the Covid-19 pandemic. Many of its larger

taxpayers are classified as essential and remained open throughout the mandated closures. Those that were required

to close, including retail shops and restaurants, have reopened. However, with cases surging, particularly in Texas, the

risk of additional business closures remains a possibility. We will continue to monitor the effects of the recession on

the city's economy, but expect it will at least remain stable over our outlook horizon.

We consider Alvin's economy adequate. The city, with an estimated population of 29,087, is located in Brazoria

County in the Houston-The Woodlands-Sugar Land MSA, which we consider broad and diverse. The city has a

projected per capita effective buying income of 87.7% of the national level and per capita market value of $50,544.

Overall, the city's market value grew by 8.2% over the past year to $1.4 billion in 2019. The county unemployment rate

was 4.2% in 2019; however, as of April 2020 has risen to 13.4%, reflecting the severity of the recession.

Alvin encompasses approximately 15 square miles in northeast Brazoria County, about 25 miles southeast of

downtown Houston. Industries driving the regional economy include chemical manufacturing, petroleum processing,

advanced manufacturing, health care, retail, and education. The tax base is diverse, with the 10 leading taxpayers

responsible for 7.9% of AV. Leading that group is an industrial manufacturing company, a utility firm, and an oil and

gas company. Officials note the oil and gas activity in the area is almost exclusively mid-stream operations that have

not realized any material disruption so far from the significant drop in oil prices beginning in March. Very little of the

city's AV is tied directly to mineral values. Leading employers include Alvin ISD (3,648 employees), Empereon

Constar, a financial services firm (700), and INEOS Olefins & polymers, a chemical products company (575).

Residential and commercial growth remains strong as developers continue expansion projects throughout the Houston

MSA. Officials report that over 200 residential properties were constructed during 2019, adding roughly $40 million to

the city's tax base. Currently, close to 300 residential lots are in varying stages of completion throughout many of the

city's neighborhoods. Commercial development has also remained steady. Officials note that between new

construction and improvements, commercial properties added $20 million to the tax base in 2019. Future projects

include a new Chick-fil-A restaurant, Bluwave Carwash, and a new retail center that will house multiple restaurants

and additional retail space. The ongoing development projects have generally led to strong AV growth., increasing by

27% since 2015, or on average, 5% per year. Preliminary unadjusted AV values for 2021 are up 23% from the prior

year. While this excludes exemptions, officials still project a 17% increase raising total AV to roughly $1.7 billion.

Very strong management

We view the city's management as very strong, with strong financial policies and practices under our financial

management assessment methodology, indicating our view that financial practices are strong, well embedded, and

likely sustainable.

Key practices include:

• Use of 5 years of historical property tax revenue, AV growth, sales tax trends, and expense data, as well as

WWW.STANDARDANDPOORS.COM/RATINGSDIRECT JULY 17, 2020   4

Summary: Alvin, Texas; General Obligation

JROLAND
Highlight

JROLAND
Highlight

JROLAND
Highlight

JROLAND
Highlight



discussions with the appraisal office when formulating its budget assumptions;

• Monthly budget-to-actual results shared with council and amendments done as necessary;

• Quarterly investment and holdings reports shared with council per its formal investment policy which follows state

guidelines;

• Formal reserve policy to maintain an unassigned fund balance above 25% of expenditures which it is currently

exceeding;

• Formal debt management policy identifying types of issuable debt, and quantitative metrics including minimum

present value savings required on refunding and targeted amortization schedules;

• Maintenance of a 5-year capital improvement plan, identifying project costs and funding sources; and

• An annually updated long-range financial forecast, projecting revenues and expenditures through 2024.

Strong budgetary performance

Alvin's budgetary performance is strong, in our opinion. Our assessment considers our view that the pandemic and

recession pose an event risk that could increase performance volatility for cities over the medium term. The city

reported operating surpluses of 15.5% in the general fund and 6.8% across all government funds in 2019. In our

calculations, we have adjusted the town's revenues and expenditures to treat recurring transfers as either revenues or

expenditures, and eliminated significant one-time expenditures funded through cash-on-hand or debt proceeds.

Five consecutive general fund surpluses demonstrate the city's ability to spend prudently and build its fund balance.

Budgets are constructed with conservative estimates, typically resulting in positive variances between the budget and

actual results. The 2019 results were consistent with this trend, and both revenues and expenditures outperformed.

Property taxes are consistently the city's most significant source of operating revenues, representing 59% of 2019

totals, followed by sales taxes (16%), and franchise fees (8%). Interfund transfers are another vital aspect of the city's

revenue, supported by its various utility operations.

Expectations are to end the current year with a surplus of roughly $0.5 million. Sales tax collections were slightly up

during the first half of the year, and officials currently project higher collections at year-end than realized in 2019.

Management attributes the results to the city's limited reliance on the industries hit the hardest by the recession, such

as tourism, hospitality, and restaurants. Moreover, with the majority of its revenues coming from the residential sector,

expectations are that finances will remain strong.

In planning for the 2021 year, officials are projecting minimal sales tax growth and balanced operations. Officials will

continue to monitor events related to Covid-19 and make adjustments as needed. Provided the city's conservative

budgeting history and strong management policies, we anticipate if revenue shortfalls are more severe than expected,

management will prudently make offsetting adjustments to expenditures, ensuring maintenance of its healthy reserve

levels.

Very strong budgetary flexibility

Alvin's budgetary flexibility is very strong, in our view, with an available fund balance in fiscal 2019 of 70.1% of

operating expenditures, or $11.8 million. We expect the available fund balance to remain above 30% of expenditures

for the current and next fiscal years, which we view as a positive credit factor.

WWW.STANDARDANDPOORS.COM/RATINGSDIRECT JULY 17, 2020   5

Summary: Alvin, Texas; General Obligation

JROLAND
Highlight

JROLAND
Highlight



The city has maintained very strong reserves. While management may spend a portion of reserves on capital projects,

we expect budgetary flexibility to remain very strong given the city's target to maintain a minimum general fund

balance of 25% of expenditures, coupled with its demonstrated history of maintaining reserves well above that target.

Very strong liquidity

In our opinion, Alvin's liquidity is very strong, with total government available cash at 225.2% of total governmental

fund expenditures and 59.2x governmental debt service in 2019. In our view, the city has strong access to external

liquidity if necessary provided its frequent issuance of tax- and revenue-backed bonds during the past 20 years.

Alvin has historically had what we consider very strong cash balances and, given management's demonstrated ability

to maintain balanced operations, we do not believe its cash position will materially weaken over the next two years.

All of the city's investments comply with Texas statutes and the city's internal investment policy. At fiscal year-end

2019, the city's investments comprised of certificates of deposit (CDs) and state investment pools, which we do not

consider aggressive.

The city has one privately placed debt obligations totaling $3.9 million, or 6% of total direct debt. The private

placements contain no provisions that we view as a potential liquidity risk.

Adequate debt and contingent liability profile

In our view, Alvin's debt and contingent liability profile is adequate. Total governmental fund debt service is 3.8% of

total governmental fund expenditures, and net direct debt is 102.7% of total governmental fund revenue.

We adjusted the city's debt for $15.8 million of GO debt that is supported by utilities. The annual debt burden on the

governmental funds is expected to remain relatively low, as the significant portion of Alvin's debt outstanding will

continue to be supported by the enterprise funds. The city performs water rate studies to ensure rates are sufficient to

generate sufficient revenue to maintain the self-supporting nature of its utility debt. The city plans to issue a total of

roughly $7 million in additional certificates of obligation over the next five years; however, we do not expect it will

materially change the city's debt profile.

Pension and other postemployment benefits

Alvin's combined required pension and actual OPEB contributions totaled 8.2% of total governmental fund

expenditures in 2019, and the town made its full required pension contribution.

The city participates in:

• Texas Municipal Retirement System (TMRS), which was 81.4% funded, with a net pension liability equal to $12.1,

on Dec. 31, 2018, the latest measurement date;

• Texas Emergency Services Retirement System (TESRS), which was 80.3% funded, with a net pension liability equal

to $617,000, on Aug. 31, 2018, the latest measurement date.

Under state law governing TMRS, an actuary determines the contribution rate annually. Actuarial assumptions include

a 6.75% discount, which we view as aggressive, representing market risk and resulting in contribution volatility if

TMRS fails to meet assumed investment targets. TESRS' monthly contribution requirement per

WWW.STANDARDANDPOORS.COM/RATINGSDIRECT JULY 17, 2020   6

Summary: Alvin, Texas; General Obligation

JROLAND
Highlight

JROLAND
Highlight

JROLAND
Highlight



active-emergency-services personnel is not actuarially determined. Rather, TESRS' board of trustees set

minimum-contribution provisions; there is no maximum contribution.

The city also participates in the cost-sharing, multiple-employer defined benefit group-term life insurance coverage to

both current and retired employees, which is operated by TMRS, known as the Supplemental Death Benefits Fund.

The city may terminate coverage and discontinue participation by adopting an ordinance before Nov. 1 of any year to

be effective the following Jan. 1. The city has historically contributed 100% of the contractually required rate as

determined by an annual actuarial valuation. As of Dec. 31, 2018, actuarial valuation, the city's net other

postemployment benefit liability was $554,014, using a 3.71% discount rate.

Certain terms used in this report, particularly certain adjectives used to express our view on rating relevant factors, have specific meanings ascribed

to them in our criteria, and should therefore be read in conjunction with such criteria. Please see Ratings Criteria at www.standardandpoors.com for

further information. Complete ratings information is available to subscribers of RatingsDirect at www.capitaliq.com. All ratings affected by this rating

action can be found on S&P Global Ratings' public website at www.standardandpoors.com. Use the Ratings search box located in the left column.

WWW.STANDARDANDPOORS.COM/RATINGSDIRECT JULY 17, 2020   7

Summary: Alvin, Texas; General Obligation



WWW.STANDARDANDPOORS.COM/RATINGSDIRECT JULY 17, 2020   8

STANDARD & POOR’S, S&P and RATINGSDIRECT are registered trademarks of Standard & Poor’s Financial Services LLC.

S&P may receive compensation for its ratings and certain analyses, normally from issuers or underwriters of securities or from obligors. S&P reserves the right to disseminate
its opinions and analyses. S&P's public ratings and analyses are made available on its Web sites, www.standardandpoors.com (free of charge), and www.ratingsdirect.com
(subscription), and may be distributed through other means, including via S&P publications and third-party redistributors. Additional information about our ratings fees is
available at www.standardandpoors.com/usratingsfees.

S&P keeps certain activities of its business units separate from each other in order to preserve the independence and objectivity of their respective activities. As a result,
certain business units of S&P may have information that is not available to other S&P business units. S&P has established policies and procedures to maintain the
confidentiality of certain non-public information received in connection with each analytical process.

To the extent that regulatory authorities allow a rating agency to acknowledge in one jurisdiction a rating issued in another jurisdiction for certain regulatory purposes, S&P
reserves the right to assign, withdraw or suspend such acknowledgment at any time and in its sole discretion. S&P Parties disclaim any duty whatsoever arising out of the
assignment, withdrawal or suspension of an acknowledgment as well as any liability for any damage alleged to have been suffered on account thereof.

Credit-related and other analyses, including ratings, and statements in the Content are statements of opinion as of the date they are expressed and not statements of fact.
S&P’s opinions, analyses and rating acknowledgment decisions (described below) are not recommendations to purchase, hold, or sell any securities or to make any
investment decisions, and do not address the suitability of any security. S&P assumes no obligation to update the Content following publication in any form or format. The
Content should not be relied on and is not a substitute for the skill, judgment and experience of the user, its management, employees, advisors and/or clients when making
investment and other business decisions. S&P does not act as a fiduciary or an investment advisor except where registered as such. While S&P has obtained information from
sources it believes to be reliable, S&P does not perform an audit and undertakes no duty of due diligence or independent verification of any information it receives. Rating-
related publications may be published for a variety of reasons that are not necessarily dependent on action by rating committees, including, but not limited to, the publication
of a periodic update on a credit rating and related analyses.

No content (including ratings, credit-related analyses and data, valuations, model, software or other application or output therefrom) or any part thereof (Content) may be
modified, reverse engineered, reproduced or distributed in any form by any means, or stored in a database or retrieval system, without the prior written permission of
Standard & Poor’s Financial Services LLC or its affiliates (collectively, S&P). The Content shall not be used for any unlawful or unauthorized purposes. S&P and any third-party
providers, as well as their directors, officers, shareholders, employees or agents (collectively S&P Parties) do not guarantee the accuracy, completeness, timeliness or
availability of the Content. S&P Parties are not responsible for any errors or omissions (negligent or otherwise), regardless of the cause, for the results obtained from the use
of the Content, or for the security or maintenance of any data input by the user. The Content is provided on an “as is” basis. S&P PARTIES DISCLAIM ANY AND ALL EXPRESS
OR IMPLIED WARRANTIES, INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO, ANY WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY OR FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE OR USE, FREEDOM
FROM BUGS, SOFTWARE ERRORS OR DEFECTS, THAT THE CONTENT’S FUNCTIONING WILL BE UNINTERRUPTED OR THAT THE CONTENT WILL OPERATE WITH ANY
SOFTWARE OR HARDWARE CONFIGURATION. In no event shall S&P Parties be liable to any party for any direct, indirect, incidental, exemplary, compensatory, punitive,
special or consequential damages, costs, expenses, legal fees, or losses (including, without limitation, lost income or lost profits and opportunity costs or losses caused by
negligence) in connection with any use of the Content even if advised of the possibility of such damages.

Copyright © 2020 by Standard & Poor’s Financial Services LLC. All rights reserved.



U.S. Capital Advisors LLC

Investor Presentation

November 2009

Confidential

City of  Alvin, Texas

Results of  Competitive

Bond Sale:

$5,230,000

Tax & Revenue Certificates of  

Obligation, Series 2020

August 6, 2020

Austin                                      Houston                                      Dallas

James F. Gilley, Jr.

U.S. Capital Advisors LLC

300 W 6th Street, Suite 1900

Austin, Texas 78701

512-813-1110 (direct)

jfgilley@uscallc.com



Summary of Bids Received:
Best bid went to Robert W. Baird & Co. out of 

Red Bank, New Jersey

Bidder Name True Interest Cost

 Robert W. Baird & Co. 1.404125%

- Red Bank, NJ

 HilltopSecurities 1.429869%
- Dallas, TX

 Raymond James & Assc. 1.478807%

- Memphis, TN

 SWBC Investment Services 1.479763%

- San Antonio, TX

 The Baker Group 1.508637%

- Oklahoma City, OK

 KeyBanc Capital Markets 1.555672%

- Cleveland, OH

1



• Competitive bond sale offered in public market

• Received a total of 6 bids

• Two best bids separated by 0.025744%

• High and low bids separated by 0.151547%

• City’s offering received national exposure with offers

from competing investors in financial centers across 5

different states

2



8/6/2020 PARITY Bid Form

https://www.newissuehome.i-deal.com/Parity/asp/main.asp?page=parityBidform&customer=TM3&issue_key_no=298893&bid_no=6&sec_type=BD&bi… 1/2

Robert W. Baird & Co., Inc. - Red Bank , NJ's Bid

Alvin 
$5,500,000 Tax and Revenue Certificates of Obligation, Series 

2020 

For the aggregate principal amount of $5,500,000.00, we will pay you $5,914,856.75, plus accrued interest from the date of
issue to the date of delivery. The Bonds are to bear interest at the following rate(s):

Maturity Date Amount $ Coupon %
11/01/2021 275M 4.0000
11/01/2022 275M 4.0000
11/01/2023 275M 4.0000
11/01/2024 275M 4.0000
11/01/2025 275M 4.0000
11/01/2026 275M 4.0000
11/01/2027 275M 2.0000
11/01/2028 275M 4.0000
11/01/2029 275M 4.0000
11/01/2030 275M 4.0000
11/01/2031 275M 1.0000
11/01/2032 275M 1.1250
11/01/2033 275M 1.3750
11/01/2034 275M 1.5000
11/01/2035 275M 1.6250
11/01/2036 275M 1.6250
11/01/2037 275M 1.7500
11/01/2038 275M 1.7500
11/01/2039 275M 1.7500
11/01/2040 275M 1.8750

Total Interest Cost: $1,268,406.94
Premium: $414,856.75
Net Interest Cost: $853,550.19
TIC: 1.404125
Time Last Bid Received On:08/06/2020 9:55:14 CDST

This proposal is made subject to all of the terms and conditions of the Official Bid Form, the Official Notice of Sale, and the
Preliminary Official Statement, all of which are made a part hereof. 

Bidder: Robert W. Baird & Co., Inc., Red Bank , NJ
Contact: charles massaro
Title: director
Telephone:732-576-4410
Fax: 732-576-4420

Issuer Name: City of Alvin Company Name: ___________________________

  

Accepted By: ___________________________ Accepted By: ___________________________

3



Th
e 

Pr
el

im
in

ar
y 

O
ffi

ci
al

 S
ta

te
m

en
t a

nd
 th

e 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
co

nt
ai

ne
d 

he
re

in
 a

re
 s

ub
je

ct
 to

 c
om

pl
et

io
n 

or
 a

m
en

dm
en

t. 
Th

es
e 

se
cu

rit
ie

s 
m

ay
 n

ot
 b

e 
so

ld
, n

or
 a

ny
 o

ffe
rs

 to
 b

uy
 b

e 
ac

ce
pt

ed
 p

rio
r t

o 
th

e 
tim

e 
th

e 
O

ffi
ci

al
 S

ta
te

m
en

t i
s 

de
liv

er
ed

 in
 fi

na
l 

fo
rm

.  
U

nd
er

 n
o 

ci
rc

um
st

an
ce

s 
sh

al
l t

hi
s 

Pr
el

im
in

ar
y 

O
ffi

ci
al

 S
ta

te
m

en
t c

on
st

itu
te

 a
n 

of
fe

r t
o 

se
ll o

r t
he

 s
ol

ic
ita

tio
n 

of
 a

n 
of

fe
r t

o 
bu

y 
no

r s
ha

ll t
he

re
 b

e 
an

y 
sa

le
 o

f t
he

se
 s

ec
ur

iti
es

 in
 a

ny
 ju

ris
di

ct
io

n 
in

 w
hi

ch
 s

uc
h 

of
fe

r, 
so

lic
ita

tio
n,

 o
r s

al
e 

w
ou

ld
 

be
 u

nl
aw

fu
l p

rio
r t

o 
re

gi
st

ra
tio

n 
or

 q
ua

lifi
ca

tio
n 

un
de

r t
he

 s
ec

ur
iti

es
 la

w
s 

of
 a

ny
 s

uc
h 

ju
ris

di
ct

io
n.

PRELIMINARY OFFICIAL STATEMENT DATED JULY 27, 2020

NEW ISSUE RATING: Standard & Poor’s “AA/stable”
BOOK-ENTRY-ONLY (see OTHER INFORMATION – Municipal Rating” herein)

In the opinion of Bond Counsel, under existing law, interest on the Certificates is excludable from gross income for 
federal income tax purposes under section 103 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, and is not a specific 
preference item for purposes of the alternative minimum tax.  SEE “TAX MATTERS” – FOR A DISCUSSION OF THE 
OPINION OF BOND COUNSEL

THE CERTIFICATES WILL NOT BE DESIGNATED AS “QUALIFIED TAX-EXEMPT OBLIGATIONS”
FOR FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS.

$5,500,000*
CITY OF ALVIN, TEXAS
(Brazoria County, Texas)

TAX AND REVENUE CERTIFICATES OF OBLIGATION, SERIES 2020

Dated Date:  August 1, 2020 Due:  November 1 — See page ii
(Interest Accrues from the Date of Delivery)

The City of Alvin, Texas (the “City”) is issuing its Tax and Revenue Certificates of Obligation, Series 2020 (the “Certificates”) 
pursuant to the applicable provisions of the Texas Constitution and the general laws of the State of Texas, including, 
particularly, Subchapter C, Chapter 271, Texas Local Government Code, as amended, and an ordinance of the City 
authorizing the issuance of the Certificates (the “Ordinance”).

Interest on the Certificates will accrue from the Date of Delivery (defined below) of the Certificates to the Initial Purchaser 
(defined below) and is payable commencing November 1, 2020, and each May 1 and November 1 thereafter until maturity 
or prior redemption.  Interest will be calculated on the basis of a 360-day year of twelve 30-day months.  The Certificates 
are direct obligations of the City payable from and secured by an annual ad valorem tax levied, within the limits prescribed 
by law, against all taxable property located within the City, and from a limited pledge of a subordinate lien on the net 
revenues of the City’s water and sewer system, in an amount not to exceed $1,000.  See “THE CERTIFICATES – Sources 
of Payment” herein.

The Certificates will be issued in fully-registered form and, when issued, will be registered in the name of Cede & Co., as 
registered owner and the nominee for The Depository Trust Company, New York, New York (“DTC”) which will act as 
securities depository for the Certificates.  Individual purchases of the Certificates will initially be made pursuant to the 
book-entry-only system described herein.  Beneficial ownership of the Certificates may be acquired in denominations of 
$5,000 or integral multiples thereof.  No physical delivery of the Certificates will be made to the beneficial owners thereof.  
For as long as Cede & Co. is the sole registered owner of the Certificates, the principal of and interest on the Certificates 
will be payable by Zions Bancorporation, National Association, Amegy Bank Division, Houston, Texas (the “Paying Agent/
Registrar”) to Cede & Co., which will make distribution of the amounts so paid to the participating members of DTC for 
subsequent payment to the beneficial owners of the Certificates.  See “THE CERTIFICATES – Book-Entry-Only System” 
herein.

Proceeds from the sale of the Certificates will be used to pay for all or any part of the costs associated with (i) the 
construction of improvements to and the equipment of city streets, sidewalks, and related drainage facilities; (ii) the 
construction of improvements to and equipment of city parks and recreational facilities; and (iii) the costs of professional 
services thereto.  See “THE CERTIFICATES – Sources and Uses” herein. 

SEE PAGE ii FOR MATURITY SCHEDULE

The Certificates are subject to optional redemption prior to their scheduled maturities as described herein. See “THE 
CERTIFICATES – Optional Redemption” herein.

If the principal amounts designated in the serial maturity schedule on page ii hereof are combined to create one or more term 
Certificates (the “Term Certificates”), each such Term Certificate shall be subject to mandatory sinking fund redemption.  
See “THE CERTIFICATES – Mandatory Sinking Fund Redemption” herein.

The Certificates are offered for delivery, when, as and if issued by the City, and received by the initial purchaser (the “Initial 
Purchaser”), subject to the approving opinions of the Attorney General of the State of Texas and Bracewell LLP, Houston, 
Texas, Bond Counsel for the City.  See “LEGAL MATTERS” herein and “Form of Opinion of Bond Counsel” attached hereto 
as Appendix D.  It is expected that the Certificates will be available for delivery through the facilities of DTC on or about 
August 27, 2020 (the “Date of Delivery”).

BIDS DUE:  THURSDAY, AUGUST 6, 2020 AT 10:00 A.M., CENTRAL TIME 

* Preliminary, subject to change. 4



Aug 6, 2020   1:31 pm  Prepared by US Capital Advisors, LLC (Finance 7.011 ALVIN:ALVIN-CO2020)

TABLE OF CONTENTS

City of Alvin, Texas

Tax and Revenue Certificates of Obligation, Series 2020

Final Debt Service Numbers

Initial Purchaser: Robert W. Baird & Co.

Report Page

Bond Debt Service ................................ 1

Sources and Uses of Funds ............................. 4

Bond Pricing .................................. 5

Bond Summary Statistics ............................. 8

5



Aug 6, 2020   1:31 pm  Prepared by US Capital Advisors, LLC (Finance 7.011 ALVIN:ALVIN-CO2020)   Page 1

BOND DEBT SERVICE

City of Alvin, Texas

Tax and Revenue Certificates of Obligation, Series 2020

Final Debt Service Numbers

Initial Purchaser: Robert W. Baird & Co.

Dated Date 08/01/2020

Delivery Date 08/27/2020

Period

Ending Principal Coupon Interest Debt Service

09/30/2021 94,804.17 94,804.17

09/30/2022 265,000 4.000% 134,575.00 399,575.00

09/30/2023 265,000 4.000% 123,975.00 388,975.00

09/30/2024 265,000 4.000% 113,375.00 378,375.00

09/30/2025 265,000 4.000% 102,775.00 367,775.00

09/30/2026 265,000 4.000% 92,175.00 357,175.00

09/30/2027 260,000 4.000% 81,675.00 341,675.00

09/30/2028 265,000 2.000% 73,825.00 338,825.00

09/30/2029 260,000 4.000% 65,975.00 325,975.00

09/30/2030 260,000 4.000% 55,575.00 315,575.00

09/30/2031 260,000 4.000% 45,175.00 305,175.00

09/30/2032 260,000 1.000% 38,675.00 298,675.00

09/30/2033 260,000 1.125% 35,912.50 295,912.50

09/30/2034 260,000 1.375% 32,662.50 292,662.50

09/30/2035 260,000 1.500% 28,925.00 288,925.00

09/30/2036 260,000 1.625% 24,862.50 284,862.50

09/30/2037 260,000 1.625% 20,637.50 280,637.50

09/30/2038 260,000 1.750% 16,250.00 276,250.00

09/30/2039 260,000 1.750% 11,700.00 271,700.00

09/30/2040 260,000 1.750% 7,150.00 267,150.00

09/30/2041 260,000 1.875% 2,437.50 262,437.50

5,230,000 1,203,116.67 6,433,116.67

6



Aug 6, 2020   1:31 pm  Prepared by US Capital Advisors, LLC (Finance 7.011 ALVIN:ALVIN-CO2020)   Page 2

BOND DEBT SERVICE

City of Alvin, Texas

Tax and Revenue Certificates of Obligation, Series 2020

Final Debt Service Numbers

Initial Purchaser: Robert W. Baird & Co.

Dated Date 08/01/2020

Delivery Date 08/27/2020

Period Annual

Ending Principal Coupon Interest Debt Service Debt Service

11/01/2020 24,866.67 24,866.67

05/01/2021 69,937.50 69,937.50

09/30/2021 94,804.17

11/01/2021 265,000 4.000% 69,937.50 334,937.50

05/01/2022 64,637.50 64,637.50

09/30/2022 399,575.00

11/01/2022 265,000 4.000% 64,637.50 329,637.50

05/01/2023 59,337.50 59,337.50

09/30/2023 388,975.00

11/01/2023 265,000 4.000% 59,337.50 324,337.50

05/01/2024 54,037.50 54,037.50

09/30/2024 378,375.00

11/01/2024 265,000 4.000% 54,037.50 319,037.50

05/01/2025 48,737.50 48,737.50

09/30/2025 367,775.00

11/01/2025 265,000 4.000% 48,737.50 313,737.50

05/01/2026 43,437.50 43,437.50

09/30/2026 357,175.00

11/01/2026 260,000 4.000% 43,437.50 303,437.50

05/01/2027 38,237.50 38,237.50

09/30/2027 341,675.00

11/01/2027 265,000 2.000% 38,237.50 303,237.50

05/01/2028 35,587.50 35,587.50

09/30/2028 338,825.00

11/01/2028 260,000 4.000% 35,587.50 295,587.50

05/01/2029 30,387.50 30,387.50

09/30/2029 325,975.00

11/01/2029 260,000 4.000% 30,387.50 290,387.50

05/01/2030 25,187.50 25,187.50

09/30/2030 315,575.00

11/01/2030 260,000 4.000% 25,187.50 285,187.50

05/01/2031 19,987.50 19,987.50

09/30/2031 305,175.00

11/01/2031 260,000 1.000% 19,987.50 279,987.50

05/01/2032 18,687.50 18,687.50

09/30/2032 298,675.00

11/01/2032 260,000 1.125% 18,687.50 278,687.50

05/01/2033 17,225.00 17,225.00

09/30/2033 295,912.50

11/01/2033 260,000 1.375% 17,225.00 277,225.00

05/01/2034 15,437.50 15,437.50

09/30/2034 292,662.50

11/01/2034 260,000 1.500% 15,437.50 275,437.50

05/01/2035 13,487.50 13,487.50

09/30/2035 288,925.00

11/01/2035 260,000 1.625% 13,487.50 273,487.50

05/01/2036 11,375.00 11,375.00

7



Aug 6, 2020   1:31 pm  Prepared by US Capital Advisors, LLC (Finance 7.011 ALVIN:ALVIN-CO2020)   Page 3

BOND DEBT SERVICE

City of Alvin, Texas

Tax and Revenue Certificates of Obligation, Series 2020

Final Debt Service Numbers

Initial Purchaser: Robert W. Baird & Co.

Period Annual

Ending Principal Coupon Interest Debt Service Debt Service

09/30/2036 284,862.50

11/01/2036 260,000 1.625% 11,375.00 271,375.00

05/01/2037 9,262.50 9,262.50

09/30/2037 280,637.50

11/01/2037 260,000 1.750% 9,262.50 269,262.50

05/01/2038 6,987.50 6,987.50

09/30/2038 276,250.00

11/01/2038 260,000 1.750% 6,987.50 266,987.50

05/01/2039 4,712.50 4,712.50

09/30/2039 271,700.00

11/01/2039 260,000 1.750% 4,712.50 264,712.50

05/01/2040 2,437.50 2,437.50

09/30/2040 267,150.00

11/01/2040 260,000 1.875% 2,437.50 262,437.50

09/30/2041 262,437.50

5,230,000 1,203,116.67 6,433,116.67 6,433,116.67

8



Aug 6, 2020   1:31 pm  Prepared by US Capital Advisors, LLC (Finance 7.011 ALVIN:ALVIN-CO2020)   Page 4

SOURCES AND USES OF FUNDS

City of Alvin, Texas

Tax and Revenue Certificates of Obligation, Series 2020

Final Debt Service Numbers

Initial Purchaser: Robert W. Baird & Co.

Dated Date 08/01/2020

Delivery Date 08/27/2020

Sources:

Bond Proceeds:

Par Amount 5,230,000.00

Net Premium 442,482.55

5,672,482.55

Uses:

Project Fund Deposits:

Moller Road 3,700,000.00

Pearson Park 1,800,000.00

5,500,000.00

Delivery Date Expenses:

Cost of Issuance 122,530.00

Underwriter's Discount 47,030.78

169,560.78

Other Uses of Funds:

Additional Proceeds 2,921.77

5,672,482.55

9



Aug 6, 2020   1:31 pm  Prepared by US Capital Advisors, LLC (Finance 7.011 ALVIN:ALVIN-CO2020)   Page 5

BOND PRICING

City of Alvin, Texas

Tax and Revenue Certificates of Obligation, Series 2020

Final Debt Service Numbers

Initial Purchaser: Robert W. Baird & Co.

Maturity Yield to

Bond Component Date # Bonds Amount Rate Yield Price Maturity

Tax & Rev Certificates of Obligation, Series 2020:

11/01/2021 53 265,000 4.000% 0.130% 104.552

11/01/2022 53 265,000 4.000% 0.150% 108.367

11/01/2023 53 265,000 4.000% 0.180% 112.098

11/01/2024 53 265,000 4.000% 0.230% 115.665

11/01/2025 53 265,000 4.000% 0.300% 118.995

11/01/2026 52 260,000 4.000% 0.400% 121.945

11/01/2027 53 265,000 2.000% 0.550% 110.190

11/01/2028 52 260,000 4.000% 0.650% 126.637

11/01/2029 52 260,000 4.000% 0.700% 129.283

11/01/2030 52 260,000 4.000% 0.750% 128.771 C 1.017%

11/01/2031 52 260,000 1.000% 1.100% 98.950

11/01/2032 52 260,000 1.125% 1.200% 99.152

11/01/2033 52 260,000 1.375% 1.400% 99.699

11/01/2034 52 260,000 1.500% 1.600% 98.735

11/01/2035 52 260,000 1.625% 1.650% 99.664

11/01/2036 52 260,000 1.625% 1.700% 98.942

11/01/2037 52 260,000 1.750% 1.750% 100.000

11/01/2038 52 260,000 1.750% 1.800% 99.226

11/01/2039 52 260,000 1.750% 1.850% 98.390

11/01/2040 52 260,000 1.875% 1.900% 99.581

1,046 5,230,000

10



Aug 6, 2020   1:31 pm  Prepared by US Capital Advisors, LLC (Finance 7.011 ALVIN:ALVIN-CO2020)   Page 6

BOND PRICING

City of Alvin, Texas

Tax and Revenue Certificates of Obligation, Series 2020

Final Debt Service Numbers

Initial Purchaser: Robert W. Baird & Co.

Premium

(-Discount)

12,062.80

22,172.55

32,059.70

41,512.25

50,336.75

57,057.00

27,003.50

69,256.20

76,135.80

74,804.60

-2,730.00

-2,204.80

-782.60

-3,289.00

-873.60

-2,750.80

-2,012.40

-4,186.00

-1,089.40

442,482.55

11



Aug 6, 2020   1:31 pm  Prepared by US Capital Advisors, LLC (Finance 7.011 ALVIN:ALVIN-CO2020)   Page 7

BOND PRICING

City of Alvin, Texas

Tax and Revenue Certificates of Obligation, Series 2020

Final Debt Service Numbers

Initial Purchaser: Robert W. Baird & Co.

Dated Date 08/01/2020

Delivery Date 08/27/2020

First Coupon 11/01/2020

Par Amount 5,230,000.00

Premium 442,482.55

Production 5,672,482.55 108.460469%

Underwriter's Discount -47,030.78 -0.899250%

Purchase Price 5,625,451.77 107.561219%

Accrued Interest

Net Proceeds 5,625,451.77

12



Aug 6, 2020   1:31 pm  Prepared by US Capital Advisors, LLC (Finance 7.011 ALVIN:ALVIN-CO2020)   Page 8

BOND SUMMARY STATISTICS

City of Alvin, Texas

Tax and Revenue Certificates of Obligation, Series 2020

Final Debt Service Numbers

Initial Purchaser: Robert W. Baird & Co.

Dated Date 08/01/2020

Delivery Date 08/27/2020

Last Maturity 11/01/2040

Arbitrage Yield 1.301181%

True Interest Cost (TIC) 1.402178%

Net Interest Cost (NIC) 1.451596%

All-In TIC 1.640102%

Average Coupon 2.162332%

Average Life (years) 10.639

Weighted Average Maturity (years) 10.313

Duration of Issue (years) 9.366

Par Amount 5,230,000.00

Bond Proceeds 5,672,482.55

Total Interest 1,203,116.67

Net Interest 807,664.90

Bond Years from Dated Date 55,639,777.78

Bond Years from Delivery Date 55,639,777.78

Total Debt Service 6,433,116.67

Maximum Annual Debt Service 399,575.00

Average Annual Debt Service 318,821.86

Underwriter's Fees (per $1000)

  Average Takedown

  Other Fee 8.992501

Total Underwriter's Discount 8.992501

Bid Price 107.561219

Par Average Average PV of 1 bp

Bond Component Value Price Coupon Life change

Tax & Rev Certificates of Obligation, Series 2020 5,230,000.00 108.460 2.162% 10.639 5,134.25

5,230,000.00 10.639 5,134.25

13



Aug 6, 2020   1:31 pm  Prepared by US Capital Advisors, LLC (Finance 7.011 ALVIN:ALVIN-CO2020)   Page 9

BOND SUMMARY STATISTICS

City of Alvin, Texas

Tax and Revenue Certificates of Obligation, Series 2020

Final Debt Service Numbers

Initial Purchaser: Robert W. Baird & Co.

All-In Arbitrage

TIC TIC Yield

Par Value 5,230,000.00 5,230,000.00 5,230,000.00

  + Accrued Interest

  + Premium (Discount) 442,482.55 442,482.55 442,482.55

  - Underwriter's Discount -47,030.78 -47,030.78

  - Cost of Issuance Expense -122,530.00

  - Other Amounts

Target Value 5,625,451.77 5,502,921.77 5,672,482.55

Target Date 08/27/2020 08/27/2020 08/27/2020

Yield 1.402178% 1.640102% 1.301181%

14



Summary:

Alvin, Texas; General Obligation

Primary Credit Analyst:

Rob M Marker, Centennial + 1 (303) 721 4264; Rob.Marker@spglobal.com

Secondary Contact:

Alex Louie, Centennial 303-721-4559; alex.louie@spglobal.com

Table Of Contents

Rating Action

Stable Outlook

Credit Opinion

WWW.STANDARDANDPOORS.COM/RATINGSDIRECT JULY 17, 2020   1

15



Summary:

Alvin, Texas; General Obligation

Credit Profile

US$5.5 mil tax and rev certs of oblig ser 2020 dtd 08/01/2020 due 11/01/2040

Long Term Rating AA/Stable New

Alvin tax and rev certs of oblig

Long Term Rating AA/Stable Affirmed

Alvin GO

Long Term Rating AA/Stable Affirmed

Rating Action

S&P Global Ratings assigned its 'AA' long-term rating to the City of Alvin, Texas' $5.5 million series 2020 tax and

revenue certificates of obligation. At the same time, S&P Global Ratings affirmed its 'AA' long-term rating on the city's

previously issued general obligation (GO) bonds and certificates of obligation. The outlook is stable.

The certificates and outstanding GO debt constitute direct obligations of the city, payable from the proceeds of a

continuing, direct annual ad valorem tax, within the limits prescribed by law, on all taxable property within its borders.

The certificates are further secured by surplus revenue of the city's water and sewer system not to exceed $1,000.

Given the limited revenue pledge, we rate the certificates based on Alvin's ad valorem tax pledge. The maximum

allowable ad valorem tax rate in Texas is $2.50 per $100 of assessed value (AV) for all purposes, with the portion

dedicated to debt service limited to $1.50. The city's total fiscal 2019 tax rate is well below the maximum, at 78.8

cents, 6.37 cents of which is dedicated to debt service. Based on the application of our criteria "Issue Credit Ratings

Linked To U.S. Public Finance Obligors' Creditworthiness," published Jan. 22, 2018 on RatingsDirect, we view the

limited-tax GO debt pledge on par with the issuer credit rating, which is based on the city's general creditworthiness.

The ad valorem taxes are not levied on a narrower or distinctly different tax base, and there are no limitations on the

fungibility of resources available for the payment of debt service.

Inclusive of the series 2020 issuance, the city will have approximately $24.5 million of net direct debt. We understand

the proceeds will fund road and park improvement projects.

Credit overview

Residential and commercial construction in Alvin remains robust despite the severity of the Covid-19 driven recession.

(see "The U.S. Faces A Longer And Slower Climb From The Bottom," published June 25, 2020, on RatingsDirect).

Continued development has led to consistent tax base and revenue growth. Combined with very strong management

policies and prudent spending, the city has added to its reserve position five consecutive years, providing a high level

of budgetary flexibility, which we believe puts the city in an advantageous position as the recession continues. Officials

report minimal disruption to the operations of its primary taxpayers as a result of the recession so far. Sales tax

collections remain strong, with projections to end the year slightly above 2019 levels.

WWW.STANDARDANDPOORS.COM/RATINGSDIRECT JULY 17, 2020   2

16



Moreover, the majority of its revenues come from property taxes, which should remain stable in the short-term.

Therefore, we view the credit as stable despite the risks and uncertainty associated with Covid-19. We anticipate that

its strong reserves, stable tax base, and strong management policies will aid the city through the recession with

minimal disruption to its key credit metrics over our outlook horizon. Therefore, we do not expect to change our rating

during the next two years. Although our outlook is generally for two years, we recognize the potential for downside

risk because of COVID-19 and the related recession during the next six months to 12 months.

The rating reflects our view of the city's:

• Adequate economy, with projected per capita effective buying income at 87.7% and market value per capita of

$50,544 and access to a broad and diverse MSA;

• Very strong management, with strong financial policies and practices under our financial management assessment

methodology;

• Strong budgetary performance, with operating surpluses in the general fund and at the total governmental fund level

in fiscal 2018;

• Very strong budgetary flexibility, with an available fund balance in fiscal 2019 of 70.1% of operating expenditures;

• Very strong liquidity, with total government available cash at 225.2% of total governmental fund expenditures and

59.2x governmental debt service, and access to external liquidity we consider strong;

• Adequate debt and contingent liability position, with debt service carrying charges at 3.8% of expenditures and net

direct debt that is 102.7% of total governmental fund revenue; and

• Strong institutional framework score

Environmental, social and governance (ESG) factors

Our rating and analysis incorporate our view of the health and safety risks posed by the COVID-19 pandemic, which

we believe could pressure city budgets in the short term to medium term. Also, the city's location near the Gulf Coast

makes it susceptible to severe weather events, including tropical storms and hurricanes; however, healthy reserves are

available to provide support during such emergencies. Overall, we consider the city's social and governance risks in

line with that of the sector.

Stable Outlook

Downside scenario

We could lower the rating if the city's budgetary performance were to weaken, leading to sustained operating deficits

and a resulting decline in reserves to a level below its formal reserve policy. We could also consider a lower rating if

debt issuances outpace tax base growth leading to significant deterioration to the city's debt and contingent liability

profile.

Upside scenario

We could raise the rating if the city's economic growth continues, leading to improved wealth and income levels that

are more in line with those of higher-rated peers.

WWW.STANDARDANDPOORS.COM/RATINGSDIRECT JULY 17, 2020   3

Summary: Alvin, Texas; General Obligation

17



Credit Opinion

Adequate economy

Officials note that the economy has been resilient since the onset of the Covid-19 pandemic. Many of its larger

taxpayers are classified as essential and remained open throughout the mandated closures. Those that were required

to close, including retail shops and restaurants, have reopened. However, with cases surging, particularly in Texas, the

risk of additional business closures remains a possibility. We will continue to monitor the effects of the recession on

the city's economy, but expect it will at least remain stable over our outlook horizon.

We consider Alvin's economy adequate. The city, with an estimated population of 29,087, is located in Brazoria

County in the Houston-The Woodlands-Sugar Land MSA, which we consider broad and diverse. The city has a

projected per capita effective buying income of 87.7% of the national level and per capita market value of $50,544.

Overall, the city's market value grew by 8.2% over the past year to $1.4 billion in 2019. The county unemployment rate

was 4.2% in 2019; however, as of April 2020 has risen to 13.4%, reflecting the severity of the recession.

Alvin encompasses approximately 15 square miles in northeast Brazoria County, about 25 miles southeast of

downtown Houston. Industries driving the regional economy include chemical manufacturing, petroleum processing,

advanced manufacturing, health care, retail, and education. The tax base is diverse, with the 10 leading taxpayers

responsible for 7.9% of AV. Leading that group is an industrial manufacturing company, a utility firm, and an oil and

gas company. Officials note the oil and gas activity in the area is almost exclusively mid-stream operations that have

not realized any material disruption so far from the significant drop in oil prices beginning in March. Very little of the

city's AV is tied directly to mineral values. Leading employers include Alvin ISD (3,648 employees), Empereon

Constar, a financial services firm (700), and INEOS Olefins & polymers, a chemical products company (575).

Residential and commercial growth remains strong as developers continue expansion projects throughout the Houston

MSA. Officials report that over 200 residential properties were constructed during 2019, adding roughly $40 million to

the city's tax base. Currently, close to 300 residential lots are in varying stages of completion throughout many of the

city's neighborhoods. Commercial development has also remained steady. Officials note that between new

construction and improvements, commercial properties added $20 million to the tax base in 2019. Future projects

include a new Chick-fil-A restaurant, Bluwave Carwash, and a new retail center that will house multiple restaurants

and additional retail space. The ongoing development projects have generally led to strong AV growth., increasing by

27% since 2015, or on average, 5% per year. Preliminary unadjusted AV values for 2021 are up 23% from the prior

year. While this excludes exemptions, officials still project a 17% increase raising total AV to roughly $1.7 billion.

Very strong management

We view the city's management as very strong, with strong financial policies and practices under our financial

management assessment methodology, indicating our view that financial practices are strong, well embedded, and

likely sustainable.

Key practices include:

• Use of 5 years of historical property tax revenue, AV growth, sales tax trends, and expense data, as well as

WWW.STANDARDANDPOORS.COM/RATINGSDIRECT JULY 17, 2020   4

Summary: Alvin, Texas; General Obligation

18



discussions with the appraisal office when formulating its budget assumptions;

• Monthly budget-to-actual results shared with council and amendments done as necessary;

• Quarterly investment and holdings reports shared with council per its formal investment policy which follows state

guidelines;

• Formal reserve policy to maintain an unassigned fund balance above 25% of expenditures which it is currently

exceeding;

• Formal debt management policy identifying types of issuable debt, and quantitative metrics including minimum

present value savings required on refunding and targeted amortization schedules;

• Maintenance of a 5-year capital improvement plan, identifying project costs and funding sources; and

• An annually updated long-range financial forecast, projecting revenues and expenditures through 2024.

Strong budgetary performance

Alvin's budgetary performance is strong, in our opinion. Our assessment considers our view that the pandemic and

recession pose an event risk that could increase performance volatility for cities over the medium term. The city

reported operating surpluses of 15.5% in the general fund and 6.8% across all government funds in 2019. In our

calculations, we have adjusted the town's revenues and expenditures to treat recurring transfers as either revenues or

expenditures, and eliminated significant one-time expenditures funded through cash-on-hand or debt proceeds.

Five consecutive general fund surpluses demonstrate the city's ability to spend prudently and build its fund balance.

Budgets are constructed with conservative estimates, typically resulting in positive variances between the budget and

actual results. The 2019 results were consistent with this trend, and both revenues and expenditures outperformed.

Property taxes are consistently the city's most significant source of operating revenues, representing 59% of 2019

totals, followed by sales taxes (16%), and franchise fees (8%). Interfund transfers are another vital aspect of the city's

revenue, supported by its various utility operations.

Expectations are to end the current year with a surplus of roughly $0.5 million. Sales tax collections were slightly up

during the first half of the year, and officials currently project higher collections at year-end than realized in 2019.

Management attributes the results to the city's limited reliance on the industries hit the hardest by the recession, such

as tourism, hospitality, and restaurants. Moreover, with the majority of its revenues coming from the residential sector,

expectations are that finances will remain strong.

In planning for the 2021 year, officials are projecting minimal sales tax growth and balanced operations. Officials will

continue to monitor events related to Covid-19 and make adjustments as needed. Provided the city's conservative

budgeting history and strong management policies, we anticipate if revenue shortfalls are more severe than expected,

management will prudently make offsetting adjustments to expenditures, ensuring maintenance of its healthy reserve

levels.

Very strong budgetary flexibility

Alvin's budgetary flexibility is very strong, in our view, with an available fund balance in fiscal 2019 of 70.1% of

operating expenditures, or $11.8 million. We expect the available fund balance to remain above 30% of expenditures

for the current and next fiscal years, which we view as a positive credit factor.

WWW.STANDARDANDPOORS.COM/RATINGSDIRECT JULY 17, 2020   5

Summary: Alvin, Texas; General Obligation

19



The city has maintained very strong reserves. While management may spend a portion of reserves on capital projects,

we expect budgetary flexibility to remain very strong given the city's target to maintain a minimum general fund

balance of 25% of expenditures, coupled with its demonstrated history of maintaining reserves well above that target.

Very strong liquidity

In our opinion, Alvin's liquidity is very strong, with total government available cash at 225.2% of total governmental

fund expenditures and 59.2x governmental debt service in 2019. In our view, the city has strong access to external

liquidity if necessary provided its frequent issuance of tax- and revenue-backed bonds during the past 20 years.

Alvin has historically had what we consider very strong cash balances and, given management's demonstrated ability

to maintain balanced operations, we do not believe its cash position will materially weaken over the next two years.

All of the city's investments comply with Texas statutes and the city's internal investment policy. At fiscal year-end

2019, the city's investments comprised of certificates of deposit (CDs) and state investment pools, which we do not

consider aggressive.

The city has one privately placed debt obligations totaling $3.9 million, or 6% of total direct debt. The private

placements contain no provisions that we view as a potential liquidity risk.

Adequate debt and contingent liability profile

In our view, Alvin's debt and contingent liability profile is adequate. Total governmental fund debt service is 3.8% of

total governmental fund expenditures, and net direct debt is 102.7% of total governmental fund revenue.

We adjusted the city's debt for $15.8 million of GO debt that is supported by utilities. The annual debt burden on the

governmental funds is expected to remain relatively low, as the significant portion of Alvin's debt outstanding will

continue to be supported by the enterprise funds. The city performs water rate studies to ensure rates are sufficient to

generate sufficient revenue to maintain the self-supporting nature of its utility debt. The city plans to issue a total of

roughly $7 million in additional certificates of obligation over the next five years; however, we do not expect it will

materially change the city's debt profile.

Pension and other postemployment benefits

Alvin's combined required pension and actual OPEB contributions totaled 8.2% of total governmental fund

expenditures in 2019, and the town made its full required pension contribution.

The city participates in:

• Texas Municipal Retirement System (TMRS), which was 81.4% funded, with a net pension liability equal to $12.1,

on Dec. 31, 2018, the latest measurement date;

• Texas Emergency Services Retirement System (TESRS), which was 80.3% funded, with a net pension liability equal

to $617,000, on Aug. 31, 2018, the latest measurement date.

Under state law governing TMRS, an actuary determines the contribution rate annually. Actuarial assumptions include

a 6.75% discount, which we view as aggressive, representing market risk and resulting in contribution volatility if

TMRS fails to meet assumed investment targets. TESRS' monthly contribution requirement per

WWW.STANDARDANDPOORS.COM/RATINGSDIRECT JULY 17, 2020   6

Summary: Alvin, Texas; General Obligation

20



active-emergency-services personnel is not actuarially determined. Rather, TESRS' board of trustees set

minimum-contribution provisions; there is no maximum contribution.

The city also participates in the cost-sharing, multiple-employer defined benefit group-term life insurance coverage to

both current and retired employees, which is operated by TMRS, known as the Supplemental Death Benefits Fund.

The city may terminate coverage and discontinue participation by adopting an ordinance before Nov. 1 of any year to

be effective the following Jan. 1. The city has historically contributed 100% of the contractually required rate as

determined by an annual actuarial valuation. As of Dec. 31, 2018, actuarial valuation, the city's net other

postemployment benefit liability was $554,014, using a 3.71% discount rate.

Certain terms used in this report, particularly certain adjectives used to express our view on rating relevant factors, have specific meanings ascribed

to them in our criteria, and should therefore be read in conjunction with such criteria. Please see Ratings Criteria at www.standardandpoors.com for

further information. Complete ratings information is available to subscribers of RatingsDirect at www.capitaliq.com. All ratings affected by this rating

action can be found on S&P Global Ratings' public website at www.standardandpoors.com. Use the Ratings search box located in the left column.

WWW.STANDARDANDPOORS.COM/RATINGSDIRECT JULY 17, 2020   7

Summary: Alvin, Texas; General Obligation

21



Page 1 

 

 

 

 

 
MAY  JUNE 

S M T W Th F S  S M T W Th F S 

     1 2   1 2 3 4 5 6 

3 4 5 6 7 8 9  7 8 9 10 11 12 13 

10 11 12 13 14 15 16  14 15 16 17 18 19 20 

17 18 19 20 21 22 23  21 22 23 24 25 26 27 

24/31 25 26 27 28 29 30  28 29 30     

               

JULY  AUGUST  

S M T W Th F S  S M T W Th F S 

   1 2 3 4        1 

5 6 7 8 9 10 11  2 3 4 5 6 7 8 

12 13 14 15 16 17 18  9 10 11 12 13 14 15 

19 20 21 22 23 24 25  16 17 18 19 20 21 22 

26 27 28 29 30 31   23/30 24 25 26 27 28 29 
 

 

Complete By  Day  

 

Event  Parties 

May 15  Friday  Send first draft of certificate documents to working group 

for comments.   

 FA 

       

June 1  Monday  Comments due on the first draft of certificate documents.  All 

       

June 4  Thursday  City Council approves the Notice of Intent (“NOI”) to 

issue Tax & Revenue Certificates of Obligation, Series 

2020 (the “Certificates”). 

 C, BC,FA 

       

June 5  Friday  City posts the NOI on the City website.  (Posting must 

remain on the City’s website until after the Certificate sale 

date.) 

 C 

       

June 5  Friday  Send first draft Certificate documents to Standard & Poor’s 

Rating Services for review.  Request rating call. 

 FA 

       

June 10  Wednesday  City provides NOI to the Alvin Sun for publication.  C 

       

June 14  Sunday  City publishes the first NOI in the local paper.  C, BC 

       

June 21  Sunday  City publishes the second NOI in the local paper.  C, BC 

       

June 29   Monday  Rating call with City Officials, Financial Advisor and S&P 

Monday, June 29, 2020.  

 C, FA 

       

July 10  Friday  Send second draft of Certificate documents for comments.  FA 

       

July 23  Thursday  Receive S&P verbal rating.  FA 

       

July 23  Thursday  Comments due on second draft of Certificate documents.  All 

       

CITY OF ALVIN, TEXAS 

TAX & REVENUE CERTIFICATES OF OBLIGATIONS, SERIES 2020 
S&P “AA” 

COUNCIL MEETS 1
ST

 & 3
RD

 THURSDAY OF THE MONTH (7:00PM)  

Tentative Timetable of Events 

Draft 4 
5/27/2020 

22



Page 2 

July 28  Tuesday  Print and mail POS – IPREO, Bloomberg, MAC.  FA 
       

July 28  Tuesday  Request CUSIPs.  FA 
       

August 6  Thursday  Competitive sale (Bids received until 10:00 a.m.).  All 

       

August 6  Thursday  City Council adopts Ordinance authorizing the Certificates.  All 
       

August 7  Friday  Distribute draft of Final Official Statement (“OS”).  FA 
       

August 12  Wednesday  Comments due on draft OS.  ALL 
       

August 13  Thursday  Print and mail Final OS.    FA 
       

August 27  Thursday  Deliver Certificates.  C, BC 

       
 

 

Legend   

City of Alvin  Issuer (C) 

Bracewell   Bond Counsel (BC) 
US Capital Advisors   Financial Advisor (FA) 

   
 

     

 

23



This presentation is provided by U.S. Capital Advisors LLC, on behalf of itself

and its subsidiaries, USCA Municipal Advisors LLC, USCA Securities LLC, and

USCA RIA LLC (collectively “USCA”). The material herein is based on

information obtained from sources generally believed to be reliable; however,

USCA cannot guarantee its accuracy or completeness. This presentation is in

summary form and does not purport to be complete. Actual events may differ

from assumptions herein, and such changes may have a material effect on results.

Nothing in this presentation shall form the basis of any contract or commitment

nor constitute investment advice or a recommendation to purchase or sell any

security. Municipal advisory services offered through USCA Municipal Advisors

LLC, registered MSRB; Securities offered through USCA Securities LLC,

member FINRA/SIPC; Investment advisory services offered through USCA

RIA LLC and USCA Asset Management LLC.

24



 

 

Agenda Commentary 

 

Meeting Date:   8/6/2020 

Department:  City Manager Contact:  Junru Roland, City Manager  

 
Agenda Item:   Discuss and take a record vote to propose a tax rate of $0.7680 per $100 of assessed 

valuation, which is a tax increase of 6.85% above the No New Revenue Rate, to be adopted 

at a future meeting.  
 

Type of Item: ☐Ordinance  ☐Resolution  ☐ Contract/Agreement  ☐Public Hearing  ☐Plat  ☐Discussion & Direction  ☒Other 

Summary:   The tax rate adoption process consists of the comparison of four (4) rates: the No New Revenue 

Rate, the Voter Approval Rate, the De Minimis Rate and the City’s Proposed Tax Rate. 
 

The No New Revenue Rate ($0.718765 per $100 of assessed valuation) is a hypothetical benchmark tax rate.  It 

is used to calculate the total tax rate needed to raise the same amount of property tax revenue from the same 

properties on the tax roll in both the 2019 tax year (FY20) and the 2020 tax year (FY21).   

 

The Voter Approval Rate ($0.804325 per $100 of assessed valuation) is the highest tax rate that the City may 

adopt without voter approval and requires an election (petition or mandatory) to go above the rate. 
  

The De Minimis Rate (.978801 per $100 of assessed valuation) is a hypothetical benchmark tax rate that allows 

cities (under 30,000 in population) to adopt a tax rate that generates $500,000 more in property tax revenue than 

the previous year.  The de minimis rate is designed to give cities some relief from the 3.5 percent Voter -

Approval Tax Rate -- allowing a small city to exceed the Voter Approval Rate of 3.5% and not require an 

election. 
 

The Proposed Tax Rate ($0.768000 per $100 of assessed valuation) is the rate proposed to generate property 

tax revenues to be used for the general maintenance and operational costs of providing City services, and paying 

the annual principal and interest on bonds and other debt secured by property tax revenues.  The additional 

revenue (above the No New Revenue rate) that will be generated is proposed to be used for the following 

projects and operational costs up for your consideration in FY21: 

   

• Additional personnel: 

o Five Patrol Officers 

o One Assistant City Engineer 

o One Kennel Technician 

o One Permit Coordinator 

o One Meter Technician 

• Pool Renovations 

• Utility Equipment 

• Competitive compensation for city personnel 

 

According to the Local Government Code, when a city initially proposes a tax rate that exceeds the lower of 

the Voter Approval Rate or the No New Revenue Rate, the city council must vote to place a proposal to adopt 



 

the proposed rate on the agenda of a future meeting as an action item.  If the motion passes, the governing body 

must schedule one public hearing on the City’s proposed tax rate. 
 

For FY21, staff is proposing to lower the City’s current tax rate by 1 (one) cent – from $0.7780 per $100 of 

taxable assessed valuation to $0.7680 per $100 of taxable assessed valuation.   Because the City’s Proposed 

Tax Rate exceeds the lower of the No New Revenue Rate or the Voter Approval Rate, one (1) public hearing is 

required to be held before adopting the proposed tax rate.  This public hearing is scheduled for August 20, 2020.    

 

The City Council will consider adopting the City’s “final” tax rate at the regular meeting of the City Council 

on September 3, 2020, at 7:00 p.m.   

 

Funding Expected: Revenue ☐ Expenditure ☐ N/A ☐ Budgeted Item: Yes ☐ No ☐ N/A ☒ 

Funding Account:  Amount:  1295 Form Required? Yes ☐ No ☒ 

Legal Review Required: N/A ☒ Required ☐    Date Completed: 7/29/2020 SLH 
 

 
Supporting documents attached: 

• Tax Rate Calculation Worksheet 

 
Recommendation:   Move to propose a tax rate of $0.7680 per $100 of assessed valuation, which is a tax 

increase of 6.85% above the No New Revenue tax rate, to be adopted at a future 

meeting. 

 
 

Reviewed by Department Head, if applicable ☐  Reviewed by Chief Financial Officer, if applicable ☒ 

Reviewed by City Attorney, if applicable ☒  Reviewed by City Manager ☒ 

 



Page 1 1001.1.6

07/29/2020 11:26 AMDate: 

2020 CITY OF ALVIN 281-388-4200

http://www.alvin-tx.gov/216 W Sealy, Alvin, TX, 77511

Taxing Unit Name Phone (area code and number

Taxing Unit's Website AddressTaxing Unit Address, City, State, ZIP Code

GENERAL INFORMATION: Tax Code Section 26.04(c) requires an officer or employee designated by the governing body to 
calculate the no-new-revenue (NNR) tax rate and voter-approval tax rate for the taxing unit. These tax rates are expressed in dollars per 
$100 of taxable value calculated. The calculation process starts after the chief appraiser delivers to the taxing unit the certified appraisal 
roll and the estimated values of properties under protest. The designated officer or employee shall certify that the officer or employee has 
accurately calculated the tax rates and used values shown for the certified appraisal roll or certified estimate. The officer or employee 
submits the rates to the governing body by Aug. 7 or as soon thereafter as practicable.

School districts do not use this form, but instead use Comptroller For 50-859 Tax Rate Calculation Worksheet for School Districts.

Water districts as defined under Water Code Section 49.001(1) should use Comptroller Form 50-858 Water District Rollback Tax Rate 
Worksheet. All other taxing units should use Comptroller Form 50-856 Tax Rate Calculation, Taxing Units Other Than School Districts.

The Comptroller's office provides this worksheet to assist taxing units in determining tax rates. The information provided in this 
worksheet is offered as technical assistance and not legal advice. Taxing units should consult legal counsel for interpretations of law 
regarding tax rate preparation and adoption.

Line No-New-Revenue Rate Activity Amount/Rate
1.

2.

3.

4.

5.

6.

2019 total taxable value. Enter the amount of 2019 taxable value on the 2019 tax 
roll today. Include any adjustments since last year's certification; exclude Tax Code 
Section 25.25(d) one-fourth and one-third over-appraisal corrections from these 
adjustments. Exclude any property value subject to an appeal under Chapter 42 as of 
July 25 (will add undisputed value in Line 6). This total includes the taxable value of
homesteads with tax ceilings (will deduct in Line 2) and the captured value for tax 
increment financing (will deduct taxes in Line 17).
2019 tax ceilings. Counties, cities and junior college districts. Enter 2019 total 
taxable value of homesteads with tax ceilings. These include the homesteads of 
homeowners age 65 or older or disabled. Other taxing units enter 0. If your taxing 
unit adopted the tax ceiling provision in 2019 or a prior year for homeowners age 65 
or older or disabled, use this step
Preliminary 2019 adopted taxable value. Subtract Line 2 from Line 1.

2019 total adopted tax rate

2019 taxable value lost because court appeals of ARB decisions reduced 2019 
appraised value:
A. Original 2019 ARB values:

B. 2019 values resulting from final court decisions:

C. 2019 value loss. Subtract B from A.[3]

2019 taxable value subject to appear under Chapter 42, as of July 25.

A. 2019 ARB certified value

$1,467,704,056 

$0 

$1,467,704,056 

    $.778000 

 

 

 

$0 

 

$0

$0

Taxing Units Other Than School Districts or Water Districts
2020 Tax Rate Calculation Worksheet

STEP 1: No-New-Revenue Tax Rate

The NNR tax rate enables the public to evaluate the relationship between taxes for the prior year and for the current year based on a tax 
rate that would produce the same amount of taxes (no new taxes) if applied to the same properties that are taxed in both year.

The NNR tax rate for a county is the sum of the NNR tax rates calculated for each type of tax the county levies.

While uncommon, it is possible for a taxing unit to provide an exemption for only maintenance and operation taxes. In this case, the 
taxing unit will need to calculate the NNR tax rate separately for the maintenance and operations tax and the debt tax, then add the two 
components together.



Page 2 1001.1.6

Line No-New-Revenue Rate Activity Amount/Rate

7.

8.

9.

10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

B. 2019 disputed value

C. 2019 undisputed value Subtract B from A

2019 Chapter 42-related adjusted values. Add Line 5 and 6

2019 taxable value, adjusted for court-ordered reductions. Add Line 3 and Line 
7
2019 taxable value of property in territory the taxing unit deannexed after Jan. 
1, 2019. Enter the 2019 value of property in deannexed territory.[5]
2019 taxable value lost because property first qualified for an exemption in 
2020. If the taxing unit increased an original exemption, use the difference between 
the original exempted amount and the increased exempted amount. Do not include 
value lost due to freeport, goods-in-transit, temporary disaster exemptions. Note 
that lowering the amount or percentage of an existing exemption in 2020 does not 
create a new exemption or reduce taxable value.
A. Absolute exemptions. Use 2019 market value:

B. Partial exemptions. 2020 exemption amount or 2020 percentage exemption times
2019 value:
C. Value loss. Add A and B.[6]

2019 taxable value lost because property first qualified for agricultural 
appraisal (1-d or 1-d-1),timber appraisal, recreational/scenic appraisal or 
public access airport special appraisal in 2020. Use only properties that qualified 
in 2020 for the first time; do not use properties that qualified in 2019.
A. Use 2019 market value:

B. 2020 productivity or special appraised value:

C. Value loss. Subtract B from A.

Total adjustments for lost value. Add Lines 9, 10C and 11C.

Adjusted 2019 taxable value. Subtract Line 12 from Line 8

Adjusted 2019 taxes. Multiply Line 4 by Line 13 and divide by $100

Taxes refunded for years preceding tax year 2019.  Enter the amount of taxes 
refunded by the district for tax years preceding tax year 2019. Types of refunds 
include court decisions, Tax Code Section 25.25(b) and (c) corrections and Tax Code
Section 31.11 payment errors. Do not include refunds for tax year 2019. This line 
applies only to tax years preceding tax year 2019. [8]
Taxes in tax increment financing (TIF) for tax year 2019  Enter the amount of 
taxes paid into the tax increment fund for a reinvestment zone as agreed by the 
taxing unit. If the taxing unit has no 2020 captured appraised value in Line 18D, 
enter 0.[9]
Adjusted 2019 levy with refunds and TIF adjustment. Add Lines 14, and 15, 
subtract Line 16.
Total 2020 taxable value on the 2020 certified appraisal roll today. This value 
includes only certified values or certified estimate of values and includes the total 
taxable value of homesteads with tax ceilings (will deduct in Line 20). These 
homesteads include homeowners age 65 or older or disabled.[11] 
A.Certified values

B. Counties Include railroad rolling stock values certified by the Comptroller's 
office
C. Pollution control and energy storage system exemption  Deduct the value of 
property exempted for the current tax year for the first time as pollution control or 
energy storage system property
D. Tax increment financing  Deduct the 2020 captured appraised value of property 
taxable by a taxing unit in a tax increment financing zone for which the 2020 taxes 
will be deposited into the tax increment fund. Do not include any new property value
that will be included in Line 23 below.[12]

 

 

0 

0 

$1,467,704,056 

$0 

 

 

 

$7,236,035 

 

 

 

$355,874 

$7,591,909 

$1,460,112,147 

$11,359,672 

$14,795 

$521,000 

$10,853,467 

 

 

 

 

 

0

0

$381,426

$6,854,609

$358,264

$2,390

$1,425,165,437

$0

$0

$81,610,202



Page 3 1001.1.6

Line No-New-Revenue Rate Activity Amount/Rate

19.

20.

21.

22.

23.

24.

25.

26.

27.

E. Total 2020 value Add A and B, then subtract C and D

Total value of properties under protest or not included on certified appraisal 
roll. [13]
A. 2020 taxable value of properties under protest  The chief appraiser certifies a 
list of properties still under ARB protest. The list shows the appraisal district'ˇs 
value and the taxpayer's claimed value, if any, or an estimate of the value if the 
taxpayer wins. For each of the properties under protest, use the lowest of these 
values. Enter the total value under protest [14]
B. 2020 value of properties not under protest or included on certified appraisal 
roll. The chief appraiser gives taxing units a list of those taxable properties that the 
chief appraiser knows about but are not included in the appraisal roll certification. 
These properties also are not on the list of properties that are still under protest. On 
this list of properties, the chief appraiser includes the market value, appraised value 
and exemptions for the preceding year and a reasonable estimate of the market value,
appraised value and exemptions for the current year. Use the lower market, appraised
or taxable value (as appropriate). Enter the total value of property not on the certified
roll.[15] 
C. Total value under protest or not certified.Add A and B.

2020 tax ceilings. Counties, cities and junior colleges enter 2020 total taxable value 
of homesteads with tax ceilings. These include the homesteads of homeowners age 
65 or older or disabled. Other taxing units enter 0. If your taxing unit adopted the tax 
ceiling provision in 2019 or a prior year for homeowners age 65 or older or disabled, 
use this step.
2020 total taxable value. Add Lines 18E and 19C. Subtract Line 20C.

Total 2020 taxable value of properties in territory annexed after Jan. 1, 2019. 
Include both real and personal property. Enter the 2020 value of property in territory 
annexed. [18] 
Total 2020 taxable value of new improvements and new personal property 
located in new improvements. New means the item was not on the appraisal roll in 
2019. An improvement is a building, structure, fixture or fence erected on or affixed 
to land. New additions to existing improvements may be included if the appraised 
value can be determined. New personal property in a new improvement must have 
been brought into the taxing unit after Jan. 1, 2019 and be located in a new 
improvement. New improvements do include property on which a tax abatement 
agreement has expired for 2020. [19] 
Total adjustments to the 2020 taxable value. Add Lines 22 and 23.

Adjusted 2020 taxable value. Subtract Line 24 from Line 21.

2020 NNR tax rate. Divide Line 17 by Line 25 and multiply by $100.

COUNTIES ONLY.  Add together the NNR tax rates for each type of tax the 
county levies. The total is the 2020 county NNR tax rate

$1,343,555,235 

 

 

 

$218,625,701 

$0 

$1,562,180,936 

$10,508,070 

$41,657,945 

$52,166,015 

$1,510,014,921 

    $.718766 /$100

    $.718765 /$100

[1]Tex. Tax Code Section [2]Tex. Tax Code Section 

[3]Tex. Tax Code Section [4]Tex. Tax Code Section 

[5]Tex. Tax Code Section [6]Tex. Tax Code Section 

[7]Tex. Tax Code Section [8]Tex. Tax Code Section 

[9]Tex. Tax Code Section [10]Tex. Tax Code Section 

[11]Tex. Tax Code Section [12]Tex. Tax Code Section 

[13]Tex. Tax Code Section [14]Tex. Tax Code Section 

[15]Tex. Tax Code Section [16]Tex. Tax Code Section 

[17]Tex. Tax Code Section [18]Tex. Tax Code Section 

[19]Tex. Tax Code Section [20]Tex. Tax Code Section 

[21]Tex. Tax Code Section 

$218,625,701

$0



Page 4 1001.1.6

Line Voter Approval Tax Rate Activity Amount/Rate

28.

29.

30.

31.

32.

33.

34.

2019 M&O tax rate.  Enter the 2019 M&O tax rate.
2019 taxable value, adjusted for actual and potential court-ordered 
adjustments. Enter the amount in Line 8 of the No-New-Revenue Tax Rate 
Worksheet.
Total 2019 M&O levy. Multiply Line 28 by Line 29 and divide by $100
Adjusted 2019 levy for calculating NNR M&O rate.  Add Line 31E to Line 30.
A. 2019 sales tax specifically to reduce property taxes. For cities, counties and 
hospital districts, enter the amount of additional sales tax collected and spent on 
M&O expenses in 2019, if any. Other taxing units, enter 0. Counties must exclude 
any amount that was spent for economic development grants from the amount of 
sales tax spent
B. M&O taxes refunded for years preceding tax year 2019. Enter the amount of 
M&O taxes refunded in the preceding year for taxes before that year. Types of 
refunds include court decisions, Tax Code Section 25.25(b) and (c) corrections and 
Tax Code Section 31.11 payment errors. Do not include refunds for tax year 2019. 
This line applies only to tax years preceding tax year 2019
C. 2019 taxes in TIF: Enter the amount of taxes paid into the tax increment fund for
a reinvestment zone as agreed by the taxing unit. If the taxing unit has no 2020 
captured appraised value in Line 18D, enter 0
D. 2019 transferred function: If discontinuing all of a department, function or 
activity and transferring it to another taxing unit by written contract, enter the 
amount spent by the taxing unit discontinuing the function in the 12 months 
preceding the month of this calculation. If the taxing unit did not operate this 
function for this 12-month period, use the amount spent in the last full fiscal year in 
which the taxing unit operated the function. The taxing unit discontinuing the 
function will subtract this amount in E below. The taxing unit receiving the function 
will add this amount in E below. Other taxing units enter 0. 
E. 2019 M&O levy adjustments. Add A and B, then subtract C. For taxing unit 
with D, subtract if discontinuing function and add if receiving function
Adjusted 2020 taxable value.  Enter the amount in Line 25 of the No-New-
Revenue Tax Rate Worksheet.
2020 NNR M&O rate (unadjusted)  Divide Line 31 by Line 32 and multiply by 
$100.
Rate adjustment for state criminal justice mandate. Enter the rate calculated in C.
If not applicable, enter 0.
A. 2020 state criminal justice mandate.  Enter the amount spent by a county in the 
previous 12 months providing for the maintenance and operation cost of keeping 
inmates in county-paid facilities after they have been sentenced. Do not include any 
state reimbursement received by the county for the same purpose. 
B. 2019 state criminal justice mandate  Enter the amount spent by a county in the 
12 months prior to the previous 12 months providing for the maintenance and 
operation cost of keeping inmates in county-paid facilities after they have been 
sentenced. Do not include any state reimbursement received by the county for the 
same purpose. Enter zero if this is the first time the mandate applies

    $.685623 
1,467,704,056 

10,062,916 
12,294,986 

 

 

 

 

2,232,070 

1,510,014,921 

0.814229 

0.000000 

 

 

2,677,116

13,434

458,480

0

0

0

STEP 2: Voter-Approval Tax Rate

The voter-approval tax rate is the highest tax rate that a taxing unit may adopt without holding an election to seek voter approval of the 
rate. The voter-approval tax rate is split into two separate rates:

1. Maintenance and Operations (M&O) Tax Rate: The M&O portion is the tax rate that is needed to raise the same amount of taxes 
that the taxing unit levied in the prior year plus the applicable percentage allowed by law. This rate accounts for such things as salaries, 
utilities and day-to-day operations.

2. Debt Rate: The debt rate includes the debt service necessary to pay the taxing unitˇs debt payments in the coming year. This rate 
accounts for principal and interest on bonds and other debt secured by property tax revenue.

The voter-approval tax rate for a county is the sum of the voter-approval tax rates calculated for each type of tax the county levies. In 
most cases the voter-approval tax rate exceeds the no-new-revenue tax rate, but occasionally decreases in a taxing unitˇs debt 
service will cause the NNR tax rate to be higher than the voter-approval tax rate.



Page 5 1001.1.6

Line Voter Approval Tax Rate Activity Amount/Rate

35.

36.

37.

38.

39.

40.

C. Subtract B from A and divide by Line 32 and multiply by $100
Rate adjustment for indigent health care expenditures Enter the rate calculated in
C. If not applicable, enter 0
A. 2020 indigent health care expenditures Enter the amount paid by a taxing unit 
providing for the maintenance and operation cost of providing indigent health care 
for the period beginning on July 1, 2019 and ending on June 30, 2020, less any state 
assistance received for the same purpose
B. 2019 indigent health care expenditures  Enter the amount paid by a taxing unit 
providing for the maintenance and operation cost of providing indigent health care 
for the period beginning on July 1, 2018 and ending on June 30, 2019, less any state 
assistance received for the same purpose
C. Subtract B from A and divide by Line 32 and multiply by $100
Rate adjustment for county indigent defense compensation Enter the lessor of C 
and D. If not applicable, enter 0
A. 2020 indigent defense compensation expenditures  Enter the amount paid by a 
county to provide appointed counsel for indigent individuals for the period beginning
on July 1, 2019 and ending on June 30, 2020, less any state grants received by the 
county for the same purpose
B. 2019 indigent defense compensation expenditures Enter the amount paid by a 
county to provide appointed counsel for indigent individuals for the period beginning
on July 1, 2018 and ending on June 30, 2019, less any state grants received by the 
county for the same purpose
C. Subtract B from A and divide by Line 32 and multiply by $100
D. Multiply B by 0.05 and divide by Line 32 and multiply by $100
Rate adjustment for county hospital expenditures. Enter the lessor of C and D, if 
applicable. If not applicable, enter 0.
A. 2020 eligible county hospital expenditures  Enter the amount paid by the county
or municipality to maintain and operate an eligible county hospital for the period 
beginning on July 1, 2019 and ending on June 30, 2020
B. 2019 eligible county hospital expenditures Enter the amount paid by the county 
or municipality to maintain and operate an eligible county hospital for the period 
beginning on July 1, 2018 and ending on June 30, 2019
C. Subtract B from A and divide by Line 32 and multiply by $100
D.  Multiply B by 0.08 and divide by Line 32 and multiply by $100
Adjusted 2020 NNR M&O rate.  Add Lines 33, 34, 35, 36, and 37
2020 voter-approval M&O rate. Enter the rate as calculated by the appropriate 
scenario below.
Special Taxing Unit If the taxing unit qualifies as a special taxing unit, multiply 
Line 38 by 1.08
-or-
Other Taxing Unit If the taxing unit does not qualify as a special taxing unit, 
multiply Line 38 by 1.035. 
-or-
Taxing unit affected by disaster declaration If the taxing unit is located in an area 
declared as disater area, the governing body may direct the person calculating the 
voter-approval rate to calculate in the manner provided for a special taxing unit. The
taxing unit shall continue to calculate the voter-approval rate in this manner until the
earlier of 1) the second year in which total taxable value on the certified appraisal 
roll exceeds the total taxable value of the tax year in which the disaster occurred, and
2) the third tax year after the tax year in which the disaster occurred. If the taxing 
unit qualifies under this scenario, multiply Line 38 by 1.08. [27] 
Total 2020 debt to be paid with property taxes and additional sales tax revenue. 
Debt means the interest and principal that will be paid on debts that:  
(1) are paid by property taxes, 
(2) are secured by property taxes, 
(3) are scheduled for payment over a period longer than one year, and 
(4) are not classified in the taxing unit's budget as M&O expenses.

 
0.000000 

 

 

 
0.000000 

 

 

 
 

0 

 

 

 
 

0.814229 
0.842727 

 

0.000000

0

0

0.000000

0

0

0.000000
0.000000

0

0

0.000000
0.000000



Page 6 1001.1.6

Line Voter Approval Tax Rate Activity Amount/Rate

41.

42.

43.

44.

45.

46.

47.

48.

A. Debt also includes contractual payments to other taxing units that have incurred 
debts on behalf of this taxing unit, if those debts meet the four conditions above. 
Include only amounts that will be paid from property tax revenue. Do not include 
appraisal district budget payments. 
 Enter debt amount
B. Subtract unencumbered fund amount used to reduce total debt.
C.  Subtract certified amount spent from sales tax to reduce debt(enter zero if 
none)
D. Subtract amount paid from other resource 
E. Adjusted debt Subtract B, C and D from A
Certified 2019 excess debt collections Enter the amount certified by the collector. 
Adjusted 2020 debt Subtract Line 41 from Line 40E
2020 anticipated collection rate. . If the anticipated collection rate in A is lower 
than actual collection rates in B, C and D, enter the lowest collection rate from B, C 
and D. If the anticipated rate in A is higher than at least one of the rates in the prior 
three years, enter the rate from A. Note that the rate can be greater than 100%
A. Enter the 2020 anticipated collection rate certified by the collector
B. Enter the 2019 actual collection rate
C. Enter the 2018 actual collection rate
D. Enter the 2017 actual collection rate
2020 debt adjusted for collections. Divide Line 42 by Line 43. 
2020 total taxable value. Enter the amount on Line 21 of the No-New-Revenue 
Tax Rate Worksheet.
2020 debt rate Divide Line 44 by Line 45 and multiply by $100.
2020 voter-approval tax rate

COUNTIES ONLY

 

 
 

 
2,118,148 

0 
2,118,148 

  102.28 

 
 
 
 

2,070,930 
1,562,180,936 

0.132566 
0.975293 
0.975293 

Line Additional Sales and Use Tax Worksheet Amount/Rate

49.

50.

51.

52.

53.

54.

55.

Taxable sales. For taxing units that adopted the sales tax in November 2019 or May 
2020, enter the Comptroller's estimate of taxable sales for the previous four quarters.
Estimates of taxable sales may be obtained through the Comptroller's Allocation 
Historical Summary webpage. Taxing units that adopted the sales tax before 
November 2019, skip this line.
Estimated sales tax revenue. Counties exclude any amount that is or will be spent 
for economic development grants from the amount of estimated sales tax revenue. 
  Taxing units that adopted the sales tax in November 2019 or in May 2020. 
Multiply the amount on Line 49 by the sales tax rate (.01, .005 or .0025, as 
applicable) and multiply the result by .95[3]  -or- 
  Taxing units that adopted the sales tax before November 2019. Enter the sales 
tax revenue for the previous four quarters. Do not multiply by .95.
2020 total taxable value. Enter the amount from Line 21 of the No-New-Revenue 
Tax Rate Worksheet..
Sales tax adjustment rate. Divide Line 50 by Line 51 and multiply by $100.

2020 NNR tax rate, unadjusted for sales tax.[35] Enter the rate from Line 26 or 
27, as applicable, on the No-New-Revenue Tax Rate Worksheet.
2020 NNR tax rate, adjusted for sales tax. 
  Subtract Line 52 from Line 55.
2020 voter-approval tax rate, unadjusted for sales tax.[36] Enter the rate from 

0

2,670,816

1,562,180,936

0.170968

    $.718765

    

0.975293

2,118,148

0
0

0

  102.28
  103.42
  102.28
  109.53

STEP 3 NNR Tax Rate and Voter-Approval Tax Rate Adjustments for Additional Sales tAx to Reduce Property Taxes

Cities, counties and hospital districts may levy a sales tax specifically to reduce property taxes. Local voters by election must approve 
imposing or abolishing the additional sales tax. If approved, the taxing unit must reduce its NNR and voter-approval tax rates to offset 
the expected sales tax revenue.
This section should only be completed by a county, city or hospital district that is required to adjust its NNR tax rate and/or voter-
approval tax rate because it adopted the additional sales tax.



Page 7 1001.1.6

Line Additional Sales and Use Tax Worksheet Amount/Rate

56.

Line 47 or Line 48 as applicable, of the Voter-Approval Tax Rate
Worksheet

2020 voter-approval tax rate, adjusted for sales tax. 
   Subtract Line 52 from Line 55.

0.804325

[37]Tex. Tax Code Section [38]Tex. Tax Code Section 

Line  Activity Amount/Rate

57.

58.

59.

60.

Certified expenses from the Texas Commission on Environmental Quality (TCEQ).[6] Enter the 
amount certified in the determination letter from TCEQ. The taxing unit shall provide its tax assessor 
collector with a copy of the letter.[7]

2020 total taxable value. Enter the amount from Line 21 of the No-New-Revenue Tax Rate Worksheet

Additional rate for pollution control. Divide Line 57 by Line 58 and multiply by $100.

2020 voter-approval tax rate, adjusted for pollution control. Add Line 59 to one of the following lines 
(as applicable): Line 47, Line 48 (counties) or Line 56 (taxing units with the additional sales tax).

$0 

0.000000 

 

Line  Activity Amount/Rate
61.

62.

63.

64.

65.

2019 unused increment rate.  Subtract the 2019 actual tax rate and the 2019 unused increment rate from
the 2019 voter-approval tax rate. If the number is less than zero, enter zero. If the year is prior to 2020, 
enter zero.
2018 unused increment rate.  Subtract the 2018 actual tax rate and the 2018 unused increment rate from
the 2028 voter-approval tax rate. If the number is less than zero, enter zero. If the year is prior to 2020, 
enter zero.
2017 unused increment rate.  Subtract the 2017 actual tax rate and the 2017 unused increment rate from
the 2017 voter-approval tax rate. If 
the number is less than zero, enter zero. If the year is prior to 2020, enter zero.
2020 unused increment rate. Add Lines 61, 62 and 63.

2020 voter-approval tax rate, adjusted for unused increment rate. Add Line 64 to one of the 
following lines (as applicable): Line 47, Line 48 (counties), Line 56 (taxing units with the additional 
sales tax) or Line 60 (taxing units with pollution control).

0.000000 

0.000000 

0.000000 

0.000000 

0.000000 

STEP 4: Additional Rollback Protection for Pollution Control

A taxing unit may raise its rate for M&O funds used to pay for a facility, device or method for the control of air, water or land pollution. 
This includes any land, structure, building, installation, excavation, machinery, equipment or device that is used, constructed, acquired or 
installed wholly or partly to meet or exceed pollution control requirements. The taxing unitˇs expenses are those necessary to meet the 
requirements of a permit issued by the Texas Commission on Environmental Quality (TCEQ). The taxing unit must provide the tax 
assessor with a copy of the TCEQ letter of determination that states the portion of the cost of the installation for pollution control.
This section should only by completed by a taxing unit that uses M&O funds to pay for a facility, device or method for the control of air, 
water or land pollution.

STEP 5: Voter-Voter-Approval Tax Rate Adjustment for Unused Increment Rate

The unused increment rate is the rate equal to the difference between the adopted tax rate and voter-approval tax rate before the unused 
increment rate for the prior three years.[39] In a year where a special taxing unit adopts a rate above the voter-approval tax rate by 
applying any portion of the unused increment rate, the unused increment rate for that year would be zero. Consult with legal counsel to 
ensure appropriate calculation of the unused increment rate.

For each tax year before 2020, the difference between the adopted tax rate and voter-approval rate is considered zero, therefore the unused
increment rate for 2020 is zero.[40]

This section should only be completed by a taxing unit that is a municipality of less than 30,000 or a taxing unit that does not meet the 
definition of a special taxing unit. [41]

[37]Tex. Tax Code Section [38]Tex. Tax Code Section 



Page 8 1001.1.6

STEP 8: Taxing Unit Representative Name and Signature

print here
Printed Name of Taxing Unit Representative

sign here
Taxing Unit Representative Date

STEP 7: Total Tax Rate

Indicate the applicable total tax rates as calculated above.

No-new-revenue tax rate

Voter-Approval Tax Rate

De minimis rate

 

0.718765 

0.804325 

0.978801 

Line  Activity Amount/Rate
66.

67.

68.

69.

70.

Adjusted 2020 NNR M&O tax rate.  Enter the rate from Line 38 of the Voter-Approval Tax Rate 
Worksheet
2020 total taxable value Enter the amount on Line 21 of the No-New-Revenue Tax Rate Worksheet

Rate necessary to impose $500,000 in taxes. Divide $500,000 by Line 67 and multiply by $100.

2020 debt rate  Enter the rate from Line 46 of the Voter- Approval Tax Rate Worksheet

De minimis rate Add Lines 66, 68 and 69.

0.814229 

1,562,180,936 

0.032006 

0.132566 

0.978801 

STEP 6: De Minimis Rate

The de minimis rate is the rate equal to the sum of the no=new-revenue maintenance and operations rate, the rate that will raise $500,000, 
and the current debt rate for a taxing unit.[42]

This section should only be completed by a taxing unit that is a municipality of less than 30,000 or a taxing unit that does not meet the 
definition of a special taxing unit. [41]



 

 

Agenda Commentary 

 

Meeting Date:   8/6/2020 

Department:  City Manager Contact:  Junru Roland, City Manager  

 
Agenda Item:   Consider setting one (1) public hearing concerning the proposed tax rate on Thursday, 

August 20, 2020, at 7:00 p.m., in the City Council Chambers, City Hall, 216 West Sealy, 

Alvin, Texas, or possible virtual meeting due to the COVID-19 pandemic. 

 

Type of Item: ☐Ordinance  ☐Resolution  ☐ Contract/Agreement  ☐Public Hearing  ☐Plat  ☐Discussion & Direction  ☒Other 

Summary:   The City’s proposed tax rate exceeds the No New Revenue tax rate, but is less than the Voter 

Approval Rate. As a result, the Local Government Code requires City Council to set (1) public hearing on the 

proposed tax rate. 

The City Council will consider adopting the final tax rate at the regular meeting of the City Council on 

September 3, 2020, at 7:00 p.m. 

Funding Expected: Revenue ☐ Expenditure ☐ N/A ☒ Budgeted Item: Yes ☐ No ☐ N/A ☒ 

Funding Account:  Amount:  1295 Form Required? Yes ☐ No ☒ 

Legal Review Required: N/A ☒ Required ☐    Date Completed: 7/29/2020 SLH 

 
 
Supporting documents attached: 

• Notice of Public Hearing on Tax  

 
Recommendation:   Move to set one (1) public hearing concerning the proposed tax rate on Thursday, 

August 20, 2020, at 7:00 p.m., in the City Council Chambers, City Hall, 216 West 

Sealy, Alvin, Texas, or via virtual meeting due to the COVID-19 pandemic. 

 
 

Reviewed by Department Head, if applicable ☐  Reviewed by Chief Financial Officer, if applicable ☒ 

Reviewed by City Attorney, if applicable ☒  Reviewed by City Manager ☒ 

 



1102

PROPOSED TAX RATE
NO-NEW REVENUE TAX RATE
VOTER-APPROVAL TAX RATE

0.768000 per $100
0.718765 per $100
0.804325 per $100

The no-new-revenue tax rate is the tax rate for the 2020 tax year that will raise the same amount of property tax revenue for CITY OF 
ALVIN from the same properties in both the 2019 tax year and the 2020 tax year.

A public hearing on the proposed tax rate will be held on August 20, 2020 at 7:00pm at City Hall located at 126 W Sealy in Alvin 
Texas 77511.

YOUR TAXES OWED UNDER ANY OF THE ABOVE RATES CAN BE CALCULATED AS
FOLLOWS:

property tax amount=(tax rate) X (taxable value of your property)/100
The members of the governing body voted on the proposed tax increase as follows:

FOR:

AGAINST:

PRESENT and not voting:

ABSENT:

The 86th Texas Legislature modified the manner in which the voter-approval tax rate is calculated to limit the rate of growth 
of property taxes in the state.

The following table compares the taxes imposed on the average residence homestead by CITY OF ALVIN last year to the taxes 
proposed to be imposed on the average residence homestead by CITY OF ALVIN this year:

Total Tax Rate (per $100 of value)
Average homestead taxable value
Tax on average homestead
Total tax levy on all properties

2019
0.778000
157,286
1223.69

11,433,532

For assistance with tax calculations, please contact the tax assessor for CITY OF ALVIN at 979-864-1320 or 
roving@brazoria-county.com, or visit https://www.brazoriacountytx.gov/departments/tax-office for more information.

2020
0.768000
171,596
1317.86

11,997,549

Change
decrease of           -$0.010000 OR     -1.29%
increase of      9.09%
increase of           $94 OR      7.69%
increase of      $564,018 OR      4.93%

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING ON TAX 
INCREASE 



 

 

Agenda Commentary 

 

Meeting Date:   8/6/2020 

Department:  Engineering Contact:  Michelle H. Segovia, City Engineer  

 
Agenda Item:   Consider Ordinance 20-T, granting a permit to Baymark Pipeline, LLC. to construct 

certain pipeline facilities in certain property or rights-of-way of the City; regulating such 

construction, the date of completion, and the locations of street crossings; providing for a 

notice to proceed, fees, deposits, insurance, and a guaranty of performance; providing for 

non-waiver by the City; regulating conflicting terms of laws; providing a penalty in an 

amount not to exceed $1,000.00 per day for each day of violation of any provision hereof; 

providing for severability; and other matters related thereto. 
 

 

Type of Item: ☒Ordinance  ☐Resolution  ☐Contract/Agreement  ☐Public Hearing  ☐Plat  ☐Discussion & Direction  ☐Other 

Summary:   Baymark Pipeline, LLC. is proposing the construction of a 12” Ethylene Pipeline in an existing 

pipeline right-of-way (south of the Kendall Lakes Subdivision).  This line will extend 91 miles from LaPorte, 

Texas (Bayport) to Markham, Texas, with approximately 1.55 miles of it being within the City Limits of Alvin. 

Construction is scheduled to begin upon permit approval and is expected to reach completion in the fourth 

quarter of 2021. The proposed overall alignment of the line is shown on Exhibit (ii) of the attached application. 

 

Baymark Pipeline, LLC., through its right-of-way agent Percheron, LLC., has submitted all required 

information as required by Chapter 16 Article IV Pipelines of the City’s Code of Ordinances.  

 

Staff recommends approval of Ordinance 20-T. 

 

Funding Expected: Revenue ☒ Expenditure ☐ N/A ☐ Budgeted Item: Yes ☐ No ☒ N/A ☐ 

Funding Account:  Amount:  1295 Form Required? Yes ☐ No ☒ 

Legal Review Required: N/A ☐ Required ☒    Date Completed: 7/30/2020 SLH 

 
 
Supporting documents attached: 

• Ordinance 20-T 

• Exhibit A 

• Baymark Pipeline, LLC. Permit Application  

 

 
Recommendation:   Move to approve Ordinance 20-T, granting a permit to Baymark Pipeline, LLC. to 

construct certain pipeline facilities in certain property or rights-of-way of the City; 

regulating such construction, the date of completion, and the locations of street 

crossings; providing for a notice to proceed, fees, deposits, insurance, and a guaranty 



 

of performance; providing for non-waiver by the City; regulating conflicting terms 

of laws; providing a penalty in an amount not to exceed $1,000.00 per day for each 

day of violation of any provision hereof; providing for severability; and other 

matters related thereto. 

 

 
 

Reviewed by Department Head, if applicable ☒  Reviewed by Chief Financial Officer, if applicable ☒ 

Reviewed by City Attorney, if applicable ☒  Reviewed by City Manager ☒ 

 



Ord 20-T   Page 1 of 3 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 20-T 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF ALVIN, TEXAS, GRANTING A 

PERMIT TO BAYMARK PIPELINE, LLC TO CONSTRUCT CERTAIN 

PIPELINE FACILITIES IN CERTAIN PROPERTY OR RIGHTS-OF-

WAY OF THE CITY; REGULATING SUCH CONSTRUCTION, THE 

DATE OF COMPLETION, AND THE LOCATIONS OF STREET 

CROSSINGS; PROVIDING FOR A NOTICE TO PROCEED, FEES, 

DEPOSITS, INSURANCE, AND A GUARANTY OF PERFORMANCE; 

PROVIDING FOR NON-WAIVER BY THE CITY; REGULATING 

CONFLICTING TERMS OF LAWS; PROVIDING A PENALTY IN AN 

AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $1,000.00 PER DAY FOR EACH DAY OF 

VIOLATION OF ANY PROVISION HEREOF; PROVIDING FOR 

SEVERABILITY; AND OTHER MATTERS RELATED THERETO. 

 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ALVIN, TEXAS: 

 

Section 1.  In accordance with the Alvin Pipeline Ordinance, Chapter 16, Article IV of the 

Alvin Code of Ordinances, the City Council for the City of Alvin hereby grants a permit to 

Baymark Pipeline, LLC (“User”) to construct the pipeline facilities described on Exhibit “A” 

hereto in, under, and across the rights-of-way of the City at the locations shown on Exhibit “A” 

hereto. 

  

Section 2.  Said pipeline facilities shall be constructed according to the attached Exhibit “A” 

and all applicable law. 

  

Section 3.  Said pipeline facility shall be completed no later than December 31, 2021. 

  

Section 4. The points at which the pipeline facilities may cross the City’s rights-of-way are 

specified on the attached Exhibit “A.” 

  

Section 5.  No construction of said pipeline facilities shall begin until the City has issued a 

notice to proceed pursuant to the Pipeline Ordinance, after User has filed with the City proof of 

insurance, a guaranty of performance, and all applicable fees and deposits, all pursuant to the 

Pipeline Ordinance of the City. 

  

Section 6.  This Ordinance shall not waive or impair any of the requirements of the Pipeline 

Ordinance of the City. This Ordinance is subject to the terms of the Pipeline Ordinance. 

However, in the event of a conflict of terms, the more restrictive provision that provides greater 

protection to the City and its property shall govern and control. 

  

Section 7.  This Ordinance is expressly conditioned upon compliance with the Alvin 

Pipeline Ordinance and other applicable city ordinances, including but not limited to, Alvin City 

Code, Chapter 24, Traffic, Article III, Commercial Motor Vehicles. If any provision of the 

Pipeline Ordinance is not followed, a permit for the construction of facilities or this franchise 



Ord 20-T   Page 2 of 3 

 

may be revoked. If a person has not followed the terms and conditions of the Pipeline Ordinance 

with respect to work done pursuant to a prior permit, new permits may be denied, or additional 

terms may be required.  

  

Section 8.  If any part of this Ordinance, of whatever size, is ever declared invalid or 

unenforceable for any reason, the remainder of this order shall remain in full force and effect. 

  

Section 9.  This Ordinance shall be effective when it has been passed and adopted by the City 

and has been accepted by the User as shown by User’s signature hereon. This Ordinance shall be 

void unless User signs it within thirty days of its passage and adoption. By signing this 

Ordinance, User also represents, warrants, and agrees that User shall comply with this 

Ordinance, the Pipeline Ordinance, and all applicable law concerning the subject matter of this 

Ordinance. 

 

Section 10. Penalty.  Any person who shall intentionally, knowingly, recklessly, or with criminal 

negligence violate any provision of this chapter shall be deemed guilty of a misdemeanor and, 

upon conviction, shall be fined in an amount not to exceed $1000.00.  Each day of violation shall 

constitute a separate offense. Additionally, civil remedies and penalties may be imposed for 

violation of any provision of ordinance pursuant to Section 16-87. 

 

Section 11. Repealing Clause.  All ordinances or parts of ordinances inconsistent or in conflict 

herewith, are, to the extent of such inconsistency or conflict, hereby repealed. 

  

Section 12. Severability.  In the event any clause, phrase, provision, sentence, or part of this 

Ordinance or the application of the same to any person or circumstance shall for any reason be 

adjudged invalid or held unconstitutional by a court of competent jurisdiction, it shall not affect, 

impair, or invalidate this Ordinance as a whole or any part or provision hereof other than the part 

declared to be invalid or unconstitutional; and the City Council of the City of Alvin, Texas, 

declares that it would have passed each and every part of the same notwithstanding the omission 

of any such part thus declared to be invalid or unconstitutional, whether there be one or more 

parts. 
 

Section 13.  Open Meetings Act.  It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at 

which this resolution was passed was open to the public and public notice of the time, place and 

purpose of said meeting was given, all as required by the Open Meetings Act, Chapter 551 of the 

Texas Government Code. 

 

 

PASSED AND APPROVED on the 6th day of August 2020. 

 

 

CITY OF ALVIN, TEXAS:     ATTEST:    

  

 

 

By: ________________________________  By: _____________________________  

 Paul A. Horn, Mayor     Dixie Roberts, City Secretary                                        



Ord 20-T   Page 3 of 3 

 

 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

 

___________________________________ 

Suzanne Hanneman, City Attorney 

 

 

PERMIT USER – Baymark Pipeline, LLC:       ATTEST: 

 

 

 

By: ________________________________  By: _____________________________  

   

 

 







































































































 

 

Agenda Commentary 

 

Meeting Date:   8/6/2020 

Department:  Engineering Contact:  Michelle H. Segovia, City Engineer  

 
Agenda Item:   Consider Ordinance 20-U, granting a permit to South Texas NGL Pipelines, LLC. to 

construct certain pipeline facilities in certain property or rights-of-way of the City; 

regulating such construction, the date of completion, and the locations of street crossings; 

providing for a notice to proceed, fees, deposits, insurance, and a guaranty of 

performance; providing for non-waiver by the City; regulating conflicting terms of laws; 

providing a penalty in an amount not to exceed $1,000.00 per day for each day of 

violation of any provision hereof; providing for severability; and other matters related 

thereto. 
 

 

Type of Item: ☒Ordinance  ☐Resolution  ☐Contract/Agreement  ☐Public Hearing  ☐Plat  ☐Discussion & Direction  ☐Other 

Summary:   South Texas NGL Pipelines, LLC. is proposing the construction of an 8” Polymer Grade 

Propylene Pipeline in an existing pipeline right-of-way (south of the Kendall Lakes Subdivision).  This line 

will extend 134 miles from League City to Port Lavaca, Texas with approximately 1.55 miles of it being within 

the City Limits of Alvin. Construction is scheduled to begin upon permit approval and is expected to reach 

completion in the fourth quarter of 2021. The proposed overall alignment of the line is shown on Exhibit (ii) of 

the attached application. 

 

South Texas NGL Pipelines, LLC., through its right-of-way agent Percheron, LLC., has submitted all required 

information as required by Chapter 16 Article IV Pipelines of the City’s Code of Ordinances.  

 

Staff recommends approval of Ordinance 20-U. 

 

Funding Expected: Revenue ☒ Expenditure ☐ N/A ☐ Budgeted Item: Yes ☐ No ☒ N/A ☐ 

Funding Account:  Amount:  1295 Form Required? Yes ☐ No ☒ 

Legal Review Required: N/A ☐ Required ☒    Date Completed: 7/30/2020 

 
 
Supporting documents attached: 

• Ordinance 20-U 

• Exhibit A 

• South Texas NGL Pipelines, LLC. Permit Application  

 

 
Recommendation:   Move to approve Ordinance 20-U, granting a permit to South Texas NGL Pipelines, 

LLC. to construct certain pipeline facilities in certain property or rights-of-way of 



 

the City; regulating such construction, the date of completion, and the locations of 

street crossings; providing for a notice to proceed, fees, deposits, insurance, and a 

guaranty of performance; providing for non-waiver by the City; regulating 

conflicting terms of laws; providing a penalty in an amount not to exceed $1,000.00 

per day for each day of violation of any provision hereof; providing for severability; 

and other matters related thereto. 

 

 
 

Reviewed by Department Head, if applicable ☒  Reviewed by Chief Financial Officer, if applicable ☐ 

Reviewed by City Attorney, if applicable ☒  Reviewed by City Manager ☒ 

 



Ord 20-U   Page 1 of 3 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 20-U 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF ALVIN, TEXAS, GRANTING A 

PERMIT TO SOUTH TEXAS NGL PIPELINES, LLC TO CONSTRUCT 

CERTAIN PIPELINE FACILITIES IN CERTAIN PROPERTY OR 

RIGHTS-OF-WAY OF THE CITY; REGULATING SUCH 

CONSTRUCTION, THE DATE OF COMPLETION, AND THE 

LOCATIONS OF STREET CROSSINGS; PROVIDING FOR A NOTICE 

TO PROCEED, FEES, DEPOSITS, INSURANCE, AND A GUARANTY OF 

PERFORMANCE; PROVIDING FOR NON-WAIVER BY THE CITY; 

REGULATING CONFLICTING TERMS OF LAWS; PROVIDING A 

PENALTY IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $1,000.00 PER DAY FOR 

EACH DAY OF VIOLATION OF ANY PROVISION HEREOF; 

PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; AND OTHER MATTERS RELATED 

THERETO. 

 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ALVIN, TEXAS: 

 

Section 1.  In accordance with the Alvin Pipeline Ordinance, Chapter 16, Article IV of the 

Alvin Code of Ordinances, the City Council for the City of Alvin hereby grants a permit to South 

Texas NGL Pipelines, LLC (User) to construct the pipeline facilities described on Exhibit “A” 

hereto in, under, and across the rights-of-way of the City at the locations shown on Exhibit “A” 

hereto. 
  

Section 2. Said pipeline facilities shall be constructed according to the attached Exhibit “A” 

and all applicable law. 

  

Section 3. Said pipeline facility shall be completed no later December 31, 2021. 

  

Section 4. The points at which the pipeline facilities may cross the City’s rights-of-way are 

specified on the attached Exhibit “A.” 

  

Section 5. No construction of said pipeline facilities shall begin until the City has issued a 

notice to proceed pursuant to the Pipeline Ordinance, after User has filed with the City proof of 

insurance, a guaranty of performance, and all applicable fees and deposits, all pursuant to the 

Pipeline Ordinance of the City. 

  

Section 6. This Ordinance shall not waive or impair any of the requirements of the Pipeline 

Ordinance of the City. This Ordinance is subject to the terms of the Pipeline Ordinance. 

However, in the event of a conflict of terms, the more restrictive provision that provides greater 

protection to the City and its property shall govern and control. 

  

Section 7. This Ordinance is expressly conditioned upon compliance with the Alvin Pipeline 

Ordinance and other applicable city ordinances, including but not limited to, Alvin City Code, 

Chapter 24, Traffic, Article III, Commercial Motor Vehicles. If any provision of the Pipeline 

Ordinance is not followed, a permit for the construction of facilities or this franchise may be 



Ord 20-U  Page 2 of 3 

 

revoked. If a person has not followed the terms and conditions of the Pipeline Ordinance with 

respect to work done pursuant to a prior permit, new permits may be denied, or additional terms 

may be required.  

  

Section 8. If any part of this ordinance, of whatever size, is ever declared invalid or 

unenforceable for any reason, the remainder of this order shall remain in full force and effect. 

  

Section 9. This Ordinance shall be effective when it has been passed and adopted by the City and 

has been accepted by the User as shown by User’s signature hereon. This Ordinance shall be 

void unless User signs it within thirty days of its passage and adoption. By signing this 

Ordinance, User also represents, warrants, and agrees that User shall comply with this 

Ordinance, the Pipeline Ordinance, and all applicable law concerning the subject matter of this 

ordinance. 

 

Section 10. Penalty.  Any person who shall intentionally, knowingly, recklessly, or with criminal 

negligence violate any provision of this chapter shall be deemed guilty of a misdemeanor and, 

upon conviction, shall be fined in an amount not to exceed $1000.00.  Each day of violation shall 

constitute a separate offense. Additionally, civil remedies and penalties may be imposed for 

violation of any provision of ordinance pursuant to Section 16-87. 

 

Section 11. Repealing Clause.  All ordinances or parts of ordinances inconsistent or in conflict 

herewith, are, to the extent of such inconsistency or conflict, hereby repealed. 

  

Section 12. Severability.  In the event any clause, phrase, provision, sentence, or part of this 

Ordinance or the application of the same to any person or circumstance shall for any reason be 

adjudged invalid or held unconstitutional by a court of competent jurisdiction, it shall not affect, 

impair, or invalidate this Ordinance as a whole or any part or provision hereof other than the part 

declared to be invalid or unconstitutional; and the City Council of the City of Alvin, Texas, 

declares that it would have passed each and every part of the same notwithstanding the omission 

of any such part thus declared to be invalid or unconstitutional, whether there be one or more 

parts. 

 

Section 13.  Open Meetings Act.  It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at 

which this resolution was passed was open to the public and public notice of the time, place and 

purpose of said meeting was given, all as required by the Open Meetings Act, Chapter 551 of the 

Texas Government Code. 

 

 

PASSED AND APPROVED on the 6th day of August 2020. 

 

 

CITY OF ALVIN, TEXAS:     ATTEST:    

  

 

 

By: ________________________________  By: _____________________________  

 Paul A. Horn, Mayor     Dixie Roberts, City Secretary                                        

 



Ord 20-U  Page 3 of 3 

 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

 

___________________________________ 

Suzanne Hanneman, City Attorney 

 

 

PERMIT USER – South Texas NGL Pipelines, LLC:       ATTEST: 

 

 

 

By: ________________________________  By: _____________________________  

   

 

 









































































































 

 

Agenda Commentary 

 

Meeting Date:   8/6/2020 

Department:  Engineering Contact:  Michelle H. Segovia, City Engineer  

 
Agenda Item:   Consider Resolution 20-R-21, approving the Advanced Funding Agreement (AFA) with 

the Texas Department of Transportation (TXDOT) for the replacement of the County Road 

172 (Parker School Road) bridge at the C-1 Drainage Ditch, and authorize the Mayor to 

sign the Agreement upon legal review. 
 

Type of Item: ☐Ordinance  ☒Resolution  ☐Contract/Agreement  ☐Public Hearing  ☐Plat  ☐Discussion & Direction  ☒Other 

Summary:   Resolution 20-R-21 approves an Advanced Funding Agreement (AFA) with the Texas Department 

of Transportation (TXDOT) for the replacement of the County Road 172 (Parker School Road) bridge over the 

C-1 Drainage Ditch. Attachment B of the AFA includes a map of the bridge location. This proposed bridge 

replacement is made possible through the Highway Bridge Replacement and Rehabilitation Program (HBRRP) 

administered by the Texas Transportation Commission. The program allows for the funding of off-system bridge 

replacements that are funded 80% by Federal funds, 10% by State funds through TXDOT and 10% by the local 

government. The City’s 10% share of the project is $49,973 as shown in Attachment D of the agreement.  

 

Since 2005, eight (8) bridges within the City have been replaced utilizing this program through Advance Funding 

Agreements with TXDOT.   

 

Staff recommends approval of Resolution 20-R-21. 

 

Funding Expected: Revenue ☐ Expenditure ☒ N/A ☐ Budgeted Item: Yes ☒ No ☐ N/A ☐ 

Funding Account:  Amount:  1295 Form Required? Yes ☐ No ☒ 

Legal Review Required: N/A ☐ Required ☒    Date Completed: 7/29/2020 SLH 

 
 
Supporting documents attached: 

• Resolution 20-R-21 

• Advanced Funding Agreement and Attachments 

 

 
Recommendation:   Move to approve Resolution 20-R-21, approving the Advanced Funding Agreement 

(AFA) with the Texas Department of Transportation (TXDOT) for the replacement 

of the County Road 172 (Parker School Road) bridge at the C-1 Drainage Ditch, and 

authorize the Mayor to sign the Agreement upon legal review. 

 
 

Reviewed by Department Head, if applicable ☒  Reviewed by Chief Financial Officer, if applicable ☒ 



 

Reviewed by City Attorney, if applicable ☒  Reviewed by City Manager ☒ 

 



RESOLUTION NO. 20-R-21 

 

A RESOLUTION BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF CITY OF ALVIN, TEXAS, 

APPROVING AN “ADVANCE FUNDING AGREEMENT” WITH THE 

TEXAS DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION FOR REPLACEMENT 

OF THE BRIDGE LOCATED ON COUNTY ROAD 172 AT THE C-1 

DRAINAGE DITCH; AND AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE 

THE AGREEMENT. 

 

WHEREAS, Title 23, United States Code Section 144 authorizes the use of federal funds 

to assist the States in the replacement or rehabilitation of deficient bridges located on public 

highways, roads, and streets, including those under the jurisdiction of local governments; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Texas Transportation Code, Sections 201.103 and 222.052, establish 

that the State shall plan and make policies for the construction of a comprehensive system of 

state highways and public roads in cooperation with local governments; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Alvin owns a bridge located on a public road or street located at 

CR 172 (Parker School Road) at Drainage Ditch (C-1), and this bridge is included in the 

currently approved off-state system federal-aid Highway Bridge Replacement and Rehabilitation 

Program (HBRRP) as authorized by Texas Transportation Commission Minute Order Number 

115550 dated August 29, 2019; and 

 

WHEREAS, by this Resolution, the City Council of the City of Alvin approves entering 

into an Advance Funding Agreement with the Texas Department of Transportation, which 

provides for development of the specific programmed replacement or rehabilitation project, 

hereinafter called the “Project,” identified in the location map shown as Attachment “B” to the 

Agreement; 

 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF ALVIN, TEXAS: 

 

Section 1. That the City Council hereby adopts the recitals and findings set forth in the 

preamble hereof. 

 

Section 2. The City Council of the City of Alvin hereby approves an Advance Funding 

Agreement with the Texas Department of Transportation to share the costs and responsibilities 

for the replacement or rehabilitation of the bridge on CR 172 (Parker School Road) at the 

Drainage Ditch (C-1) and authorizes the Mayor to execute the Agreement. 

 



20-R-21                           Page 2 of 2 

 
 

Section 3. Open Meetings.  It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at 

which this Resolution is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the 

time, place and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act, 

Chapter 551 of the Texas Government Code. 

PASSED AND APPROVED this 6th day of August 2020. 

 

CITY OF ALVIN, TEXAS    ATTEST 

  

_________________________________  _______________________________ 

Paul A. Horn, Mayor                   Dixie Roberts, City Secretary 

 

 

 



  CSJ # 0912-31-321 
  District # 12 
  Code Chart 64 # 00900 

Project:  CR 172 (Parker School Rd) at 
Drainage Ditch 

  NBI Structure # 12-020-0-D00787-001 
  Federal Highway Administration 

CFDA Title: Highway Planning and 
Construction 

  CFDA No.: 20.205 
  Not Research and Development 
 

Bridge AFA Page 1 of 18 Revised 09/04/2018 
Bridge Division 
 

 

STATE OF TEXAS  § 
 
COUNTY OF TRAVIS § 
 

ADVANCE FUNDING AGREEMENT 
For Bridge Replacement or Rehabilitation 

Off the State System 
 
THIS Advance Funding Agreement (the Agreement) is made by and between the 
State of Texas, acting by and through the Texas Department of Transportation, called the 
“State”, and the City of Alvin, acting by and through its duly authorized officials, called the 
“Local Government.” 

 
WITNESSETH 

   
WHEREAS, Title 23 United States Code Section 144 authorizes federal funds to assist 
the states in the replacement or rehabilitation of deficient bridges located on public 
highways, roads, and streets, including those under the jurisdiction of local governments; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, the Texas Transportation Code Sections 201.103 and 222.052 establish that 
the State shall plan and make policies for the construction of a comprehensive system of 
state highways and public roads in cooperation with local governments; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Local Government owns one or more bridges on a public road or street 
located at CR 172 (Parker School Road) at Drainage Ditch, and these bridges are 
included in the currently approved off-state system federal-aid Highway Bridge 
Replacement and Rehabilitation Program (HBRRP) as authorized by Texas 
Transportation Commission Minute Order Number 115550, dated August 29, 2019; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Governing Body of the Local Government has approved entering into this 
Agreement by resolution or ordinance, which is attached to and made a part of this 
agreement as Attachment A for the development of the specific programmed replacement 
or rehabilitation project, called the “Project”.  The Project is identified in the location map 
shown as Attachment B, which is attached to and made a part of this agreement. 
 



  CSJ # 0912-31-321 
  District # 12 
  Code Chart 64 # 00900 

Project:  CR 172 (Parker School Rd) at 
Drainage Ditch 

  NBI Structure # 12-020-0-D00787-001 
  Federal Highway Administration 

CFDA Title: Highway Planning and 
Construction 

  CFDA No.: 20.205 
  Not Research and Development 
 

Bridge AFA Page 2 of 18 Revised 09/04/2018 
Bridge Division 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and of the mutual covenants and 
agreements of the parties, to be by them respectively kept and performed as set forth, it is 
agreed as follows: 

 
 

AGREEMENT 
 

1. Period of this Agreement 
This Agreement becomes effective when signed by the last party whose signing 
makes the Agreement fully executed.  This Agreement shall remain in effect until 
terminated as provided in Article 2. 

 
2. Termination of this Agreement 

This Agreement shall remain in effect until the Project is completed and accepted by 
all parties, unless: 
A. The Agreement is terminated in writing with the mutual consent of the parties; 
B. The Agreement is terminated by one party because of a breach, in which case 

any cost incurred because of the breach shall be paid by the breaching party; 
C. The Local Government elects not to develop the project and the project does not 

proceed, in which case the Local Government agrees to reimburse the State for 
one-hundred percent (100%) of its reasonable actual direct and indirect costs 
incurred for the project; or 

D. The project is inactive for thirty-six (36) months or longer and no expenditures 
have been charged against federal funds, in which case the State may at its 
discretion terminate the agreement. 

 
3. Amendments 

Amendments to this Agreement may be made due to changes in the character of the 
work, the terms of the Agreement, or the responsibilities of the parties.  Amendments 
shall be enacted through a mutually agreed upon written amendment executed by all 
parties to this Agreement. 

 
4. Remedies 

This Agreement shall not be considered as specifying the exclusive remedy for any 
Agreement default, but all remedies existing at law and in equity may be availed of by 
either party to this Agreement and shall be cumulative. 

 



  CSJ # 0912-31-321 
  District # 12 
  Code Chart 64 # 00900 

Project:  CR 172 (Parker School Rd) at 
Drainage Ditch 

  NBI Structure # 12-020-0-D00787-001 
  Federal Highway Administration 

CFDA Title: Highway Planning and 
Construction 

  CFDA No.: 20.205 
  Not Research and Development 
 

Bridge AFA Page 3 of 18 Revised 09/04/2018 
Bridge Division 
 

5. Scope of Work 
The scope of work for this Agreement is the replacement or rehabilitation of the 
bridges identified in the recitals of this Agreement.  This replacement or rehabilitation 
shall be accomplished in the manner described in the plans, specifications, and 
estimates developed in accordance with this Agreement and which are incorporated 
in this agreement by reference. 

 
6. Right of Way and Real Property 

A. The Local Government is responsible for the provision and acquisition of all 
necessary right of way and will not be reimbursed with federal or state funds for 
the required right of way. 

B. The Local Government authorizes the State, its consultant, contractor, or other 
designated representative to enter the sites of these bridges and adjacent right of 
way or relocation right of way to perform surveys, inspections, construction, and 
other activities necessary to replace or rehabilitate these bridges and 
approaches. 

 
7. Adjustment of Utilities 

The Local Government shall be responsible for the adjustment, removal, or relocation 
of utility facilities in accordance with applicable state laws, regulations, rules, policies, 
and procedures, including any cost to the State of a delay resulting from the Local 
Government’s failure to ensure that utility facilities are adjusted, removed, or 
relocated before the scheduled beginning of construction.  The Local Government will 
not be reimbursed with federal or state funds for the cost of required utility work.  The 
Local Government must obtain advance approval for any variance from established 
procedures.  Before a construction contract is let, the Local Government shall 
provide, at the State’s request, a certification stating that the Local Government has 
completed the adjustment of all utilities that must be adjusted before construction is 
completed. 

 
8. Environmental Assessment and Mitigation 

Development of the Project must comply with the National Environmental Policy Act 
and the National Historic Preservation Act of 1966, which require environmental 
clearance of federal-aid projects. 
A. The State is responsible for the identification and assessment of any 

environmental problems associated with the development of the Project 
governed by this Agreement. 



  CSJ # 0912-31-321 
  District # 12 
  Code Chart 64 # 00900 

Project:  CR 172 (Parker School Rd) at 
Drainage Ditch 

  NBI Structure # 12-020-0-D00787-001 
  Federal Highway Administration 

CFDA Title: Highway Planning and 
Construction 

  CFDA No.: 20.205 
  Not Research and Development 
 

Bridge AFA Page 4 of 18 Revised 09/04/2018 
Bridge Division 
 

B. Cost participation in environmental assessment and remediation work shall be 
paid by the parties in the same ratio as construction costs and will be included in 
the construction costs identified in Attachment D, Estimate of Direct Costs. 

C. The State is responsible for providing any public meetings or public hearings 
required for development of the environmental assessment. 

D. The State will not begin construction of the Project until identified environmental 
problems have been remediated, unless provided for otherwise. 

 
9. Compliance with Texas Accessibility Standards and ADA 

All parties to this Agreement shall ensure that the plans for and the construction of 
the Project subject to this Agreement are in compliance with the Texas Accessibility 
Standards (TAS) issued by the Texas Department of Licensing and Regulation, under 
the Architectural Barriers Act, Article 9102, Texas Civil Statutes.  The TAS 
establishes minimum accessibility requirements to be consistent with minimum 
accessibility requirements of the Americans with Disabilities Act (P.L. 101-336) 
(ADA). 

 
10. Architectural and Engineering Services 

The State is responsible for performance of any required architectural or preliminary 
engineering work.  The Local Government may review and comment on the work as 
required to accomplish the public purposes of the Local Government.  The State will 
cooperate fully with the Local Government in accomplishing these local public 
purposes to the degree permitted by state and federal law.  The Local Government 
review shall not unduly delay the development of the Project. 

 
11. Construction Responsibilities 

A. The State shall advertise for construction bids, issue bid proposals, receive and 
tabulate the bids, and award and administer the contract for construction of the 
Project.  Administration of the contract includes the responsibility for construction 
engineering and for issuance of any change orders, supplemental agreements, 
amendments, or additional work orders that may become necessary subsequent 
to the award of the construction contract.  In order to ensure federal funding 
eligibility, projects must be authorized by the State prior to advertising for 
construction. 

B. Upon completion of the Project, the State will issue a “Notification of Completion” 
acknowledging the Project’s construction completion. 

 



  CSJ # 0912-31-321 
  District # 12 
  Code Chart 64 # 00900 

Project:  CR 172 (Parker School Rd) at 
Drainage Ditch 

  NBI Structure # 12-020-0-D00787-001 
  Federal Highway Administration 

CFDA Title: Highway Planning and 
Construction 

  CFDA No.: 20.205 
  Not Research and Development 
 

Bridge AFA Page 5 of 18 Revised 09/04/2018 
Bridge Division 
 

12. Project Maintenance 
After the Project has been completed, the Local Government shall accept full 
ownership, and operate and maintain the facilities authorized by this Agreement for 
the benefit of and at no charge of toll to the public.  This covenant shall survive the 
completion of construction under this Agreement. 

 
13. Local Project Sources and Uses of Funds 

A. A Project Cost Estimate is provided in Attachment D, Estimate of Direct Costs.  
B. Attachment D provides a source of funds estimate as well as the estimated direct 

preliminary engineering, construction engineering, and construction costs for the 
Project in total and by the Local Government. 

C. The required Local Government participation is based solely upon the State’s 
estimate of the eligible work at the time this Agreement is executed and will not 
be adjusted during construction except as needed to include any Project cost 
item or portion of a cost item ineligible for state or federal participation.  In 
addition to its share of estimated direct engineering and construction costs, the 
Local Government is responsible for the direct cost of any project cost item or 
portion of a cost item that is not eligible for federal participation under the federal 
HBRRP.  The Local Government is also responsible for any cost resulting from 
changes made at the request of the Local Government.  The State and the 
Federal Government will not reimburse the Local Government for any work 
performed before federal spending authority is formally obligated to the Project 
by the Federal Highway Administration.  After federal funds have been obligated, 
the State will send to the Local Government a copy of the formal documentation 
showing the obligation of funds including federal award information. 

D. If the Local Government will perform any work under this contract for which 
reimbursement will be provided by or through the State, the Local Government 
must complete training before federal spending authority is obligated.  Training is 
complete when at least one individual who is working actively and directly on the 
Project successfully completes and receives a certificate for the course entitled 
Local Government Project Procedures Qualification for the Texas Department of 
Transportation.  The Local Government shall provide the certificate of 
qualification to the State.  The individual who receives the training certificate may 
be an employee of the Local Government or an employee of a firm that has been 
contracted by the Local Government to perform oversight of the Project.  The 
State in its discretion may deny reimbursement if the Local Government has not 
designated a qualified individual to oversee the Project. 

E. After execution of this Agreement, but thirty (30) days prior to the performance of 
any work by the State, the Local Government shall remit to the State the amount 



  CSJ # 0912-31-321 
  District # 12 
  Code Chart 64 # 00900 

Project:  CR 172 (Parker School Rd) at 
Drainage Ditch 

  NBI Structure # 12-020-0-D00787-001 
  Federal Highway Administration 

CFDA Title: Highway Planning and 
Construction 

  CFDA No.: 20.205 
  Not Research and Development 
 

Bridge AFA Page 6 of 18 Revised 09/04/2018 
Bridge Division 
 

specified in Attachment D for the Local Government’s contribution for preliminary 
engineering.  The Local Government will pay, at a minimum, its funding share for 
this estimated cost of preliminary engineering. 

F. Forty-five (45) days prior to the date set for receipt of the construction bids, the 
Local Government shall remit its remaining financial share for the State’s 
estimated construction oversight and construction costs and any other costs 
owed. 

G. If, at the completion or termination of the Project, the State determines that 
additional funding is required by the Local Government, the State shall notify the 
Local Government in writing.  The Local Government shall make payment to the 
State within thirty (30) days from receipt of the State’s written notification. 

H. Whenever funds are paid by the Local Government to the State under this 
Agreement, the Local Government shall remit a check or warrant made payable 
to the "Texas Department of Transportation".  The check or warrant shall be 
deposited by the State and managed by the State.  The funds may only be 
applied to the State Project. 

I. Upon completion of the Project, the State will perform an audit of the Project 
costs.  Any funds due to the Local Government, the State, or the Federal 
Government will be promptly paid by the owing party. 

J. The State will not pay interest on any funds provided by the Local Government. 
K. The Local Government funding participation responsibilities include Project direct 

costs only, except when the Project is terminated before completion at the 
request of the Local Government as addressed in the Termination provision of 
this Agreement. 

L. The amounts shown on Attachment D are estimates only.  If actual costs exceed 
the estimates, this shall be considered a fixed price agreement, and no additional 
funding shall be required of the Local Government except to the extent that the 
additional costs result from changes made at the request of the Local 
Government or to the extent that the additional costs are not eligible for federal 
participation under the federal HBRRP.  If actual costs are less than the 
estimates, Local Government participation shall be recalculated based on actual 
costs.  If the recalculation results in a reduction in participation by the Local 
Government, the State shall pay the difference to the Local Government upon 
completion of the Project. 

M. Under the provisions of Texas Transportation Code Section 222.053 certain 
counties qualify as Economically Disadvantaged Counties (EDC) in comparison 
to other counties in the state as below average per capita property value, below 
average per capita income, and above average unemployment, for certain years.  
If applicable, in consideration of such EDC status that may be applicable for the 



  CSJ # 0912-31-321 
  District # 12 
  Code Chart 64 # 00900 

Project:  CR 172 (Parker School Rd) at 
Drainage Ditch 

  NBI Structure # 12-020-0-D00787-001 
  Federal Highway Administration 

CFDA Title: Highway Planning and 
Construction 

  CFDA No.: 20.205 
  Not Research and Development 
 

Bridge AFA Page 7 of 18 Revised 09/04/2018 
Bridge Division 
 

Project, the required local match fund participation has been adjusted to N/A 
percent (N/A %). 

N. The State will not execute the contract for the construction of a Project until the 
required funding has been made available by the Local Government in 
accordance with this Agreement. 

O. The state auditor may conduct an audit or investigation of any entity receiving 
funds from the State directly under this contract or indirectly through a 
subcontract under this contract.  Acceptance of funds directly under this contract 
or indirectly through a subcontract under this contract acts as acceptance of the 
authority of the state auditor, under the direction of the legislative audit 
committee, to conduct an audit or investigation in connection with those funds. 
An entity that is the subject of an audit or investigation must provide the state 
auditor with access to any information the state auditor considers relevant to the 
investigation or audit. 

P. The Local Government is authorized to submit requests for reimbursement by 
submitting the original of an itemized invoice in a form and containing all items 
required by the State no more frequently than monthly, and no later than ninety 
(90) days after costs are incurred.  If the Local Government submits invoices 
more than ninety (90) days after the costs are incurred, and if federal funding is 
reduced as a result, the State shall have no responsibility to reimburse the Local 
Government for those costs. 

 
14. Performance by Local Government of Equivalent-Match Projects (EMP) in 

Return for Waiver of Local Match Participation Funding on Participation-
Waived Projects (PWP) 
A. Applicability.  If a request for waiver has been received and approved by the 

State’s District Engineer, then the required ten percent matching fund 
participation or percent as adjusted for EDC consideration, as shown in 
Attachment D, Estimate of Direct Costs, but excluding ineligible costs under the 
bridge program, is waived.  This waiver is based on the commitment of the Local 
Government to spend an equivalent amount of funds for structural or safety 
improvement on “other” bridge structures and other conditions as specified in 43 
TAC Section 15.55(d).  If a waiver has been granted, the Project shall be defined 
to be a PWP and the work on the “other” bridge structures that will be improved 
by the Local Government shall be defined to be the EMPs.  Attachment C to this 
Agreement shows a list of EMPs under this Agreement. 

B. Project Cost Estimate for PWP.  Attachment D to this Agreement shows the 
estimated direct preliminary engineering, construction engineering, and 



  CSJ # 0912-31-321 
  District # 12 
  Code Chart 64 # 00900 

Project:  CR 172 (Parker School Rd) at 
Drainage Ditch 

  NBI Structure # 12-020-0-D00787-001 
  Federal Highway Administration 

CFDA Title: Highway Planning and 
Construction 

  CFDA No.: 20.205 
  Not Research and Development 
 

Bridge AFA Page 8 of 18 Revised 09/04/2018 
Bridge Division 
 

construction costs for the PWP in total and local match fund participation being 
waived or partially waived. 

C. Credit Against EMP Work.  Any local match fund participation that has already 
been paid, or which the Local Government is agreeable to paying to the State, 
will be credited against EMP work to be performed by the Local Government.  If 
applicable, this credit will be reflected in Attachment D to this Agreement. 

D. Responsibilities of the Local Government on EMPs. 
1. The Local Government shall be responsible for all engineering and 

construction, related costs, and compliance with all applicable state and 
federal environmental regulations and permitting requirements. 

2. The structural or safety improvement work on the EMPs shall be performed 
subsequent to the final execution of this Agreement but within three (3) 
calendar years after the earliest contract award of the related PWPs. 

3. Written documentation, suitable for audit, of the structural or safety 
improvement work completed on the EMPs shall be kept on file by the Local 
Government for four (4) years after completion of work or claims, lawsuits, or 
audits related to those items, whichever is longer.  A notice of completion of 
work on the EMPs shall be delivered to the State’s District Engineer no later 
than thirty (30) calendar days after work is completed on the EMPs. 

4. Failure by the Local Government to adequately complete the EMPs within the 
stated three-year period shall result in the Local Government being excluded 
from receiving such waivers for a minimum of five (5) years. 

E. Funding of Ineligible or Additional Work Not Waived.  Regardless of any waiver 
of eligible program costs, the Local Government shall pay the State one-hundred 
percent (100%) of the cost of any PWP item or portion of a cost item that is not 
eligible for federal or state participation, and one-hundred percent (100%) of the 
costs resulting from additional work on the PWP performed solely at the request 
of the Local Government.  If the ineligible or additional work is preliminary 
engineering, the payment shall be made at least thirty (30) days prior to the 
beginning of preliminary engineering work on the PWP.  If the ineligible or 
additional work is for construction or construction engineering, the payment shall 
be made at least forty-five (45) days prior to the date set for receipt of bids for 
construction of the PWP. 

 
15. Notices 

All notices to either party shall be delivered personally or sent by certified or U.S. 
mail, postage prepaid, addressed to that party at the following address: 

 



  CSJ # 0912-31-321 
  District # 12 
  Code Chart 64 # 00900 

Project:  CR 172 (Parker School Rd) at 
Drainage Ditch 

  NBI Structure # 12-020-0-D00787-001 
  Federal Highway Administration 

CFDA Title: Highway Planning and 
Construction 

  CFDA No.: 20.205 
  Not Research and Development 
 

Bridge AFA Page 9 of 18 Revised 09/04/2018 
Bridge Division 
 

State:  Director, Bridge Division 
 Texas Department of Transportation 
 125 E. 11th Street 
 Austin, Texas 78701 

 
Local Government: The Honorable Paul Horn 

 Mayor, City of Alvin 
 216 West Sealy 
 Alvin, Texas 77511 

 
All notices shall be deemed given on the date delivered in person or deposited in the 
mail, unless otherwise provided by this agreement.  Either party may change the 
above address by sending written notice of the change to the other party.  Either 
party may request in writing that notices shall be delivered personally or by certified 
U.S. mail, and that request shall be carried out by the other party. 

 
16. Legal Construction 

In case one or more of the provisions contained in this Agreement shall for any 
reason be held invalid, illegal, or unenforceable in any respect, such invalidity, 
illegality, or unenforceability shall not affect any other provisions and this Agreement 
shall be construed as if it did not contain the invalid, illegal, or unenforceable 
provision. 

 
17. Responsibilities of the Parties 

The parties to this Agreement agree that no party is an agent, servant, or employee 
of the other party and each party agrees it is responsible for its individual acts and 
deeds as well as the acts and deeds of its contractors, employees, representatives, 
and agents. 

 
18. Ownership of Documents 

Upon completion or termination of this Agreement, all documents prepared by the 
State shall remain the property of the State.  All data prepared under this Agreement 
shall be made available to the State without restriction or limitation on their further 
use.  All documents produced or approved or otherwise created by the Local 
Government shall be transmitted to the State in the form of photocopy reproduction 
on a monthly basis as required by the State.  The originals shall remain the property 
of the Local Government.  At the request of the State, the Local Government shall 
submit any information required by the State in the format directed by the State. 

 



  CSJ # 0912-31-321 
  District # 12 
  Code Chart 64 # 00900 

Project:  CR 172 (Parker School Rd) at 
Drainage Ditch 

  NBI Structure # 12-020-0-D00787-001 
  Federal Highway Administration 

CFDA Title: Highway Planning and 
Construction 

  CFDA No.: 20.205 
  Not Research and Development 
 

Bridge AFA Page 10 of 18 Revised 09/04/2018 
Bridge Division 
 

19. Compliance with Laws 
The parties shall comply with all federal, state, and local laws, statutes, ordinances, 
rules and regulations, and the orders and decrees of any courts or administrative 
bodies or tribunals in any manner affecting the performance of this Agreement.  
When required, the Local Government shall furnish the State with satisfactory proof 
of this compliance. 

 
20. Sole Agreement 

This Agreement constitutes the sole and only agreement between the parties and 
supersedes any prior understandings or written or oral agreements respecting the 
subject matter of this Agreement. 

 
21. Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Cost Principles 

In order to be reimbursed with federal funds, the parties shall comply with the Cost 
Principles established in 2 CFR 200 that specify that all reimbursed costs are 
allowable, reasonable, and allocable to the Project. 

 
22. Procurement and Property Management Standards 

The parties shall adhere to the procurement standards established in Title 49 CFR 
§18.36 and with the property management standard established in Title 49 CFR 
§18.32. 

 
23. Inspection of Books and Records 

The parties to the Agreement shall maintain all books, documents, papers, 
accounting records, and other documentation relating to costs incurred under this 
Agreement and shall make such materials available to the State, the Local 
Government, and, if federally funded, the Federal Highway Administration (FHWA) 
and the U.S. Office of the Inspector General, or their duly authorized representatives, 
for review and inspection at its office during the contract period and for four (4) years 
from the date of completion of work defined under this contract or until any impending 
litigation or claims are resolved.  Additionally, the State, the Local Government, the 
FHWA, and their duly authorized representatives shall have access to all the 
governmental records that are directly applicable to this Agreement for the purpose of 
making audits, examinations, excerpts, and transcriptions. 

 
24. Civil Rights Compliance 

A. Compliance with Regulations: The Local Government will comply with the Acts and 
the Regulations relative to Nondiscrimination in Federally-assisted programs of the 
U.S. Department of Transportation (USDOT), the Federal Highway Administration 



  CSJ # 0912-31-321 
  District # 12 
  Code Chart 64 # 00900 

Project:  CR 172 (Parker School Rd) at 
Drainage Ditch 

  NBI Structure # 12-020-0-D00787-001 
  Federal Highway Administration 

CFDA Title: Highway Planning and 
Construction 

  CFDA No.: 20.205 
  Not Research and Development 
 

Bridge AFA Page 11 of 18 Revised 09/04/2018 
Bridge Division 
 

(FHWA), as they may be amended from time to time, which are herein 
incorporated by reference and made part of this agreement. 

B. Nondiscrimination: The Local Government, with regard to the work performed by it 
during the contract, will not discriminate on the grounds of race, color, or national 
origin in the selection and retention of subcontractors, including procurement of 
materials and leases of equipment. The Local Government will not participate 
directly or indirectly in the discrimination prohibited by the Acts and the 
Regulations, including employment practices when the contract covers any activity, 
project, or program set forth in Appendix B of 49 CFR Part 21. 

C. Solicitations for Subcontracts, Including Procurement of Materials and Equipment: 
In all solicitations either by competitive bidding or negotiation made by the Local 
Government for work to be performed under a subcontract, including procurement 
of materials or leases of equipment, each potential subcontractor or supplier will be 
notified by the Local Government of the Local Government’s obligations under this 
contract and the Acts and Regulations relative to Nondiscrimination on the grounds 
of race, color, or national origin. 

D. Information and Reports: The Local Government will provide all information and 
reports required by the Acts, the Regulations, and directives issued pursuant 
thereto, and will permit access to its books, records, accounts, other sources of 
information, and facilities as may be determined by the State or the FHWA to be 
pertinent to ascertain compliance with such Acts, Regulations or directives. Where 
any information required of the Local Government is in the exclusive possession of 
another who fails or refuses to furnish this information, the Local Government will 
so certify to the State or the Federal Highway Administration, as appropriate, and 
will set forth what efforts it has made to obtain the information. 

E. Sanctions for Noncompliance: In the event of the Local Government's 
noncompliance with the Nondiscrimination provisions of this contract, the State will 
impose such contract sanctions as it or the FHWA may determine to be 
appropriate, including, but not limited to: 
1. withholding of payments to the Local Government under the contract until the 
Local Government complies and/or 
2. cancelling, terminating, or suspending of the contract, in whole or in part. 

F. Incorporation of Provisions: The Local Government will include the provisions of 
paragraphs (A) through (F) in every subcontract, including procurement of materials 
and leases of equipment, unless exempt by the Acts, the Regulations and directives 
issued pursuant thereto. The Local Government will take such action with respect to 
any subcontract or procurement as the State or the FHWA may direct as a means 
of enforcing such provisions including sanctions for noncompliance. Provided, that if 
the Local Government becomes involved in, or is threatened with, litigation with a 



  CSJ # 0912-31-321 
  District # 12 
  Code Chart 64 # 00900 

Project:  CR 172 (Parker School Rd) at 
Drainage Ditch 

  NBI Structure # 12-020-0-D00787-001 
  Federal Highway Administration 

CFDA Title: Highway Planning and 
Construction 

  CFDA No.: 20.205 
  Not Research and Development 
 

Bridge AFA Page 12 of 18 Revised 09/04/2018 
Bridge Division 
 

subcontractor or supplier because of such direction, the Local Government may 
request the State to enter into such litigation to protect the interests of the State. In 
addition, the Local Government may request the United States to enter into such 
litigation to protect the interests of the United States. 

 
25. Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE) Program Requirements 

A. The parties shall comply with the Disadvantaged Business Enterprise Program 
requirements established in 49 CFR Part 26. 

B. The Local Government shall adopt, in its totality, the State’s federally approved 
DBE program. 

C. The Local Government shall set an appropriate DBE goal consistent with the 
State’s DBE guidelines and in consideration of the local market, project size, and 
nature of the goods or services to be acquired.  The Local Government shall 
have final decision-making authority regarding the DBE goal and shall be 
responsible for documenting its actions. 

D. The Local Government shall follow all other parts of the State’s DBE program 
referenced in TxDOT Form 2395, Memorandum of Understanding Regarding the 
Adoption of the Texas Department of Transportation's Federally-Approved 
Disadvantaged Business Enterprise by Entity and attachments found at web 
address  

       http://ftp.dot.state.tx.us/pub/txdot-info/bop/dbe/mou/mou_attachments.pdf. 
E. The Local Government shall not discriminate on the basis of race, color, national 

origin, or sex in the award and performance of any U.S. Department of 
Transportation (DOT)-assisted contract or in the administration of its DBE 
program or the requirements of 49 CFR Part 26.  The Local Government shall 
take all necessary and reasonable steps under 49 CFR Part 26 to ensure non-
discrimination in award and administration of DOT-assisted contracts.  The 
State’s DBE program, as required by 49 CFR Part 26 and as approved by DOT, 
is incorporated by reference in this agreement.  Implementation of this program is 
a legal obligation and failure to carry out its terms shall be treated as a violation 
of this agreement.  Upon notification to the Local Government of its failure to 
carry out its approved program, the State may impose sanctions as provided for 
under 49 CFR Part 26 and may, in appropriate cases, refer the matter for 
enforcement under 18 U.S.C. 1001 and the Program Fraud Civil Remedies Act of 
1986 (31 U.S.C. 3801 et seq.). 

F. Each contract the Local Government signs with a contractor (and each 
subcontract the prime contractor signs with a sub-contractor) must include the 
following assurance:  The contractor, sub-recipient, or sub-contractor shall not 
discriminate on the basis of race, color, national origin, or sex in the performance 

http://ftp.dot.state.tx.us/pub/txdot-info/bop/dbe/mou/mou_attachments.pdf


  CSJ # 0912-31-321 
  District # 12 
  Code Chart 64 # 00900 

Project:  CR 172 (Parker School Rd) at 
Drainage Ditch 

  NBI Structure # 12-020-0-D00787-001 
  Federal Highway Administration 

CFDA Title: Highway Planning and 
Construction 

  CFDA No.: 20.205 
  Not Research and Development 
 

Bridge AFA Page 13 of 18 Revised 09/04/2018 
Bridge Division 
 

of this contract.  The contractor shall carry out applicable requirements of 49 
CFR Part 26 in the award and administration of DOT-assisted contracts.  Failure 
by the contractor to carry out these requirements is a material breach of this 
agreement, which may result in the termination of this agreement or such other 
remedy as the recipient deems appropriate. 

 
26. Debarment Certifications 

The parties are prohibited from making any award at any tier to any party that is 
debarred or suspended or otherwise excluded from or ineligible for participation in 
Federal Assistance Programs under Executive Order 12549, “Debarment and 
Suspension.”  By executing this agreement, the Local Government certifies that it is 
not currently debarred, suspended, or otherwise excluded from or ineligible for 
participation in Federal Assistance Programs under Executive Order 12549 and 
further certifies that it will not do business with any party that is currently debarred, 
suspended, or otherwise excluded from or ineligible for participation in Federal 
Assistance Programs under Executive Order 12549.  The parties to this contract shall 
require any party to a subcontract or purchase order awarded under this contract to 
certify its eligibility to receive Federal funds and, when requested by the State, to 
furnish a copy of the certification. 

 
27. Lobbying Certification 

In executing this Agreement, each signatory certifies to the best of that signatory’s 
knowledge and belief, that: 
A. No federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of 

the parties to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or 
employee of any federal agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee 
of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with the 
awarding of any federal contract, the making of any federal grant, the making of 
any federal loan, the entering into of any cooperative agreement, and the 
extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of any federal 
contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement. 

B. If any funds other than federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid 
to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of 
any agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an 
employee of a Member of Congress in connection with federal contracts, grants, 
loans, or cooperative agreements, the signatory for the Local Government shall 
complete and submit the Federal Standard Form-LLL, “Disclosure Form to 
Report Lobbying,” in accordance with its instructions. 



  CSJ # 0912-31-321 
  District # 12 
  Code Chart 64 # 00900 

Project:  CR 172 (Parker School Rd) at 
Drainage Ditch 

  NBI Structure # 12-020-0-D00787-001 
  Federal Highway Administration 

CFDA Title: Highway Planning and 
Construction 

  CFDA No.: 20.205 
  Not Research and Development 
 

Bridge AFA Page 14 of 18 Revised 09/04/2018 
Bridge Division 
 

C. The parties shall require that the language of this certification be included in the 
award documents for all sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, sub-
grants, and contracts under grants, loans, and cooperative agreements) and all 
sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.  Submission of this 
certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this transaction imposed 
by Title 31 U.S.C. §1352.  Any person who fails to file the required certification 
shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than 
$100,000 for each such failure. 

 
28. Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act Requirements 

A. Any recipient of funds under this agreement agrees to comply with the Federal 
Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) and implementing 
regulations at 2 CFR Part 170, including Appendix A.  This agreement is subject 
to the following award terms: http://www.gpo.gov/fdsys/pkg/FR-2010-09-14/pdf/2010-

22705.pdf and http://www.gpo.gov/fdsys/pkg/FR-2010-09-14/pdf/2010-22706.pdf. 
B. The Local Government agrees that it shall:  

1. Obtain and provide to the State, a Central Contracting Registry (CCR) 
number (Federal Acquisition Regulation, Part 4, Sub-part 4.1100) if this award 
provides for more than $25,000 in Federal funding.  The CCR number may be 
obtained by visiting the CCR web-site whose address is: 
https://sam.gov/SAM/pages/public/index.jsf; 

2. Obtain and provide to the State a Data Universal Numbering System (DUNS) 
number, a unique nine-character number that allows the federal government 
to track the distribution of federal money.  The DUNS number may be 
requested free of charge for all businesses and entities required to do so by 
visiting the Dun & Bradstreet (D&B) on-line registration website  
http://fedgov.dnb.com/webform; and 

3. Report the total compensation and names of its top five (5) executives to the 
State if: 
i. More than 80% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal 

government, and those revenues are greater than $25,000,000; and 
ii. The compensation information is not already available through reporting to 

the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission. 
 

29. Successors and Assigns 
The State and the Local Government each binds itself, its successors, executors, 
assigns, and administrators to the other party to this Agreement and to the 
successors, executors, assigns, and administrators of such other party in respect to 
all covenants of this Agreement. 

http://www.gpo.gov/fdsys/pkg/FR-2010-09-14/pdf/2010-22705.pdf
http://www.gpo.gov/fdsys/pkg/FR-2010-09-14/pdf/2010-22705.pdf
http://www.gpo.gov/fdsys/pkg/FR-2010-09-14/pdf/2010-22706.pdf
http://fedgov.dnb.com/webform


  CSJ # 0912-31-321 
  District # 12 
  Code Chart 64 # 00900 

Project:  CR 172 (Parker School Rd) at 
Drainage Ditch 

  NBI Structure # 12-020-0-D00787-001 
  Federal Highway Administration 

CFDA Title: Highway Planning and 
Construction 

  CFDA No.: 20.205 
  Not Research and Development 
 

Bridge AFA Page 15 of 18 Revised 09/04/2018 
Bridge Division 
 

 
30. Local Government Restrictions  

In the case that the Local Government has an existing, future, or proposed local 
ordinance, commissioners court order, rule, policy, or other directive that is more 
restrictive than the state or federal regulations that results in an increase cost to the 
State for the project, the local government is responsible for all increased costs 
associated with the ordinance, order, policy, directive, or change. 

 
31. Single Audit Report 

A. The parties shall comply with the requirements of the Single Audit Act of 1984, 
P.L. 98-502, ensuring that the single audit report includes the coverage stipulated 
in 2 CFR 200. 

B. If threshold expenditures of $750,000 or more are met during the fiscal year, the 
Local Government must submit a Single Audit Report and Management Letter (if 
applicable) to TxDOT's Compliance Division, 125 East 11th Street, Austin, TX  
78701 or contact TxDOT’s Compliance Division at singleaudits@txdot.gov. 

C. If expenditures are less than the threshold during the Local Government’s fiscal 
year, the Local Government must submit a statement to TxDOT’s Compliance 
Division as follows: “We did not meet the $______ expenditure threshold and 
therefore, are not required to have a single audit performed for FY______.”   

D. For each year the project remains open for federal funding expenditures, the 
Local Government will be responsible for filing a report or statement as described 
above.  The required annual filing shall extend throughout the life of the 
agreement, unless otherwise amended or the project has been formally closed 
out and no charges have been incurred within the current fiscal year. 

  



  CSJ # 0912-31-321 
  District # 12 
  Code Chart 64 # 00900 

Project:  CR 172 (Parker School Rd) at 
Drainage Ditch 

  NBI Structure # 12-020-0-D00787-001 
  Federal Highway Administration 

CFDA Title: Highway Planning and 
Construction 

  CFDA No.: 20.205 
  Not Research and Development 
 

Bridge AFA Page 16 of 18 Revised 09/04/2018 
Bridge Division 
 

 
32.  Pertinent Non-Discrimination Authorities 
During the performance of this contract, the Local Government, for itself, its assignees, 
and successors in interest agree to comply with the following nondiscrimination statutes 
and authorities; including but not limited to: 

A. Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. § 2000d et seq., 78 stat. 252), 
(prohibits discrimination on the basis of race, color, national origin); and 49 CFR 
Part 21. 

B. The Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisition Policies Act of 
1970, (42 U.S.C. § 4601), (prohibits unfair treatment of persons displaced or 
whose property has been acquired because of Federal or Federal-aid programs 
and projects). 

C. Federal-Aid Highway Act of 1973, (23 U.S.C. § 324 et seq.), as amended, 
(prohibits discrimination on the basis of sex). 

D. Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, (29 U.S.C. § 794 et seq.) as 
amended, (prohibits discrimination on the basis of disability); and 49 CFR Part 27. 

E. The Age Discrimination Act of 1975, as amended, (42 U.S.C. § 6101 et seq.), 
(prohibits discrimination on the basis of age). 

F. Airport and Airway Improvement Act of 1982, (49 U.S.C. Chapter 471, Section 
47123), as amended, (prohibits discrimination based on race, creed, color, national 
origin, or sex). 

G. The Civil Rights Restoration Act of 1987, (PL 100-209), (Broadened the scope, 
coverage and applicability of Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, The Age 
Discrimination Act of 1975 and Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, by 
expanding the definition of the terms “programs or activities” to include all of the 
programs or activities of the Federal-aid recipients, subrecipients and contractors, 
whether such programs or activities are Federally funded or not). 

H. Titles II and III of the Americans with Disabilities Act, which prohibits discrimination 
on the basis of disability in the operation of public entities, public and private 
transportation systems, places of public accommodation, and certain testing 
entities (42 U.S.C. §§ 12131-12189) as implemented by Department of 
Transportation regulations at 49 C.F.R. parts 37 and 38. 

I. The Federal Aviation Administration’s Nondiscrimination statute (49 U.S.C. § 
47123) (prohibits discrimination on the basis of race, color, national origin, and 
sex). 

J. Executive Order 12898, Federal Actions to Address Environmental Justice in 
Minority Populations and Low-Income Populations, which ensures 
nondiscrimination against minority populations by discouraging programs, policies, 



  CSJ # 0912-31-321 
  District # 12 
  Code Chart 64 # 00900 

Project:  CR 172 (Parker School Rd) at 
Drainage Ditch 

  NBI Structure # 12-020-0-D00787-001 
  Federal Highway Administration 

CFDA Title: Highway Planning and 
Construction 

  CFDA No.: 20.205 
  Not Research and Development 
 

Bridge AFA Page 17 of 18 Revised 09/04/2018 
Bridge Division 
 

and activities with disproportionately high and adverse human health or 
environmental effects on minority and low-income populations. 

K. Executive Order 13166, Improving Access to Services for Persons with Limited 
English Proficiency, and resulting agency guidance, national origin discrimination 
includes discrimination because of limited English proficiency (LEP). To ensure 
compliance with Title VI, the parties must take reasonable steps to ensure that 
LEP persons have meaningful access to the programs (70 Fed. Reg. at 74087 to 
74100). 

L. Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972, as amended, which prohibits the 
parties from discriminating because of sex in education programs or activities (20 
U.S.C. 1681 et seq.). 

 
33. Signatory Warranty 

Each signatory warrants that the signatory has necessary authority to execute this 
agreement on behalf of the entity represented. 
 



  CSJ # 0912-31-321 
  District # 12 
  Code Chart 64 # 00900 

Project:  CR 172 (Parker School Rd) at 
Drainage Ditch 

  NBI Structure # 12-020-0-D00787-001 
  Federal Highway Administration 

CFDA Title: Highway Planning and 
Construction 

  CFDA No.: 20.205 
  Not Research and Development 
 

Bridge AFA Page 18 of 18 Revised 09/04/2018 
Bridge Division 
 

THIS AGREEMENT IS EXECUTED by the State and the Local Government in duplicate. 
 
 
THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT 
 
_________________________________ 
Signature 
 
_________________________________ 
Typed or Printed Name 
 
_________________________________ 
Title  
 
_________________________________ 
Date 
 
 
THE STATE OF TEXAS 
 
_________________________________ 
Graham Bettis, P.E. 
Bridge Division Director 
Texas Department of Transportation 
 
_________________________________ 
Date 

 



  CSJ # 0912-31-321 
  District # 12 
  Code Chart 64 # 00900 

Project:  CR 172 (Parker School Rd) at 
Drainage Ditch 

  NBI Structure # 12-020-0-D00787-001 
  Federal Highway Administration 

CFDA Title: Highway Planning and 
Construction 

  CFDA No.: 20.205 
  Not Research and Development 
 

Bridge AFA Page 1 of 1 Revised 09/04/2018 
Bridge Division 

ATTACHMENT A 
RESOLUTION OR ORDINANCE OF LOCAL GOVERNMENT 

 
 



  CSJ # 0912-31-321 
  District # 12 
  Code Chart 64 # 00900 

Project:  CR 172 (Parker School Rd) at 
Drainage Ditch 

  NBI Structure # 12-020-0-D00787-001 
  Federal Highway Administration 

CFDA Title: Highway Planning and 
Construction 

  CFDA No.: 20.205 
  Not Research and Development 
 

Bridge AFA Page 1 of 1 Revised 09/04/2018 
Bridge Division 

ATTACHMENT B 
PROJECT LOCATION MAP 

 



  CSJ # 0912-31-321 
  District # 12 
  Code Chart 64 # 00900 

Project:  CR 172 (Parker School Rd) at 
Drainage Ditch 

  NBI Structure # 12-020-0-D00787-001 
  Federal Highway Administration 

CFDA Title: Highway Planning and 
Construction 

  CFDA No.: 20.205 
  Not Research and Development 
 

Bridge AFA Page 1 of 1 Revised 09/04/2018 
Bridge Division 

 

ATTACHMENT C ** 
LIST OF DISTRICT ENGINEER APPROVED 

EQUIVALENT-MATCH PROJECTS 
 
 

Location (and 
structure 
identification number, 
if applicable) 

On School 
Bus 
Route? 
(Yes/No) 

Historic 
Bridge? 
(Yes/No) 

Description of 
Structural or Safety 
Improvement Work 

Estimated 
Cost 

     

     

     

     

     

Total   

EMP work credited to this PWP*  

Balance of EMP work available to associated PWPs  

 
Associated PWPs CSJs 

Amount to be Credited to Associated 
PWPs 

  

  

  

  

  

  

 
*This total should typically equal the “Balance of Local Government Participation” that is 
waived as shown in Attachment D. 
 
**This attachment not applicable for non-PWPs.  
  



  CSJ # 0912-31-321 
  District # 12 
  Code Chart 64 # 00900 

Project:  CR 172 (Parker School Rd) at 
Drainage Ditch 

  NBI Structure # 12-020-0-D00787-001 
  Federal Highway Administration 

CFDA Title: Highway Planning and 
Construction 

  CFDA No.: 20.205 
  Not Research and Development 
 

Bridge AFA Page 1 of 1 Revised 09/04/2018 
Bridge Division 

 
ATTACHMENT D 

ESTIMATE OF DIRECT COSTS  
 

    
Estimated Cost 

Local Government 
Participation 

   
Preliminary Engineering (PE) (1) $41,300  

   
Ten Percent (10%) or EDC Adjusted 
Percent of PE for Local Government 
Participation 

  
(3) $4,130 

   
Construction $413,000  

   
Engineering and Contingency (E&C) $45,430  

   
The Sum of Construction and E&C (2) $458,430  

   
Ten Percent (10%) or EDC Adjusted 
Percent of the Sum of Construction and 
E&C for Local Government Participation 

  
 
(4) $45,843 

   
Amount of Advance Funds Paid by 
Local Government * 

  
(5) $0 

   
Amount of Advance Funds to be Paid by 
Local Government * 

  
(6) $49,973 

   
Balance of Local Government 
Participation which is to be Waived 
where the Project is a PWP 

  
 
(3+4-5-6) $0 

   
Total Project Direct Cost (1+2) $499,730   

 
*Credited Against Local Government Participation Amount 
 
If this Project is to be a PWP, Amount of EMP Work Being Credited to this PWP as Shown 
on Attachment C.  __N/A_________________________________ 
  



 

 

Agenda Commentary 

 

Meeting Date:   8/6/2020 

Department:  City Attorney Contact:   Suzanne L. Hanneman, City Attorney  

 
Agenda Item:   Consider Ordinance 20-V, granting consent to the addition of approximately 202.673 acres 

of land to Brazoria County Municipal Utility District No. 3; making findings of fact; 

providing a severability clause; and providing an effective date. 

 

Type of Item: ☒Ordinance  ☐Resolution  ☐Contract/Agreement  ☐Public Hearing  ☐Plat  ☐Discussion & Direction  ☐Other 

Summary:   On March 7, 2020, the City consented to the creation of Brazoria County Municipal Utility 

District No. 3 (the “District”) by Resolution No. 19-R-11.  The District was created by an order of the Texas 

Commission on Environmental Quality on September 1, 2019, and operates pursuant to Chapters 49 and 54 of 

the Texas Water Code. 
 

On July 27, 2020, the City of Alvin, Texas, received a Petition for Consent to Include Additional Land from 

the District and D.R. Horton-Texas, Ltd., a Texas limited partnership, 258 Colony Investments, Ltd., a Texas 

limited partnership, and Hannover Estates, Ltd., a Texas limited partnership (collectively referred to herein as 

the “Property Owner”), to include approximately 202.673 acres into the District.  Section 54.016 of the Texas 

Water Code provides that no land within the corporate limits of a city or within the extraterritorial jurisdiction 

of a city, shall be included within a municipal utility district unless such city grants its written consent to the 

inclusion of the land within the district.   
 

Staff recommends approval of Ordinance 20-V. 

 

Funding Expected: Revenue ☐ Expenditure ☐ N/A ☒ Budgeted Item: Yes ☐ No ☐ N/A ☒ 

Funding Account:  Amount:  1295 Form Required? Yes ☐ No ☒ 

Legal Review Required: N/A ☐ Required ☒    Date Completed: 7/28/2020 SLH 
 
 

Supporting documents attached: 

• Ordinance 20-V 

• Exhibit A – Petition for Consent to Include Additional Land, Property Description and Map 
 

Recommendation:   Move to approve Ordinance 20-V, granting consent to the addition of approximately 

202.673 acres of land to the Brazoria County Municipal Utility District No. 3; 

making findings of fact; providing a severability clause; and providing an effective 

date. 
 

Reviewed by Department Head, if applicable ☐  Reviewed by Chief Financial Officer, if applicable ☐ 

Reviewed by City Attorney, if applicable ☒  Reviewed by City Manager ☒ 



 

016701.000001\4841-2682-9511.v1 

ORDINANCE 20-V 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF ALVIN, TEXAS, GRANTING 
CONSENT TO THE ADDITION OF APPROXIMATELY 202.673 ACRES 
OF LAND TO BRAZORIA-FORT BEND COUNTIES MUNICIPAL 
UTILITY DISTRICT NO. 3; MAKING FINDINGS OF FACT; 
PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; AND PROVIDING AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Alvin, Texas (the “City”), consented to the creation of Brazoria-

Fort Bend Counties Municipal Utility District No. 3 (the “District”) by Resolution No. 19-R-11, 
passed and adopted by City Council on March 7, 2019; and 

WHEREAS, the District was created pursuant to Senate Bill 1038, 86th Texas 
Legislature, Regular Session, the (“Act”) codified at Chapter 8075, Texas Special District Local 
Laws Code, effective September 1, 2019, and operates pursuant to Chapters 49 and 54 of the 
Texas Water Code, as amended; and 

WHEREAS, the District and D.R. Horton-Texas, Ltd., a Texas limited partnership, 258 
Colony Investments, Ltd., a Texas limited partnership, and Hannover Estates, Ltd., a Texas 
limited partnership (collectively referred to herein as the “Property Owner”), have petitioned the 
City to consent to the addition to the District approximately 202.673 acres of land more fully 
described in the petition and the exhibit attached hereto as Exhibit A; and 
 

WHEREAS, the land sought to be annexed into the District is situated partially within 
the extraterritorial jurisdiction of the City of Alvin, Texas, and partially within the extraterritorial 
jurisdiction of the City of Missouri City, Texas, as such term is determined pursuant to Chapter 
42 of the Texas Local Government Code; and 
 

WHEREAS, Section 54.016 of the Texas Water Code, as amended, provides that no land 
within the corporate limits of a city or within the extraterritorial jurisdiction of a city, shall be 
included within a municipal utility district unless such city grants its written consent to the 
inclusion of the land within the district; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council of the City desires to create Ordinance No. 20-V, as set 

forth herein, for the purpose of consenting to the addition of said land to the District and 
establishing the terms and conditions of such consent.   

 
NOW, THEREFORE; BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF ALVIN, TEXAS:  
 
Section 1. The facts and recitals set forth in the preamble of this Ordinance are hereby found 
to be true and correct. 

 
Section 2. The City Council of the City of Alvin, Texas, hereby grants its specific written 
consent to the addition of the approximately 202.673 acres of land referenced above that are 



 

Ord. 20-V                            Page 2 of 2 
016701.000001\4841-2682-9511.v1 

situated partially within the extraterritorial jurisdiction of the City of Alvin, Texas, and partially 
within the extraterritorial jurisdiction of the City of Missouri City, Texas, into the District as 
described in the Petition and the exhibit, attached hereto as Exhibit A.  This Ordinance shall not 
impair the effectiveness of any agreement between the City and the District dated prior to the 
effective date hereof or conditions contained in Resolution No. 19-R-11 consenting to the 
creation of the District.   

Section 3. In addition to all the rights and remedies provided by the laws of the State of 
Texas, in the event the District violates the terms and provisions of the City’s written consent, 
the City shall be entitled to injunctive relief or a writ of mandamus issued by a court of 
competent jurisdiction restraining, compelling or requiring the District and its officials to 
observe and comply with the terms and provisions of this Ordinance.  

Section 4. That if any provision of this Ordinance or the application of any provision to any 
person or circumstance is held invalid, the invalidity shall not affect other provisions or 
applications of the Ordinance which can be given effect without the invalid provision or 
application, and to this end the provisions of this Ordinance are declared to be severable. 

Section 5. That this Ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its passage and 
publication in accordance with the provisions of the Texas Local Government Code. 

Section 6.   Open Meetings Act.  It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting 
at which this resolution was passed was open to the public and public notice of the time, place and 
purpose of said meeting was given, all as required by the Open Meetings Act, Chapter 551 of the 
Texas Government Code. 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED on this the 6th day of August 2020. 

 

CITY OF ALVIN, TEXAS    ATTEST 
 
 
By: _____________________________  By: _______________________________ 
 Paul A. Horn, Mayor     Dixie Roberts, City Secretary 
 



PETITION FOR CONSENT TO ANNEX LAND INTO
BRAZORIA.FORT BEND COUNTIES MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT NO. 3

THE STATE OF TEXAS

COUNTIES OF BRAZORIA AND FORT BEND

The undersigned, D.R. HORTON-TEXAS, LTD., a Texas limited partnership, 258
COLONY INVESTMENTS, LTD., a Texas limited partnership, and HANNOVER ESTATES,
LTD., a Texas limited partnership (collectively referred to herein as the "Property Owner"),
respectfully petition the City of Alvin, Texas for its consent to the addition of land to the District.
In support of this Petition, the Property Owner would show the following:

The land sought to be added to the District (referred to as the o'Property") is described by
metes and bounds in Exhibit "A", attached hereto and made aparL hereof for all purposes.

II.

The Property contains approximately 202.673 acres of land, is contiguous to the District,
and lies within Brazoia and Fort Bend Counties, Texas, and not within the boundaries of any
incorporated city or town. The Property lies partially within the extraterritorial jurisdiction of
the City of Alvin, Texas, and partially within the extraterritorial jurisdiction of the City of
Missouri City, Texas, as such term is determined pursuant to Chapter 42 Y.T.C.A. Local
Government Code.

ilI.

Property Owner is the holder of title to the Property as shown by the Brazoria and Fort
Bend Counties Tax Rolls and conveyances of record. No person or entity holds a lien on the
Property.

IV

The District was duly created and established pursuant to Senate Bill 1038, Acts of the
86th Legislature, Regular Session, 2019, Chapter 8075, Texas Special District Local Law Code,
effective September 1,2019 (the "Act"). The District is organized for the purposes found in
Chapters 49 and 54, Texas Water Code, as amended, to provide for:

(1) the control, storage, preservation, and distribution of its storm water and
floodwater, the water of its rivers and streams for irrigation, power and all other useful purposes;

$

$

TO THE HONORABLE MAYOR AND CITY COI.INCIL OF THE CITY OF ALVIN, TEXAS

I.

003829.0001 52\48 l4'l 655-902 l.v I



(2) the reclamation and irrigation of its arid, semiarid, and other land needing
inigation;

(3) the reclamation and drainage of its overflowed land and other land needing
drainage;

(4) the conservation and development of its forests, water, and hydroelectric power;

(5) the navigation of its inland and coastal water;

(6) the control, abatement, and change of any shortage or harmful excess of water;

(7) the protection, preservation, and restoration of the purity and sanitary condition of
water within the state; and

(8) the preservation ofall natural resources ofthe state; and

(9) the construction, operation and maintenance of roads, parks and recreational
facilities serving the District.

The District is empowered and authorized to purchase, construct, acquire, own, operate,
maintain, repair, improve, or extend inside and outside its boundaries any and all works,
improvements, facilities, plants, equipment, and appliances necessary to accomplish the purposes
of its creation.

V

The general nature of the work to be done by and within the Property at the present time
is the construction, maintenance and operation of a waterworks system for domestic and
commercial purposes; the construction, maintenance and operation of a sanitary sewer collection
system and sewage disposal plant; the control, abatement and amendment of the harmful excess

of waters and the reclamation and drainage of overflowed lands within the lands to be included
within the District; and the construction, installation, maintenance, purchase and operation of
roads, parks and recreational facilities and of such additional facilities, systems, plants and
enterprises as shall be consistent with the purposes for which the District is organized.

VI.

There is a necessity for the improvements above described because the Property is
located within an area that is experiencing substantial and sustained residential and commercial
growth, is urban in nature and is not supplied with adequate water, sanitary sewer and drainage
facilities and services, and roads and park and recreational facilities. The health and welfare of
the future inhabitants of the Property require the acquisition and installation of an adequate
waterworks, sanitary sewer and storm drainage system, roads and park and recreational facilities.

003829.000 I 52\48 I 4-l 655-902 l.v I



The purchase, construction, extension, improvement, maintenance and operation of such
waterworks system and storm and sanitary sewer collection and disposal systems will conserve
and preserve the natural resources of this State by promoting and protecting the purity and
sanitary condition of the State's waters and will promote and protect the public health and
welfare of the community; therefore, a public necessity exists for the inclusion of the Property
within the District.

VII

Said proposed improvements are practicable and feasible, in that the terrain of the
Property is of such a nature that a waterworks system and sanitary and storm sewer systems can
be constructed at a reasonable cost; and said land will be rapidly developed for commercial,
multi-family and/or residential pu{poses.

VIII

A preliminary investigation has been instituted to determine the cost of the project
attributable to the Property, and it is now estimated by those filing this Petition, from such
information as they have at this time, that the ultimate cost of the development contemplated will
be approximately $23,1 5 1,000.

WHEREFORE, the undersigned respectfully pray that this Petition be granted in all
respects and that the City Council of the City of Alvin, Texas, adopt a resolution giving its
written consent to the addition of the Property to the District.

[THE REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANKI

003829.000 I 52\48 I 4- I 655-902 I .v I



RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED this 2b day of JUI/9 ,2020.

..PROPERTY OWNER''

D.R. Horton-Texas, Ltd.,
a Texas limited partnership

By: D.R. Inc.,
a Dela

By:

Title

JonathanWoodruft

003829.0001 52\48 14-l 655-902 1.vl



258 COLONY INVESTMENTS, LTD.
A Texas limited partnership

By FW Companies, LLC
a Texas limited liability company
its General Partner

By:
Name: Brad Richie
Title: Secretary

STATE OF TEXAS

COUNTY OF BEXAR

$

$

$

Z4 dayor Tuit(This instrument was acknowledged before me on the
2020, by Brad Richie, Secretary of FW Companies ,LLC, a Texas limited liability company, the

General Pafiner of 258 Colony Investments, Ltd., a Texas limited partnership, on behalf of said

entity.

&'w,j n@
Notary Public, State of 5

(sEAL)

MARIAN G ADAMS
Notary Public, State of Texas
Comm. Expires Og-0b-2020

Notary tD 10599g6-3

003829.0001 52\48 I 4- I 655-902 l.v I



HANNOVER ESTATES, LTD.,
a Texas limited partnership

By: Amvest Corporation,
a Texas corporation,
its general partner

By:
Name Clinton Wong
Title: President

THE STATE TEXAS

COTINTY OF HARzuS

$

$

$

This instrument was acknowledged before me on tne daay of April, 2020 by
Clinton Wong, President of Amvest Corporation, a Texas corporation, which is the general
partner of HANNOVER ESTATES, LTD., a Texas limited partnership, on behalf of said
corporation.

Notary of @ftS
(SEAL

KEI.f,YCMTIAN
8784210#IDNohryillv

NN16,JanuarYExpires

003 829.000 I 52\481 4-l 655'9021.vl



EXHIBIT "A'
Description of the Property

(see attached)

003829.0001 52\48 l4-l 655-902 l.v I



Exhibit A Page i of 2 pages

County:
Project:
Job No.
MBS No

Fort Beud
Southern Colony
I 85567
l9- 13 I (Revised)

FIELD NOTES FOR 49.946 ACRES

Being a tract containing 49.946 acres of land^ located in the William Hall Suney, Abstract -ii, in FortBend Counry' T'exas' said 49.946 acre tract being a call 50.lll acre tract recordecl irr File Number20i0065970 of the Official Records of Fort Bendi)ounry (O.R.F.B.C.) and being Lor g of rhe T.W. &
'l'H'B' l{ouse Subdivision as recorcjed in volume 7, Page iot orthe Fort Bendtounty Deed Records(F'B'C'D'R')l Said 49.946.acre tract being ntcre particuiarly described by meres and bcuncls as lollows
Oearings being based on the Texas Coordinate System. Soirth Central Zone, NAD g3. as derived fiom
GPS Observations):

Beginning ata2x2 steel bar marked with a 2-inch PVC stand pipe locateci at rhe northwest corner of said50'lll acre tract ancl being fhe northrvest courer of saicl Lot B, ihe southwest corner of Lot 2. southeast
corner of Lot 3 and nonheast corner of Lot 7. all of said r.w. &.1.H.8. subclivision:

Thence" r'vith the northerlY line of said Lot 8_and the southerly line of said Lot 2, Nofth g6 degrees 55minutes 29 seconds East. a distance of 1367.28 feet to a 2-inch PVC stand pipe fouird at the northeasterll,
corner of said Lot 8, the southeasterl-v conrer of said Lot 2, the southweiterly corner. of Lot I and thenorthwesterly corner of Lot 9. said T.\i. & J.H.B. Subdivision;

Thence. with the easterlv line of said Lot 8 and the r.vesterly line of said Lot 9, South 03 degrees 04minutes 56 seconds East, a distance of 1591.23 feet to a 2-inch PVC stand pipe tbJnd at the southeasrerly.
corner of said Lot 8. the southwesterly corner of said Lot 9. the nofthwert..ly.orn*. of Lot l0 and thenorrheasterly corner of [-ot I t, both oisaid r.w. & j.H.e. s,;illuiuion,

Thence. with the soLrtherly line of saici Lot 8-ancl the northerly line of saicl Lot ll. south g6 degrees 55minutes 29 seconds west. a distance af 1367 .28 feet to a 2-inch PVC stancl pipe found at the southwester-lv corner of said Lot 8, the northwesterly corner of said Lot I I and the soirt[easterl5, corner of aforesaidl-ot 1;

Thence. rvith the rvesterly line of said Lot 
.8 

and^the easterly line of said Lor 7, North 03 clegrees 04nrinutes 56 seconds west' a ciistance of 1591.23 feetto the Point of Beginning and containing 49.946
acres oflancl.

GBI PARTNERS, I-,P.
TBPLS Firrn No. i0130300
Ph:281 .499.4539
May 3,2A19
{Revised; 10l22lZAt9} J0?{ P, BORDOVS?{V

T

*

I U

6405

\? lzz t*'1



Exhibit Page I of 1 Page

Countv:
Project:
Job No,
MBS No

Fort Bend & Brazoria
Southem Colony
1 85567
l9-132 (Reviserl)

FIELD NOTES FOR 40.632 ACRES

Being a tract containing 40.632 acres of lancl, located in the Wiltiam Hall Survey, Abstract j l. in Fort
Bend County, Texas, and the William F{all survey, Abstract T ll, in Brazoria Couniy, Texas: Said 40.632
acre tract being a portioit of a call 50 acre tract recortJed in the narres of Charles W. Cope and David fu1.
Cope in Volume 759, Page 173 of'the Brazoria County Deecl Records (B.C.D.R.) and Vc.ilume 1378, page
558 of the Fort Bencl Llounty Deed Records (F.B.C.D.R.), and being Lot 9 of the T'.W. & J.l-1.8. House
Subdivision as rccorded in Voltrme 7. Paqe 301 of the F.B.C.D.R.; Said 40.53? acre tract bei'g rnore par-
ticularly described by. metes anel bounds as follolvs (bearings being basecl on rhe Texas Coorclinare Svs-
tern, South Central Zone, NAD 83, as derived fron CpS Observations):

Beginning ataZ-inch PVC stand pipe locatecl at the nonhrvest corner of said 50 acre tract and being the
northlvest corller of said Lot 9. the southrvest corner of Lot I . southeast corner of Lot 2 ancl northeasicor-
ner of Lot 8, all of said T.W. & J.H.B. SLrbdivision:

Thence. lvith the northerly line of said Lot 9 and the southerly line of said t,ot l, Nortlr g6 degrees 5j
minutes 29 seconds East. a distance of 801 .45 leetl

Thence, through and across aforesaid Lot 9, the fblrowing trvo (2) courses:

l) South 09 degrees 59 minutes 42 seconds East, a distance of 790.22 feet;

2) North 85 degrees 55 minutes 04 seconds East. a distance of 471.76 feet to the easterly lile ol
aioresaid William Hall Survev and the rvesterly line of the H.T.&B.R.R. Co. Lot 68 Surve1,, Ab-
stract 56 I ;

Thence, with saicl contnlon surve,v line. South 03 degrees 04 minutes 56 seconds East, a clistance of
806'83 tbet to a 2-inch PVC stand pipe found at the soufheasterl-v corner of saicl Lot 9 and the norrheaster-
ly corner of Lot l0 of said T.W. & J.H.B. Subdivisionr

Thence, r.vith the southerly line of said Lot 9 and the northerly line of said Lot 10, South g6 degrees 55
minutes 29 seconds West, a distance of l-i68.32 f'eet to a Z-inch PVC stand pipe tbund at fhe southr,vesrer-
ly corner of said l-.ot 9, the nortlrwesterlv corner of said Lot I0 ancl the southeasterly corner olaforesaid
[,ot 8;

Thence. with the westerl,v- line of said Lr:t 9 anci the easterly line of said L.ot g. North 03 degrees 04
minutes 56 seconds West, a disfance of I59l .23 feetto the Point of Beginning ancl containing +O.e:e
acres of land.

CBI PARTNERS, L.P
TBPLS Firm No. iOtfO:oo
Ph: l8l .499,4539
May 3.2A19
(Revised 10/2812019)



Exhibit Page 1 of 2 Pages

County:
Project:
Job No.
MBS No

Brazoria
Southem Colony'
I 85567
l9-019 (Revised)

FIELD NOTES FOR I5.987 ACR.ES

Being a tract containing 15.987 acres ol land, located in the tl.T.&B. R.R. Co. [-ot 68. Abstract
56i. in Brazoria County, l'exas; Said 15.987 acre tract being a portion of a call 28 acre rract rec-
orded in the name of R.M. Caldwell in Volunte 400, Page 249 oi the Brazoria Courrty l)eed Rec-
ords {B.C.D,R.); Said 15.987 acre tract being more particularly desclibecl by metes ancl bounds
as follows (bearings being based on the Texas Coordinate System, South Central Zone. NAD 83,
as ilerived from GPS observations):

Commencing at a 2-inch PVC pipe found at the southeast corner olLot 1. T.W. & J.H.B. Flouse
Subdivision, a subdivisicn recorded in Volume 7" Page 301 of the Forl Bencl County Deecl Rec-
ords (F.B.C.D.R.), the norlheast comer of Lot 9, said T.W. & J.H.B. House Subclivision and be-
ing on the easterly line of the William Hali Survey, Abstract 713, the r.vesterl"v line of the
r{.T.&8. R.R. Co, (also being the westerly line of the norv cancelled A,B. Langerman Survey,
Abstract 625) and the westerl,v line of a 10O-t-eet wide tract recolded in the narne of Ba;-ou Ri-
fles. Ino' in File Number 2AArc52768 of the Official Public Records of Reai property litrazoria
County lexas (O.P.R.R.P"B.C.T.), llom which a 2-inch PVtl pipe found ar rhe norrhwesterly-
corner of said Lot 9 and the southwesterly corner of said Lot i bears South 86 degrees 5-5

minutes 29 seconds West. a distance of 1368.3? feet and a 5i8-inch iron rocl fbuncl at the norrh-
easterly corner of said Lot i bears North 03 degrees 04 minutes 56 secgnds \,Vest" a clistance of
i 591 .83 feet;

Thence' through and across albresaid i0O-tbet wide tract, North 04 degrees i2 mi.'utes 33 sec-
onds East' a distance t:f 787 .91 feet to the Point of Beginning of the herein described tract:

Thence, with the easterly line of said 100-feet wide tract and the westerly. line of sai.d call Zg acre
tract. No$h 03 degrees 04 minutes 56 seconds West, a distance of 1206.09 feer to a Si8-inch irnn
rod sei at the northwest comer of said call 28 acre tract, the northeast corner of said 100-feet
wide h'act and being on the southerly line of acall26 acre tract recorded in the name of Jean W.
Payne Trust in File Number 1997A4A600 of the O.P.R.R.P.B.C.T., from which the aforesaicl5/g-
inch iron rod found ai the northeasterly corner of Lert i bears South l l degrees Cl5 mingtes 4g
seconds West, a distance of 408.24 feet:

Thence, with said southerly line ancl the northerly' line of said call28 acre tract, North g6 degrees
49 minutes 06 seconcis East" a clistance af 576.96 feet to a 518-inch iron rocl set at the northeaster-
ly corner of said call 28 acre tract;



Exhibit Page 2 of 2 Pages

Thence. with the easterly line of said call 28 acre tract, South 03 degrees 03 minutes 55 seconds
East, a distance of 1208.76 feet to a 518-inch iron rod set on the northerly line of a call 1,320 acre
tract styled as Tract V and recorded in the name of Baker Process, Inc. in File Number
2A\AAA7798 of the O.P.R.R.P.B.C"T., from which a 518-inch ircn rod with "4079" cap fbund ar
the ncrtheasterly comer of said 1.320 acre tract bears North 87 degrees 05 minutes 01 second
East, a distance of 183.48 feet:

'l'hence. with said northerly line. Sotrth 87 degrees 05 minutes 01 second West, a clistance of
576.60 feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING and containing 15.987 acres of land.

THIS DESCRIPTION WAS PREPARED IN CONNECTION WITH A PLAT OF SUR-
VEY DATED JANUARY 31, 2OI9 AND F'ILED UNDER JOB NUMBER 185567 AT GBI
PARTNERS, L,P.

GBI PARTNERS, L.P.
TBPLS Firm No. 10i30300
Ph: ?81 .499.4539
January 31,2019
(Revised 1012812019) JOX F.

su

s406



Exhibit Page I of 2 pages

Cor.rnty:
Pro-iect:
Job No.
MBS No.

Fort Bend
Southern Colony
I 85567
1 8-23 I (Revised)

FIALD NOTES FCIR.83.252 ACRES

Being a tract containing 83.?52 acres ollancl, locateclin the William Hall Survey. Abstract 31, in
Fort Bend County. Texas. saict 83.252 acre tract being a portion of a cali 162.2i24 acre tract rec-
orded in the name of Flannover Esfates, L'fD, in File Number 200401 8462 afthe Otticial Rec-
ords of Fort Bend Counry (O.R.F.B.C.) ancl being a portion of Lots 5 and 6, T.W. & j.Fi.B.
Flouse Subdivision, a subdivision recordecl in Volum.7. Pug.30l of the Fort Bencl Corinty Deecl
Records (F.B.C.D.R.): said 83.252 acre tract being more particularly described by meies ancl
bounds as lbllor'vs (bearings being basecl on the Teias Cooidinate System. south central Zone.
NAD 83, as derived tiom GpS Obsenations):

Beginning at a 518-inch iron rod with cap flounci at ihe southeasterly eorner oiReserve uoA.,, Fort
Bend ISD Ferndeli Fleruy Center fbr l.eaming, a subclivision recorcleci in plat Number z}lrc173
of the Fort Bend County' Plat Records {F.B.C.p.R.);

Thence. i'vith the easterly iine ol saicl Reserv€ "A", North 03 degrees 05 minutes 05 seconcis
West, a distance of 1279.62 feet to a 518-ir"rch iron rod set at the southwest comer of a call 1.2g4
acre tract recorded in the namc' of Fort Bend Cor"rnt-v- N'I.U.D. Number 141 in File Number
2018043550 of the O.R.F.B.C.;

Thence' with the southerl!'' line of said L284 acre tract, North 86 d.egrees 5.1 minutes 45 seconds
East, a distance of 175.00 feet io a 518-inch iron rod set at the southeasterl-v corner cf saicl L2g4
1c1e tract and being on the r,vesterly liire of a call 363.942 aeretract recordecl in the name of J.H.
Caldwell, et al in Volume 796.?age 565 of the O.R.F.B.C.;

T'hence, with said easterly line" South 03 degrees 05 minutes 12 seconcls East. a ciistance of
1272 '32 feet to a 518-inch iron rod set at a southwesterly corner of said 363 .g42 acre tract:

Thence, rvith a southerly line of said 363.942 acre tract,l{orth 86 degrees 57 min*tes 10 seconds
East' a distance of 353'80 feet to a 5/8-inch iron rocl set at the nofii'easterly corner of aforesaid
162.2524 acre tract:

Tlrence, with the easterly line of said16?.2524 acre rract. South 03 degrees 04 rnlnures 56 sec-
onds East. a distance of 1593.59 feet to a 5i8-inch iron rod founrl on the northerly line of South-
em Colony Section 44. a subdivision recorcleci in Plat Number 201g01gg of the p'.n.c.tr,R,;



Exhibit Page 2 of 2 pages

Thence, with said northerly line and the northerly line of Southern Colony Section 28, a subclivi-sion recorded in Plat Number 2017arc4 of the F,B.C.P,R., South 86 degrees 4g minutes 40 sec-
onds West, a distance af 2217.26 feet to a 518-inch iron rod set on th;northerly li'e of a call
!:314 acre tlact styled as Tract Two and recorded in the narne of BLSR Operating. LTD. in File
Number 2006i52319 of the 0.R.F.B.C, ancl being on a iine 3S0-t'eet easterly of-and parallel to
the easterly Righr-of-way (R.o.w.) line of F.M.sit ir l5-feet wide);

IFlt:, with said parallel line, North 02 degrees 29 minutes 05 seconds East, a distance of
1599.48 leet to a S/8-inch iron rod set on the southerly line of aforesaid Resene .,A,1;

Thence, with said scutherly line" North 86 degrees 58 minutes 0l seconds East, a distance of
1533.24 feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING and conraining 83.252 acres of land.

THIS DESCRIPTION WAS PREPARED IN CONNECTION WITH A PI,AT OF SUR.VEY DATED OCTOBER 22, 2019 AND F'ILED IN JOB NUMBER 185567 AT GBI
PARTNERS, L.P.

GBI PARTNERS. L.P.
TBPELS Firm No. t 0l 30300
Ph: 28i .499.4539
September 14" 2018
{Revised 10l22l2Alq)

U

T€

JOfi p. BoRDoV$t(Y
*,

846



Exhibit Page 1 of 2 Pages

County:
Project:
.lob No.
MBS No

Forr Bend
Southern Colony'
r 85567
t9-328

FIELD NOTES FOR 12.856 ACR*ES

Being a tract contaitring 12.856 acres of land, loca&d in the Williarn Hall Survey, Abstract 31, in Fort
Bend Counf. Texas, said 12.856 acre tact being a portion oi'a call 162.2524 acre tract recorded in the
name of Hannover Estates, t,TD. in File Number 200401 8462 of the Officiat Records of Fort Bend Coun-
ty fO.R.F.B.C.); Said t2.856 acre tract being mcre particularly descLibed by metes and bounds as tbllows
(bearings being based on the Texas Coordinate System. South Central Zone. NAD 83, as derived fronr
GPS observations):

Beginning at a 5i8-inch iron rod with cap for,rnd at the southwesterly corner of Reserve "A", Fcrt Bencl
ISD Ferndell Henry'Center for Learning. a subdivision recorded in Plat Number 20ll0lT3 af the Fort
Bend County Plat Records (F.B.C.P.R.) and being on the easterly.' Right-of-Wa-v tR.O.W.) line of F.M.
-521 (l 15-fbet wide);

Thence. with the sot$herly line of said Reserve "A", North 86 degrees 58 minutes 0l seconds East, adis-
tance of 351.63 feet to a line 350-feet easterly of ancl parallel to the aforesaid easterly R.O.W. line of F.M.
<1t.

Thence. with said parallel line. SoLrth 0? degrees 29 minutes 05 seconcls West. a clistance of 1599.48 feet
tothenofiherlylineofacall 4.3l4acretractstyledasTractTrvoandreeordedinthenameof BLSROp-
erating, LTD. in File Nunrber 2A06152319 of the O.R.F.B.C..

Thence, r.vith said northerly line, South 86 degrees 48 rninutes 40 seconds Wesl. a distance of 351.72 feet
to the aforesaid easrerly R.O.W. line of F.M.521;

Thence, with said R.O.W. lirre. North 02 degrees 29 minutes 05 seconds East, a distance of 1600.44 feet
to the Point of Beginning and containing 12.856 acres of land.

CBI PAR.TNERS, L"P.
TBPLS Firn No. 10130300
Ph: 281 .4q9.4539
October 23.2019

'df",

ar{

JOr,{ P. BCRSOVSi(Y

T

Q; *

s405



.9

E

q

4

d

9

1
E

E

i

:
E,

COPE TRAC|
40 632 ACRES

CUSACK TRACT
49.946 ACRFSWONG RESIDENTIAL \RACI

83.252 ACRES

Existing
Southem Colony

BRAZORIA_FORT BEND COUNfIES
MUD NO. 3 BOUNDARY

J62.666 ACRES

N

SCALE: l" = 1000

0

15. ACRES

2000

Feet

CALDWELL TRACT

BRAZORIA TOR| BEND
COUNNES MUD NO. J
BOUNDARY

362.666 ACRFS

LTGEND

ANNEXED TRACTS 202.673 ACRES

565,JJ9 ACRESPROPOSED MUD
BOUNDARY

ffiillllm
ffitr

EJ

fll]
Existing

Southern Colony

WONG COMMERCIAL
TRACT

12.856 ACRES

t
d

i

OVERALL TRACT
ANNEXATION
DATE: 2019-l 1-21

'1904 W Grand Parkway North

LJA lnc,
Phone 713,953.5200

Fa 713.953.5026

FRN-F-1386

Suite 100

Katy, Texas 77449



LJA Engineering, Inc.

1904 W. Grand Parkway North Phone 713.953.5200
Suite 100 Fax 713.953.5026
Katy, Texas 77449 FRN-F-1386

N

Feet

0 1000 2000

AutoCAD SHX Text
Existing Southern Colony

AutoCAD SHX Text
COPE TRACT 40.632 ACRES

AutoCAD SHX Text
BRAZORIA-FORT BEND COUNTIES MUD NO. 3 BOUNDARY 362.666 ACRES

AutoCAD SHX Text
CUSACK TRACT 49.946 ACRES

AutoCAD SHX Text
Existing Southern Colony

AutoCAD SHX Text
FM 521

AutoCAD SHX Text
WONG RESIDENTIAL TRACT 83.252 ACRES

AutoCAD SHX Text
OVERALL TRACT ANNEXATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE: 2019-11-21

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE: 1" = 1000'

AutoCAD SHX Text
BRAZORIA FORT BEND  COUNTIES MUD NO. 3 BOUNDARY 

AutoCAD SHX Text
LEGEND

AutoCAD SHX Text
ANNEXED TRACTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
362.666 ACRES

AutoCAD SHX Text
202.673 ACRES

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED MUD BOUNDARY

AutoCAD SHX Text
565.339 ACRES



 

 

Agenda Commentary 

 

Meeting Date:   8/6/2020 

Department:   Contact:  Mayor Paul Horn  

 
Agenda Item:   Discuss, consider, and take any needed action regarding the Karpeles Museum project at 

the historic Methodist Church building located at 800 West Sidnor. 
 

 

Type of Item: ☐Ordinance  ☐Resolution  ☐Contract/Agreement  ☐Public Hearing  ☐Plat  ☒Discussion & Direction  ☐Other 

Summary:   February 5, 2015, City Council approved the appropriation of $20,000 to the Karpeles Museum 

from the Hotel Motel Tax Fund for the purpose of promoting tourism in the City of Alvin according to Chapter 

351 of the Texas Tax Code.  The motion also stated that the funds would be appropriated and released to Karpeles 

Museum only after the Karpeles Museum has met the City’s code requirements resulting in a certificate of 

occupancy.    

 

Since 2015, the Karpeles Museum Project has encountered numerous delays.  However,  per Tom Stansel, some 

of the major items that are needed to obtain the certificate of occupancy include installing the commercial fire 

alarm and overlaying the parking lot.  

 

To support the completion of the Karpeles Museum, it has been requested that City Council consider the 

following: 

1.) Increasing the appropriation from $20,000 to $30,000 to cover unexpected costs.  

2.) Authorizing the disbursement of the $30,000 when the certificate of occupancy has been issued.  

 

At the July 16, 2020 meeting, City Council tabled this item and directed the City Attorney to review the 

applicable Hotel Occupancy Tax laws and to draft an agreement for City Council to review before any further 

action is taken. 

 

Funding Expected: Revenue ☐ Expenditure ☐ N/A ☐ Budgeted Item: Yes ☐ No ☒ N/A ☐ 

Funding Account:  Amount:  1295 Form Required? Yes ☐ No ☒ 

Legal Review Required: N/A ☐ Required ☒    Date Completed:  

 
 
Supporting documents attached: 

• Draft letters 

 
Recommendation:   Move to approve the $_______________ from the Hotel Occupancy Tax Fund for the 

Karpeles Museum project when a certificate of occupancy has been issued by the City 

of Alvin. 

 



 

Reviewed by Department Head, if applicable ☐  Reviewed by Chief Financial Officer, if applicable ☐ 

Reviewed by City Attorney, if applicable ☐  Reviewed by City Manager ☐ 

 



 

 

CITY OF ALVIN  Office of the Mayor 
216 West Sealy Street    ⬧      Alvin, Texas 77511     ⬧    (281) 388-4278     ⬧     FAX (281) 388-4294 

 www.alvin-tx.gov 

August 6, 2020 

 

Sam Tanksley 

Karpeles Manuscript Museum 

2500 Fairway Drive, #1525 

Alvin, Texas 77511 

 

 RE:  Donation of Hotel Occupancy Tax Funds for Karpeles Manuscript Museum 

 

Dear Mr. Tanksley,  

 

 On February 5, 2015, the City Council for the City of Alvin, Texas, approved the 

appropriation of $20,000 from the Hotel Occupancy Tax funds for the restoration and 

preservation of the historic Methodist Church building, located at 800 West Sidnor, Alvin, 

Texas, for the new Karpeles Manuscript Museum. 

 

 City Council has re-approved the appropriation, and finds that the use of these public 

funds will directly enhance and promote tourism and the hotel industry in Alvin, Texas, due to 

the museum’s promotional programs and encouragement of tourists visiting the Museum, in 

accordance with Chapter 351 of the Texas Tax Code. Please note these funds will be made 

available to you upon the issuance of the Certificate of Occupancy. 

 

 Please sign below, acknowledging your agreement for the use of the appropriated funds.  

 

       Sincerely, 

 

 

       Paul A. Horn 

       Mayor 

 

 

I, Sam Tanksley, on behalf of the Karpeles Manuscript Museum, fully understand that 

this $20,000 must be used as reimbursement for the restoration and preservation of the historic 

Methodist Church building for the housing of the Karpeles Manuscript Museum. 

 

               

 

 _________________________________  __________________ 

 Sam Tanksley      Date 



 

 

CITY OF ALVIN  Office of the Mayor 
216 West Sealy Street    ⬧      Alvin, Texas 77511     ⬧    (281) 388-4278     ⬧     FAX (281) 388-4294 

 

 

www.alvin-tx.gov 

August 6, 2020 

 

Sam Tanksley 

Karpeles Manuscript Museum 

2500 Fairway Drive, #1525 

Alvin, Texas 77511 

 

 RE:  Donation of Hotel Occupancy Tax Funds for Karpeles Manuscript Museum 

 

Dear Mr. Tanksley,  

 

 On February 5, 2015, the City Council for the City of Alvin, Texas, approved the appropriation of $20,000 

from the Hotel Occupancy Tax funds for the restoration and preservation of the historic Methodist Church building, 

located at 800 West Sidnor, Alvin, Texas, for the new Karpeles Manuscript Museum. 

 

 Additionally, on August 6, 2020, City Council approved the appropriation of an additional $10,000 from 

the Hotel Occupancy Tax funds for the restoration and preservation of the historic Methodist Church building for the 

new Karpeles Manuscript Museum.  In accordance with Section 351.101(d), the Karpeles Manuscript Museum shall 

maintain complete and accurate financial records of each expenditure of hotel occupancy tax revenue made by the 

Museum and, on request of the City, shall make the records available for inspection and review to the City. 

 

 City Council finds that the use of these public funds will directly enhance and promote tourism and the 

hotel industry in Alvin, Texas, due to the museum’s promotional programs and encouragement of tourists visiting 

the Museum, in accordance with Chapter 351 of the Texas Tax Code. Please note, as previously agreed upon, these 

funds will be made available to you upon the issuance of the Certificate of Occupancy. 

 

 Please sign below, acknowledging your agreement for the use of the appropriated funds.  

 

       Sincerely, 

 

 

       Paul A. Horn 

       Mayor 

 

 

I, Sam Tanksley, on behalf of the Karpeles Manuscript Museum, fully understand that this $20,000 must be used as 

reimbursement for the restoration and preservation of the historic Methodist Church building for the housing of the 

Karpeles Manuscript Museum.  Additionally, with respect to the additional $10,000 appropriated, I fully understand 

that the Karpeles Manuscript Museum shall maintain complete and accurate financial records of each expenditure of 

hotel occupancy tax revenue made by the Museum and, on request of the City, shall make the records available for 

inspection and review to the City. 

 

               

 

 _________________________________  __________________ 

 Sam Tanksley      Date 


	City Council Agenda 8/6/2020
	PRESENTATION
	A. Proclamation - Johanna McWilliams

	CONSENT AGENDA
	A. 8/6/20 City Council Minutes
	B. Res 20-R-22; Nov Special Election Voting Locations/Times
	Resolution 20-R-22

	C. Final Plat; Caldwell Ranch Section 2
	D. Final Plat; Highway 6 Gas Station
	E. Final Plat; Mustang Crossing Section 8

	OTHER BUSINESS
	A. Ord 20-S; CO Bond Issuance
	Ordinance 20-S
	S&P Bond Rating Summary
	Bond Sale Summary

	B. Record Vote on Proposed Tax Rate
	Tax Rate Calculation WS

	C. Calling Tax Rate Public Hearing
	Tax Rate Notice

	D. Ord 20-T; Baymark Pipeline LLC use of ROW 
	Ordinance 20-T
	Exhibit A
	Baymark Pipeline Permit Application

	E. Ord 20-U; South Texas NGL Pipelines use of ROW
	Ordinance 20-U
	Exhibit A
	South Texas NGL Pipeline Permit Application

	F. Res 20-R-21; TxDOT AFA Bridge Replacement CR172
	Resolution 20-R-21
	Advanced Funding Agreement

	G. Ord 20-V; Consent to the Addition of 202.673 Acres in MUD 3
	Ordinance 20-V
	Exhibit A
	Annexation Map


	H. Karpeles Museum Project
	Draft Letters





